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Shang Properties is committed to be the leading
developer and manager of prime properties

in the Philippines.

* Leading through product innovation

* Delighting with excellent service

= Fostering fair treatment and mutal respect

* Empowering people to attain their full potential
* Upholding good corporate citizenship
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“ We remain confident about
the long term prospects of
Shang Properties in the Philippines
and continue our focus on looking
for new tnvestment opportunities

az

that may arise.

Shang Properties’ commitment to the Philippines remained
steadfast in 2015, With the country's property segrnenl
remaining strong in the face of its' stable economic
performance, our year-end financial regorts reflected a
medest growth of 4% in net income or Php2 8 billion
versus Php2 7 billion in 2014, These positive results are
attributed to sales and construction completion of our
residential projects, recurring income from our office and
rall subsiciaries, and the revaluation of our prime assets,

Shangri-La at the Forl, Manilz, the G2-storey landmark
mixed-use developmeant in the heart of Bonifacio Global
City in which the company has a 60% interest, neared
completion and partially cpened in March 2016, Sales of
the 98 Harizon Homes huxury residentizl units or top of the
#50 meter high tower continued al a steady pace. Hlorizon
Homes carries the global distinction of being the only
residences that are located on top of & Shangri-La owned
and managed hotel

Our tweo residential projects in Makati, Shang Salcedo
Flace and The Rise, are currently under constraction
and celebrated key milestones in 20150 The &7-stomey
Shang Salcedo Place topped ofl in Novernber 2015 and is
targeting to turn cver to unit buyers towards late 2016 o
in early 2017, The Rise, located in MOMA or Morth Makati,
is 5% staroys high and has 3,044 units located above a two-
lewel mall. Work has begun on the superstruciure and the
development is expected 1o be completed towards Lhe
end of 2015



One  Shangri-la Place, our  twin  towser  residential
developrnent in Ortigas Center, is almost sold out, and we
are currently in 1he process of handing-cver to buyers. Hs
armenities remain best inits cass and have set the benchmark
oo luxury residential amenities in the country today.

The affice sectors positive outleck continued in 2015, The
aversge occupancy of The Enterprise Center, our office
building in the tMakati Central Business District, peaked at
9% in June, and continued Lo command ane of the highest
lease rales despite the entry of newer office developments,

After 16 years in operation, The Enterprise Center embarked
an an extensive uparade of its facilites, amenities and major
equipment, including a comprehensive makeaver of the
common area restrooms, lifl lobbies, and corridors in the
tenanied floors and improvemnents o the lobbies, retail
floor, driveway and the surrcunding landscape. These
renovations are expected o e completed by mid-2017.
With these upgrades, we believe that The Enterprise Center
will strengthern its stature zs the leading business address in
Makati.

Our retail subsidiary, Shangri-La Plaza, continued 1o face
stiff competition as new malls opened in Metro Manila and
srnaller retail establishments opened in secondary areas,
all offering very competitive rates. In order o maintain the
malls positioning as a key lifestyle destination, Shangri-
La Plazas Main Wing continued its major renovations and
redeveloprment, which we expect to complete by mid-2016.

The creation of additional spaces is intended 10 generate
excilernent and attract local and foreign retail brands, therefore
incregsing additional sources of revenue and growth,

Shang Properties’ success in 2015 is refllected in its gross
revenues of Php83 billion, an 58% increase from Phplé
tillicn of the pravious year, Shareholders’ equity was up 8.9%
from Php23.8 billion to Php25.% billion. This resulted in higher
earnings per share which increased by 4.2% to Php0.5%8 fram
Phpos74 in 2014, This in turn, allowed Shang Properties to
declare a higher dividend per share of Php0.15 from Php0 13
of the previous year, an increase of 14.8%,

We rernain confdent about 1the long term prospects of Shang
Propertics in the Philippines and continue aur foous on looking
for new investrnent oppartunites that may arise.

All aur achisverments in 2015 were made possible with the
suppart of our Board of Directors and the dedication of our
management and staff. We thank them, as well as our business
partners, buyers, tenants and customers for the unwavering
trust they continue 1o place in Shang Properties,

@

EDWARD KUOK KHOON LOONG
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Shangri-La al the Fort, the company’s landmark, mixed-use
development at the Bonifacio Global ity pertially opened
in March 2016 11 features a world-class Shangri-La Hotel, the
Shangri-Le Pesidences: Herry Sports Manila, and the ultra-
exclusive Haorizan Homes all within the same prime groperty in
hietro hanila’s newest lfestyle and business hub,

The hotel offers 576 spacious suites and guest rooms with a
mirimum size of 45 sguare meters and unparalleled views af
the city and surrounding areas. 1 beoasts of one of the largest
portfalios of conference and event venues, including a pillar-less
Grand Ballroom that can accommodale up to 1,800 guests, and
seven food and beverage outlets

The Shangri-la Residences, on the other hand, have 97 ane-,
twio- and three-bedroom residences measuring 90 sqm 1o 124
g, catering o guests who prefer uxury apartment-style living.
Fach residence is Atted with a kitchenelle, living and dining
areas, a walk-in wardrobe and other modern amenities.

With over 8000 sqm of space, Kerry Sports Manila will be the
city's most comprehensive indoor fitness and recreation offering
rultiple training zanes for all ages and lilestye.
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The Horizon Homes is a collection of 98 limited and highly
customized homes, Fach unit will have a spacious, open-plan
layaut designed to bring families and friends closer together
far that distinctive Shangri-La hospitality experience — warm,
caring and with an attention to detail that comes only with
service from the heart

Horizon Homes is scheduled for completion in the latter part
of 2016, with twenty nine of the $8 Horizon Homes sold,
bringing in sales of Php3.1 7 billion as of end-Decenber 2015,



Ardisty rorrderings

The Rise in Morth Makati or NoMa sustained strong sales
mamenturm in 2015 after a stellar market debut in 2014,
Sales reached Php5.91 billion representing 1,829 units sold
or 60% of the total 3,044 units inits invenlory:

The company's latest residential project has a total net
sellable area of 106460 sgm, of which 55% or 58821 sgm
nave been sold,

Lacated along Mialugay Street, its residential units sit atop a
nwo-level boutique rall that will feature cafes, convenience
stores, and other services. These will offer residents
comfortable and stylish fiving without needing to venture far
iy,

At 59 storeys high, The Rise offers innovative lilestyle
choices in a dynamic neighbarhood teerning with galleries,

delicatessens and bistros, indie miusic venues and unigue retai
dectinations,

Arnong The Rise’ unigue amenities is The Hangout, 2 300 sqm
open launae for entertaining friends and loved ones

For rmeetings and school onwork-related activities, there isThe
Warkshap that offers anT bar, 2 library, reading room, meeting
roarms and athier guisl nooks and spaces

The Mest, on the ather hand, is designed for wellness and
relaxation, a welcome refuge from the hustle and bustle of city
life, foor just hanging around and curling wp with a good read.

Other amenities include a tropical pool and children's pool,
a jogging trail, children’s play space, barbecue patio, and a
modcdern, fully equipped gym.



Arpists rendening

Shang Salcedo Place is the companys second residential
project in Makati City.

This 6i-storey luxury development offers only /49 urits for
sale — an exclusivity that will redefine the standards of sy
in SalcedoVillage.

By end of 2015, Shang Salcedo Place sold 432 units or 58% of
its total inventory, equivalent to 26,825 sqm or 55% of the total
45,521 sqm, and generzting Php3.27 illion in cales revenLes,

Offering corwenience and aocessibilivy, Shang Salcedo Flace is
in the heart of the Makat Central Business District 1L is perfect
for those who wish 10 live, work and play with family and
friends always nearby — minus the hasste of traffic and time-
CONSUMING Commuies,

Sharg Salcedo Place features amenities ke separate swimming
pools for children and adults, 3 gym and exercise rooms, and
a childrens play area. An outdoor garden at the padium leved,
an the other kand, provides a relieshing environment and
imgorating views

One  Shangri-la Flace is Shang  Properties’ biggest
completed praject 1o date with a total development cost
of Php11 billion.

Located on wop of Shangri-La Plaza's EastWing expansion at
the Crtigas Center in Mandaluyong City, the fd-slorey bain
tevwver resicential condorminium is nearly sold out, with 1235
Lnits ar $5% of 1,284 units alregdy taken as of end-7015.The
rotal sales revenue is Phpt 2.2 billion as of Decamber 2015,

One Shangri-La Place offers amenilies that serve as the
benchmark for lusury residential developments in the
Philippines, making it a most sought after and prestigious
address.
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The Enterprise Center also  continued  the  extensive
rencvations of the majority of its facilities, amenities and
major eguipment,

As of Decernber 2015, the upgrades were 25% completed,
with the remaining 75% expected to be finished by mid-
2017. The upgrades should allow The Enterprise Center to
further strengthen its stature as the leading business address
of the country'’s top local and foreign corporations.

The Enterprise Center posted a net income of Phpl.2s
tillion in 2015, an 85% increase from the previous year's
Php&s0 million, mainly on the back of a one-time net gain an
revaluation of Phpa 17 million. Gross revenues shot up S0% to
Php1.75 billion from Phps20 million in 2074,
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Artist’s rendenings

Mirus the revaluation gain, TEC's net income grew 10% 1o
Php75% million.

The hike in revenues and net incoms is primarily attributed
to the 13% increasa in rental vield per sgquare meter which
averaged Php1,103 from PhpS77 versus the previous year.

Gross rental income was Php$92 million, up 95% from
Phps0s millian in 2014,

The higher rental vield likewise offset the slight dmop in
average occupancy of 95.9% in 2015 from 97.5% in the
privious year, a decline of 1.6%.

an15 ANNUAL REPORLT 1l



BUSINESS g REVIEW

MALL & & {l TAIL

dm‘mumummnuum,.

i!h -

l”i

'"lml"lIII]IHHUHHMHWI










s =

Tha retall industry grew even more competitive in 2075 The
retail floor stock continued 1o increase as new malls opened,
inchuding some right next 1o Shangri-La-Plaza, In the face
of all these pressures, Shangri-La Plaza forged ahead with
its redevelopment program to mitigate the effects of stff
comge=tition.

with Shangri-La Plazas redevelopment program nearing its
tail-end, there is now a visible unified look between the Main
Wing and the East Wing. The highlights of the Main Wing
redevelopment inchade the creation of new leasable space
for additional revenue, the enhancemeant of circulation and
relail space visibility, the improvernent of artincial and natural
light sources, the creation of new feature elements, and the
construction of a mall chapel among others. All these are
ervisioned 1o make the Shang lifestyle a truly pleasurable
eupErience.

The rejuvenation of the mall goes beyond the physical, Mew
birands and concepts were alse introduced to enrich Shang's
wiorld-class portfoiio. Likewise, the mall reinforced ils re-
zoning program by addressing merchandise mix gaps and
cantinuzlly refreshing the oflfenngs in existing zones.,

Mearwhile, the mall’s marketing programs focused on efforts
to help drive tenant business and stimulate custamer traffic,
as well as further strengthen Shang'’s brand image. Through

=

synergies with retail partners, several zone-based lifestyle
themed events were mounted  throughout the year 1o
promote lenantsofferings. Various mall-wide sales generating
activities wera also held to mitigate competitive challenges
and inconveniences caused by the redevalopment works. All
of these initiatives were amply supported by comprehensive
communication effarts,

in 2015, the Shang Cineplex posted a recard-high aocupancy,
the highest level attained since its apening in 2004, With
the Shang Cineplex becoming the prefered destination of
upscale moviegoers, gross revenue of both the Cineplex and
Cirebar also grevs.

The malls productivity improvemant and cost management
efforts continued to post significant savings, notably its energy
conservation program.  Since the start of the program in
2002, curnulative savings amounting to hundreds of millions
of pesas have been realized from the Main Wing alone.

Thraugh the organizations commitment and concerted
effors, there is no docbt that the full completion of the mall's
redevelapment program in 2076 will further cement Shanagri-
lLa Plaza’s positioning as the country’s most established
upscale lifestyle destinaticn.



BOARD OF

Edward Kuok Khoon Loong

is the Chairman of the Company and alse Vice Chairman of Kerry
Holdings Limited, He has besn with the Kuok Groug since 1978 He
has a dMasters degree in Economics from the University of Wales in
the Lnited Kingdam.

Alfredo C. Ramos

is the Vice Chairman of the Company, He is the Chairman of the
Board of Anglo Prilippine Holdings, Inc, Amvil Publishing, Inc,
Carmen Copper Corporation, MBS Exprass, Inc. and Viulcan Materials
Corporation. Heis the Chairman and President of Atlas Consolidated
Mining & Development Corporation, the Philadsdll Corparation,
Mational Book Store, Inc, Vulcan Industial & Mining Corporation
and United Paragon Mining Corporation. He s also the President
of Abacus Book & Card Corporation, Crossings Departrent Stare
Corp, Power Books, Inc, and MRT Haldings Inc. He is Vice Chiirman
of Shangri-Le Plaza Corparation, MET Development Corporation,
Metro Rail Transit Corporaticon and LR Publications, Inc.

Sfohnny ). Cobankiat

is the President of Co Ban Kiat Hardware, Inc, Ace Hardware,
Philippines, and Cobn's Markeling Corp. He is Vice Chairman of the
Federation of Flipine-Chinese Chamber of Commerce, Director of
R. Mubla Securities, Inc. and of the Philipgine Hardweare Association.

Antonio €. Cojusngeo

is the Chairman of Bafiet Philippines, CAP Life Insurance Corporation,
Cinemalaya Foundation, Mantrade Development Corporation,
mabasan  Subic  Development  Corporation,  Badio Veritas,
Tanghalang Piliping, and Directores Philippines Corporation.
He is the President and Director of Calatagan Golf Club Inc. and
Canlubang Galf and Country Chak,

DIRECTORS

Marneel M. Cosico

is a Partner of Romulo, Mabanta, Buenaventura, Sayvoc & de los
Angeles Law Firrn, He is Chairman of the Construction Industry
Arbitration Commission (CIACH since 2001 and was a {ormer
Arbitrator of CIAC from 2001 to 2011 He was previously the
Presiding Judge of Branch 136 of the Regicnal Trial Court of Makati
from 1986 10 1991 and a Special Crirminal Court hudge from 1986
o 1991, He was formerly a Professor of Evidence, Chvil Procedure,
Special Proceedings and Trial Technioues &t the Aleneo de Manila
University.

Cynthia Roxas Del Castillo

is @ Partner at Romulo, Mabanta, Buenaventura, Savoc & de los
Angeles and has been with the firm for over 30 vears. She holds an
LEB lrom Aleneo, gradualed Valedictonan in 1976 and placed 11th
i the 1976 Bar Examinations. She currently serves as Carporate
secretary and Director of other various Philippine corporations.

Danila Regina l. Fojas

is the bxecutive Vice President and General Manager of Shangri-La
Plaza Corporation. She is also a Director of K54 Realty Corporation,
Shang Global City Froperties Inc, and Makati Shangri-La Hotel and
Resarts, Inc, She is the first fermale 10 graduate with honors from
the Asian Institute of Management, She completed her Masters in
Business Managernent with Distinction in 1978 and participated
in the ane year advanced top management Course in econamics
and business development &t the University of Asia and the Pacific
i 1993,



Ho Shut Kan

is the President of Kerry Properties Limited [KPL]. He is responsible
far cwersering the operations of the project companies and the
projects of KPL in Hong Keng, Macau and overseas, He is 2 non-
execulive director of Eagle Asset Managernent (CP) Limited and
mznager of Champion Real Cstate Investment Trust, which is fisted
irs Horg Kong.

Koay Kean Choon

is the Senior Project Directar of the company. He worked as M&E
danager with Kery Project Management Ltd. Hong Kong from
TUES o 2000 and as Senior Frojec) Manager for Shangri-La Hotel
Managerment Lo, froem 2000 1o 2017,

Wilkie Lee

isaProject Directorof Kerry Fraperties Led. e obtained his Bachelor's
Degree in Civil Engineering from the University of Saskatchewan,
Canada and & Masters Degree in Business Administration from the
University of Notre Dame, USA and the Londaon Business School,

Maximo . Licauco {11

is the Director of the Philodrill Corporation. He is also President of
Filstar Distributors Corporation (Hallmark Licenses) and Area Vice
Frosident of Mational Book Stare, Inc.

Kinsun Andrew Ng

is the Group Financial Contreller of the Company. He zlso serves
as Director of the varicus boards of Shang Properties affiliates
and subsidiaries. He is an assogiate member of the Hong Kong
Society of Accountants and a fellow member of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants in the LK. He graduated from the
Hong Kong Shue Yan University with a degres in Accounting,

Federico G. Noel, jr.

isthe General Counsel and the Corporate Secretary of the Company,
He is also the Corporate Secretary, General Counsel and a member
of the Board of Directors of the other Kuck Group companies in
the Philippines including the Shangri-La Plaza Corporation and the
Shangri-La Hotels. He graduated from the Ateneo Law School in
1957 with a Juris Doctor degree,

Benjamin I. Ramos

is the President of ROl Corp, an investment company.  He was
previously the President of Powerbooks, Inc, and zlso President
of Tokyo Tokyo, Inc, the largest Japanese fast focd chain in the
Philippines. He has an MBA frorm the Slanford Graduate School of
Business,

Wilfred Shan Chen Woo

is an Executive Director as well as Executive Assistant to the
hairman of the Board, Hle is a member of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of British Columbia and the Canadian Institute of
Chartered Accountants since 1985, He graduated in 1982 from
the University of British Columbia in Vancouwer, Canada with 2
Bachelor’s Degree in Commerce, majoring in Accounting and
Management Information Systems.



CORPORATE

Shieng Properties, Inc and its Board of Directors have always
recoghized and effected the globally accepted three (3) basic
principles of corporale governance; fairmess, transparency, and
accountability to all its stakeholders, Shang Properties adopted its
Corporate Governance Manual and submitted this 1o the Securities
and Exchange Commission in 2005

The following sections demonstrate the Companys compliance
wilh hese principles as detailed in the Manual during the financial
year ending December 31, 2015,

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the
Company and oversees it's businesses, strategic directions and
financial performance. 1t sets and provides the rele modeling
for the Company's values and standards ensuring further that its
ohligations 10 the Company’s sharehalders are understood and
el To this end, it assumes responsibility for strategy formulation,
corporate governance,  and  performance monitoring. The
management is delegated the authority and responsibility for the
administration of the Company within the contral and autharity
framework set by the Board In additon, the Board has alsc
delegated various responsibilities to the Executive Commitiee, the
Audit Committee and the Momination Committee, Further details
af these committess are st outin this annual report,

The number of meetings held and the attendance record of the
Board members at these meetings for the last three (3) years are
as follows:

2016* 2015 2014
Mumber of Meetings 1 5 5
Attendance - B -
Er-::cutivg [ G0 100% 1000%
?ﬂependemNﬂn—E‘.-cecutive 400 3 _TB%_ 5%
. Average B0% 85% F7%

*Wieetings are held in the vear-to-date

Board minutes kept by the Carporale Secretary, are sent 1o the
Cirectors for records, and are open for inspection.

GOVERNANCE

Board Composition

The Board is currently compased of five (5] Executive Directors and
1en (101 Mon-Executive Directars of wihich thres (3] are independent
Directors,

The Executive Directors are Messrs, Wilfred Shan Chen Woo, Roay
kean Choon, Ms Danila Begina § Fojas, Kinsun Andrew Mg, and
Federico G, Moel Jr, The Mon-Executive Directors are Edward Kuok
Khoon Loang, Alfredo O, Ramas, fohnny O Cobankiat, Antonic O
Cojuangca, Manuel M, Cosica, Cynthia Resas del Castillo, Ho Shut
kan, Wilkie Les, Maximo G Licauco L and Benjamin | Ramas, Mssre,
Cobankiat, Cojuangee and Cosico were elected Independent
Directors. The biographies of the Diractoss are set out on page 16
and 17 af this annual report, which demanstrate a diversity of skills,
expertise, experience and qualifications.

Drvision of Responsibilities

The Board has appointed a Chairman who  has  executive
respansibilities and whao provides leadershipin establishing policies
and business directions. The Chairman ensures that the Board
wiorks effectively, discharges its responsibilities, and discusses all
key and aporopriate issues in a timely manner.

The Executive Dreclors are (asked with the day-to-day running
of the Company and are responsible for the different aspects of
Shang Properlies’ Businesses,

Mon-Executive Directors bring straong  independent judgment,
knowledge and experience 1o 1he Board's deliberations. Apart fram
their appointments, the Mon-Lxecutive Directors do not have any
form of service contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries,

The Independent Directors take an active role in Board meetings,
participate in Board Commillees, contribute to the developrent of
stralegies and policies, and take the lead when potential conflicts
ol interest arise.

Directors® Re-election and Removal

The Directors of the Compary are elected during the annual
general meeting and hold office Tor one (1) year and until Lheir
successors are elected and deerned qualified,



Access ta Information

all Dirsctors are continually updated with legal and regulatory
develapments, reguiarly receive comprehensive information abous
business activities, financial highlights and operations review of
the Company's business and market changes, and developments
s that they are up-lo-date and are well-informed during Board
meetings and o faclitate in discharging their respansibilities.
[he Board members are provided with Board papers and relevant
raterials prior to the intended meeting date, including business
and financial reports covering the Companys pringipal business
activities and are at liberty to contact managerment for enquiries
ancd 1o abtain further information, when required. All Directors have
unrestricted access o the advice and services of the Corporate
Secretary, who ensures that they receive appropriate and timely
informatlon for their decision-making and that Board procedures
are Deing followed. The Directors can obtain independent
professional advice at the Companys expense.

DELEGATION BY THE BOARD
Executive Commitice

The Executive Commitlee consists of fve (57 members of the
Board, It mests regularly and operates as 2 general management
committee chaired by Wilfred Shan Chen Woo, an Executive
Cirectar and Executive Assistant to the Chairman, The Executive
Commrmilies meets 1o discuss the corparate and development
strategies of the Company.

Nowmination Contmiliees

Pursuant to s Corporate Gavernance Manual, the Board created
a Momination Committes in August 2005 composed of three
{31 Directors with at least one (1) Independent Director of the
Company. The committes acts in an advisory capacity and makes
recarmmendations to the Board, It promulgates the gquidelines or
criteria to govern the conduct of the nominations of the Directors.
The same is properly disclosed in the Company's information
staternent or as well as any reports that are submitted 1o the
Securities and Exchanage Commission.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT
Financtal Reporting

The Board is responsible for the preparation of the financial
statements, which adopt generally acceptad accounting standards
in the Philippines, ensuring appropriate accounting policies have
besn used and applied consisiently, and reasonatle and prudent
judgrnents and estimates nave been made. The auditing and
reporting on the financial statements are the prirmary responsitality
of the external auditor whose “Auditor's Report 1o the sharehalders
is included in this annual repaort,

Towards the end of the year, the Board reviews the finandial
projections of the group for the financial vear ending 31 Dacembear
ore ary aiven year The Board has continued 1o adopt & going
concern basis in preparing the financial statements 1o ensure that
any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may
affect the Compary'e ability 1o manage effectively are met.

Futernal Controls

The Board is responsible for maintaining an adequate system of
internal controls and reviewing their effectivensss. The systemn
of internal control is designed to faclitate effective and efficient
operations, safeguard its assets, and ensure that the quality of
internal and external reporting comply with applicabie laws and
requlations. In establishing internal controls, the Compary has
taken into consideration the nature and extent of the Company’s
business, operational and  fAnancial risks, the fikelihood of
crystallization of such risks, and the costs of implementing the
refevant internal controls. These intermal controls are desigred to
manage, but not eliminate, the sk of {gilue o achieve Dusiness
objectives and provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance
against the nsks of material misstaiement, fraud or losses,

During the year ended 3% December 2015, the Board, through
the Audit Committee, reviewed the risks and evalusted the
internal contral framework that operates within the Company
and considered that the system of internal controls in operation
in effective,

More details on the Compary's internal contrel framewark and the
Board's process to evaluate its system of internal cantrals is set out
iy the seclion headed internal controls an page 20 of this annual
report.



Audit Commitiee

Pursuant Lo ils Corporate Governance Manual, the Board created
an Audit Commilles in August 2002 currendly composed  of
independent Mon-Executive Directors. Each member s required
to have at least an adequate understanding of or competence
on most of the Company's financial management sysiems and
ervirarment.

The major responsibilities of the Audit Committes ars;

Tar check that all hnancial reports comply with pertinent
accounting standards, including requlatory requirements;
T perform oversight financial management functions
specifically in the areas of managing credit, market,
liguidity, operational, legal and other risks of the Comparny,
and crisis management;

Te perform direct interface Tunctions with the internal and
external auditors,

To elevale 1o international standards the accounting
and auditing processes, practices and methodaolagies,
and to develop, among athers, a timetable within which
the accounting systern of the Company will be 100%
compliant with International Accounting Standards.

Ter develop a transparent financial manageament system
that will ensure the inteqgrity of internal contral activitics
throughout  the Company  through 2 step-by-step
pracedures and palicies handbook that will be used by
the entire crganization,

The number of meetings held and the attendance record of the
Committes members al these meetings for the last three (3] vears
are as follows:

2016* 2015 2014
Mumber of Committes Mestings 1 5 5
Attendance G0 B2 s

*Weetings are held in the year-te-date

Auditor's Remuneration

Churing the financial wear ended 31 December 2015, the fees paid /
payable to the auditor in respect of the audit and non-audit services
provided by the external auditor to the Campany amounted 1o
Php. 0 roillicn

INTERNAL CONTROLS

Tne Board is responsible for maintaining and reviewing the
effectiveness of the Company’s system of internal controls. The
internal controls are designed 1o meet the Company's particular
needs, minimize 1he risks 10 which it is exposed, manage rather
than eliminate the risks 10 achieve business objectives, and provide
reasanable but not abselute assurance against misstatlements ar
losses. The Company's internal control framewaork covers {f) the
setting of objectives, budgets, and targets; {il) the establishment of
reqular reparting of financial information, in particular, the tracking
of deviztions between actual performances and budgets/targets;
iiii} the delegation of authority; and (iv) the establishment of clear
lines of accountability.

Strategies and objectives of the Company as awhaole are determinad
tyy the Board. Budgets are prepared annually and reviewsd by
the Board. In implementing these strategies and achieving these
abjectives, each Executive Director has specific responsibilities
for monitoring the canduct and operations of individual business
units within the Compary. This includes the review and approval
of business stralegiss and plans, the setting of business-related
performance targets a5 well as the design and implementation of
irternal controls.

Perindic financial information is provided 1o the Executive
Directors. Variance analysis between actual performances and
targets are prepared and documented for discussion at Board
mieetings, with explznations noted for any material variances and
deviations between actual performances and budgets £ targets.
This helps the Board and the Company’s Management 1o monitor
it's business operations and to plan an o prudent and timely basis,
Other regular and ad hoc reports are prepared for the Board and its
warious commilless, (o ensure that the Directors are provided with
all the requested information in 2 timely and appropriate manner,

To allow for delegation of authority as well as 1o enhance
segregation of duties and accountability, a clear arganizational
structure exists detailing different levels of authority and control
responsibilites within each business unit of the Campany. Certain
speciic matters are reserved for the Board's decision and cannaot
be delegated. These include, ammang others, the approval of annual
andinterim results, annual budgets, capital structure, declaration of
dividends, material acquisitions, disposals and cagital expenditures,
Board structure and its compaosition and succession,

I acldition, the Board also manitors its intermal contrals through
a program of internal audits. The internal audit teamn reviews the
major aperational, nancial and risk management controls of the
Campany oh a continuing basis, and aims to cover all its major
aperaticns an a rotational basis, The scope of review and 1he gudit



program of the intemal audic team, formulated ana based an arisk
assessment approach, with focus on areas with relatively higher
percepved risks, are appraved by the Audit Committer at the end
ol the preceding financial year in conjunciion with the Company’s
serior management, During s visis, the inteemal audit t=am also
erisures that approprizee controls are in place and delciencies o
irregulantes (if any! are rectified.

The intermal zudil function renats directly 7o the Audin Commities,
Accordingly, reqular internal audit reparts are circulated to the
Audit Committee members, the Chief Financial Officer, and the
external auditors for review in accordance with the approved
internal audit orogram.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS
Investor Relations

Communication Channels

In order to develop and maintain a continuing  investor’s
relaticnship. program with its sharsheldars, the Compaty has
established various channels of communication:

i) Shareholders can raise ary comments on the performance
and future dirsctions of the Company with the Diractors
at the annual general meeting.

results o

il The Company distributes the  annual

sharcholders
it The  Companys  websile  wwwshangoroperties,
com  conlains  important  corporate infarmaticon,

bicgraphical details of Directars and senior management,
organizational structure, arnual and interim reports,
major historical developments with comprehensive and
user-friendly information about the Company, as well as
announcements and circulars issued by the Campany
in order to enable the Comparny's sharehalders and the
investar community to have fimely access to updated
inforrmation,

iv) Sharcholders and members of the imestor commuonity
are welcome to raise enguiries through the Legal
Cepartment, whose contact details are available in the
Compary's website wwwshangproperties.com

General Meetings

Tre general meeting provides a forum for the Board to
communicate with the sharcholders of the Company,

Tofacilitate enforcement of sharehaoldersrights, significant
issues are dealt with under separate resclutions at general
reatings.

Tre 2014 Annual Stockholders’ Meeting of the Company
was held on 18 June 2015 at the Garden Ballroom, Edsa
Shangri-La, Ortigas  Center, Mandaluyong City. The
following resalutions were passed during the meeting:

1. To adopt the audited financial staterments and
the repart of the directors and the auditors for the
finandizl vear ended 31 December 2014

2. To ratify the acts of the Board of Directors and
the danagement since the annual meeting of
stockholders held on 24 June 2014,

3. Toelect the memizers of the Board of Directors
for the year 2015-2006, namely: Koay Kean Choon,
lethinmy O Cobankial, Antonic O, Cojuangon,
anuel M. Cosico, Cynthia Roxas del Castille,
s, Danila Reaina | Fojas, Ho Shut Kan, Edward Buok
Khoon Loong, Wilkie Lee, Maximo G. Licauco |1,
Kinsun Andrew Mg, Federico G, Mol r,
Aliredo C. Ramas, Benjamin |, Ramos. and
Wilfred Shan Chen Woo

4. To re-appoint SGY as external auditors for the year
2015-2016
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FINANCIAL g HIGHLIGHTS

2015 2014 Change
Turnover (Php M) 8284 7hi2 8.8%
Profit attributable to shareholders (Php M) 2850 2735 4%,
Shareholders’ equity (Php M) 25931 23819 5.5%
Earnings per share {Php Ctv) 0593 0574 4.2%
Met asset value per share {Php) 5446 S002 8.9%
Share price at year end (Php) 2130 3300 -5,2%
Price earnings ratio at year end {Ratio) 5.230 5,745 -S0%
Market capitalisation at year end (Php M) 14,011 15,054 -0.5%
Dividend per share {Php Ctv) 016 0.4 14.8%
Dividend payout ratio (o) 25.0% 23.5% 101.2%
Dividend yield at year end {%a) 50% 4.1% 211%
Operating Margin (%) 59.1% 57.2% 3.4%
Return on equity (%) 11.0% 11.5% -4.3%
Return on total financing {%%) 78% 8.0% -3.2%
Interest cover {Ratio) 24652 19121 28.9%
Gross interest as a % of total borrowings (%o} 165 1.5% -13.5%
Current ratio (Ratio) 21 24 -
Total Debt to Equity {%a) 78.3% 853% -8.2%
Total Bank Loans to Equity {%a) 48.1% 51.0% =5.8%

Turnover Earnings Wet Asset Value Profit Attributable
PhP Millions Per Share Per Share to Shareholders
Phi? PhP PhP Million

0.598 2350




STOCK BEHAVIOR: QUARTERLY SHARE PRICE

For the past three (3) years, the Company's share prices have traded as follows:

2oy GaPhe)  (nPh) W4 ) (npho Am3 Erhn hiry
HriEQuaHer 5 Sl L Recowder 0@l @05 _CRDGEE  SSina QOO
Second Quarter 4490 311 Second Quarter 3480 208 Second Quarter 395 27
- Third Quarter 3.37 310 Erd QL‘IE:FIE.F ”- 347 3.20 Third Quarter 3.69 300
Fourth Quarte-r 329 3.1].1 _FOE E_’.';.larrer _3.6{]__ 218 . Fourth Cuarter 3.2;3' : 290

STOCK PERFORMANCE AND SHAREHOLDER MATTERS
Dividends
For the year 2015, the Board of Directors declared total cash dividends of Php 28 Million (20714:Phpad3 Million)

Shareholder Profile

as of 31 December 2015, the Company had 5,403 stockholders. Common shares outstanding as of said date are 4,764,058982. The
Campany’s stockholders owning at least 5% or mare of the comman shares outstanding as of 31 December 2015 are:

Rank Shareholders Mo. of Shares Percentage %
1 TRAVEL AIM IMVESTMENT BAY 1,648,869 372 3461
2 PCD MOMIMEE CORPORATION (FILIFING) 2562,599.48] 55.86

*This company is & wholly owned subsidiary of Keery Properties Limited

NN NE REMORT



10-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

2015 2014 2013
Profit and loss account ~ Php'000 Php'000 Fhp'000
Turnover 8,283,689 AE12.188 6,908,465
Operating profit - 4898066 4,351,455 2,244,160
Interest expense & bank charges 4201,559) (227 0a6) (184,962}
Share in profit (loss) of associated companies T0E58 (9,653} (4.674)
Profit before taxation A {67 oo AL 3054530
Taxation __{_1,_1__3’9,_] 39} {‘3‘95.502} (_?51,43[]}
Profit after taxation 3578027 3119184 2,303,100
Minority interests  (72814) (383.818) (291,827)
Profit attributable to shareholders 2849813 2735376 2011273
Assets and liabilities .
Fixed assets 41,800,783 38,389,161 7,295,207
Associated company 491,948 410,790 2441310
Other assets 63411 B840 37,286
Met current assets/(liabilities) 9452538 Q612608 S.457,495
21895681 44481, 113 35031093
Long term liabilities | (19597098)  (0696779)  (10240307)
Total equity 32,301,533 27,784,333 24,790,761




Statement of Management’s Responsibility

for the Financial Statements

March 4, 2016

To the Securities and Exchange Commission
SEC Building, EDSA, Greenhills
City of Mandaluyong, Metro Manila

The management of Shang Properties, Inc. is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consclidated
financial statements as of December 31, 2015 and 2014, including the additional components attached therain, in
accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards. This responsibility includes designing and implementing
internal contrals relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies, and
making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

The Board of Directors reviews and approves the consolidated financial statements and submits the same to the
stockholders.

SyCip Gorres Velayo & Co, the independent auditors, appointed by the stockhaolders have examined the consolidated
financial statermnents of the Company in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing, and in its report to the
stockholders, have expressed their opinion on the fairness of presentation upon completion of such examination.

Signed under cath of by the following:

! —
ard Kuok
Chairman of the Board

/[ idse !
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d Woo
Executive Assistant to the Chairman

/"

Kinsun kg
Vice-President — Group Financial Controfler/ Acting Chief Financial Officer
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Audit Committee Report

For the year ended 31 December 2013

The Audit Committee of The Board has been established since
2002 is composad of three (3) Directors, ane (1) Executive
and twao {2) Non-executive Directors, of whom 2 (bwao) are
independent directars and with audit experience. The chair of
the Audit Committes is an independent director,

The Audit Committee operates pursuant to the approved
CAudit Committee Charter. In general, the Audit Commijttee
is responsible for assisting the Board in its responsibilities in
manitering the integrity of the Group’s financial reporting
process, the financial statements and repeorts of the Company,
the compliance with legal and regulatory requirements,
the external auditor's qualifications and independence, and
the performance of the Group's internal audit function and
external auditor.

In performing its responsibilities, set out below is a summary
of the work performed by the Audit Committee during the
financial year ended 31 December 2015.

(i The Audit Committee reviewed the draft annual and
interim financial statements and the draft results
announcements of the Company, focusing on main
areas of judgment, consistency of and changes in
accounting policies and adequacy of information
disclosure prior to recommending them to the
Board for approval.

[y  The Audit Committes reviewed, in conjunction
with the external auditor, the developments of
accounting standards and assessed their potential
impacts on the Group's financial statements.

(i} The Audit Committee assessed the independence
of the Company’s external auditor, prior to formally
engaging the external auditar to carry out the audit
for the Company's financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2015.

{iv)  Prior to the actual commencerment of the audit, the
Audit Committes discussed the proposed scope of
work and approach of the audit with the external
auditor. Upon completion of the audit, the Audit
Cormmittee reviewed the results of the external
audit, and discussed with the external auditor on
any significant findings and audit issues,

v The Audit Committee recommended ta the Board
regarding the appointment and remuneration of
the external auditor,

vi)  The Audit Committee reviewed and approved the
internal audit program, reviewed the internal audit
reports and discussed any significant issues with
the internal audit team and the Group's senior
managemeant.

wil}  The Audit Committee reviewed the independence of
the internal audit function and the level of support
and co-operation given by the Group’s management
to the internal audit team, as well as the resources of
the internal audit team when undertaking its duties
and responsibilities,

{wiii) The Audit Commitiee reviewed the adequacy and
effectiveness of the Group's systems of internal
controls, through a review if the work undertaken
by the Group's internal and external auditor, written
representations by the senior management of each
of the Group’s business divisions and discussions
with the Board,

During the financial year ended 31 December 2015, the Audit
Committee met three times and the Audit Committee also
conducted meetings with the Group’s senior management,
the external auditor and the internal audit team from time
to time. Minutes of the Audit Committee Meetings are
documented and circulated to the Board for information. The
Audit Committee also reports and presents its findings and
makes recommendations for consideration and discussion at
Board meetings.

The Audit Committes reviewed the financial statements
of the Group for the year ended 31 Decernber 2015 prior to
recommending them to the Board for approval.

Members of the Audit Committee:

MR. JOHNNY |, COBAMEIAT
Chairman

MR. ALFREDO C, RAMOS
Member

MR. MAMUEL M. COSICD
fember

G015 ANNUAL REPORE 23
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Independent Auditors’ Report

The Stockholders and the Board of Directors
Shang Properties, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consclidated financial statements of Shang Properties, Inc. and Subsidiaries, which comprise the
consolidated statements of financial position as al Decemnber 31, 20015 and 2014, and the consolidated statements of comprehensive
income, slatements of changes in equity and statements of cash flows for cach of the three years in the period ended December 31, 20135,
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management iz responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these conzolidated financial statements in accordance with
Philippine Financial Eeporting Standards, and for such internal control 28 management determines is necessary to cnahle the preparation
of consolidated financial staternents that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on cur audits, We conducted owr audits
in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are fres from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain awdit evidence about the amounts and dizsclosures in the consolidated financial
statements, The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraed or error. In making those nisk assessments, the auditor considers internal
control relevant to the entity s preparation and fair presentation of the consalidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectivencss of the entity s internal
control. An audit alzo includes evaluating the approprateness of accounting policies used and the reasonablensss of accounting estimates
made by management, as well as cvaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statcments.

W believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and approprate to provide a bazis for our audit opinion.
Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present Fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Shang Properties, [ne.
and Subsidiaries as at December 31, 2015 and 2014, and their financial performance and their cash flows for each of the three years in the
period ended December 31, 2015 in accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards.

S5YCIP GOREES VELAYO & CO.

fodiar ol wi
Arnel F. De Jesus %_u-h‘

Partner

CPA Certificate Mo, 43285

SEC Accreditation No. 0075-AR-3 (Group A),
February 14, 2013, valid until April 30, 2016
Tax Identification Mo, 152-884-385

BIR Accreditation Mo, 08-0019%8-15-2015,
June 26, 2015, valid until June 25, 2018

PTR No. 5321627, January 4, 2006, Makati City

March 4, 2014

SHANG FROIERTIES



SHANG PROPERTIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements

61 Fioangaal

Position

December 31
2015 2014

ASSETS
Current Assels
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 5) B4,041,169,742 P2O11,004.820
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (Mote 63 34,882,100 33,012,524
Recetvables (Motes 7 and 31) 2,172,434,657 4,162,249 384
Properties held for sale (Mate 8) T160,774,272 5,773,117.6%94
Input tax and other current assets (MNote 93 1,765,695.509 | BO5 192 006
Total Current Assets 15,174,956,280 14,684,576, 428
Noncurrent Assels
Installment contract receivable - net of current portion (Mote T} 660,986,703 g
lrvestments in associates and joint venture (Mote 101 491,048 350 410,790,229
Thvestment properties {Note 13) 28,178,567.875 27110367 488
Real estate development projects (Note 14) 13,576,917,290  11.211,283,922
Available-for-sale inancial assets (Note 13) 504,872,842 S02,822.842
Property and equipment {Note 16 135,297,925 67,009,417
Goodwll (Mote 12 269870864 260 3T 864
Dreferred meome tax assels - net {MNote 297 2355860271 356,407 946
Cither noneurrent assels (Mote 17) 63,411,421 8,403, 754
Total Noncurrent Assets 44, 117,733,541 39,997 5445 462
TOTAL ASSETS £39.202 680821 P54 682,122,890
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current Liahilitics
Accounts pavable and other current liahilities (Motes 1% and 31) B5557 385891 P483, 213,157
Current portion of!

Installment pavable (Mote ) 153,152 398 -

Bank loans (Mote 153 867,751,502 AH3,333.333

Deposits from tenants (MNate 20) 477 494,580 484,423 000

Deferred lease income (Note 207 6,320,518 15,163,625
Income lax payahle 183,238 555 127,582,324
Dividends pavable (Notes 11 and 22) 148 404,960 104,294 980
Total Current Liabilities 7394008764 6201010419
MNoncurrent Liahilities
[mstallment pavable - net of current partion {Note &) T09.915,105 —
Accrued emplayee benefits (Note 27) 49,815,160 68,502,035
Bank loans - net of current partion (Mote 197 11,596,577,925 11,565,335,572
Deeterred meome tax habilities - net {INote 29 6,688,462,938 6,589,901 591
Dieposits from tenants - net of current portion {MNaote 201 538,150,247 494.021,217
Teferred leaze income - net of current portion {Mate 20) 14,176,917 20.018,732
Deposit for future stock subscription (MNote 117 - 1,959 D00 000
Total Noncurrent Liabilities 19,597.098,292 20,696,779, 247
Total Liabilities 26,001,107.056 26,897, 789,666
(Forward)

2015 ANNUAL REIMORT

24



December 31

2015 2014
EQUITY
Lquity attributable to equity halders of the Parent Company:
Capital stock ( Note 21) P4TG058982  P4.764,058 082
Additional patd-in capital 834439607 834,430,607
Treasury shares (Mote 21) {6,850,064) (6, B0, 006
Oither components of equity (Motes 15 and 27) (7,126,043) {8.0468.511)
Retamed earmings {Motes 21 and 22 20346650494 18234935332
25931,172.976 23,818,537 346
Equity atributable to non-controlling imterests (Mote 113 6,370,409,789 3,963,795, 878
Total Equily 32,301,582,765  27.784.333.224
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY B39202 6ROR2L  B534.6R2,122 390

See aocompanying Notes to Comsolicheted Firearcial Statements,

30 spANG PROPERTIES
[ Fr e =it



SEHANG PROPERTIES, INCL ANTY SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements

of Comprehensive Income

Years Ended December 31
2015 2014 2013
REVENUES
Condominium sales 24,654,102, 798 B3, 7604277593 B3,935,170,304
Rental 2,676,323,065 2,624 893 646 2,338.990,151
Cinema O1,681,7HG 60,367,560 56,448,300
7391107649 0,449 539,050 0,330.000,204
COST AND EXPENSES : :
Cost of condominm sales (Mote 24) 2.374.666,153 24472444170 2901014104
Stafl costs (Mote 26) 439,471,807 295,539 144 241,336,108
Taxes and licenses (Mot 25 219,809,224 205,446,842 145,063,414
General and administrative (Mote 23] 221,094,023 193,324,687 156,933 328
Unreimbursed share in common expenses (MNote 28) 68,241,053 83,943 421 S5, 092 BE0
Depreciation and amoritzation (MNele 16) 22513947 20,414,157 1B, 177996
Insuranece 19,827,030 17620267 15681,448
3385623257 3,260, 732,640 3,664,299 358
OTHER INCOME
Interest (Mote 237 236,873,016 269,361,029 279,426 86T
Crains on:
Fair value adjustment of investment
properties (Mote 13) 549,224,660 2 i
Remeasurement arising from husiness
combinations (Tote 12 - 824,431,141
Eeversal of impairment loss onreal astate
development project (Mota 14) = = 181,954,697
Fareign exchange sains - net 0,248,738 REOT30 4081, T
Ciher income - net (Note 233 100,235,005 G7,975,685 112,392,231
592,581,419 1,162,648 585 577,835,592
SILARE IN NET INCOME (LOSSES) OF
ASSOCTIATES AND A JOINT VENTURE
(Mote 100 T0,658,121 {9.692,903) (4,674,079
INTEREST EXPENSE AND BANK CHARGES
iMote 23) 201,558,575 227060, 344 184,961,863
INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAX 4,767,1653557 4. 114,685 757 3,054,529.636
FROVISION FOR INCOME TAX (Note 29) 1,189,138,629 995,501,739 751,429,724
NET INCOME 3.578,026,728 3.119.194.038 2.303,009,932
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)
Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss:
Change in fair value of available-tor-sale
financial assels, nel of lax ellect (Mote 13) 1,435,000 330,00 210,000
Transtation adjusiments 405,500 17,554 356, 540
Items that will not be reclassified 1o profit or loss:
Remeasurement gams {losses) on defined
i benefit liability, net of tax effect (Mote 27) {920,032) (8,756,520 23,248,589
920,468 (¥,389.275) 24015129
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME B3.57T8.047,1% P3 110804783 P2,327,115.061

(Forward)
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Years Ended December 31

2015 2014 2013
Nel income atfributable to:
Fquity holders of the Parent Company B2 840812817 P2,735375940 PLOT1.272641
MNen-controlling interests 728,213,911 383818112 291,827,291
P3.578,026,728 P3, 119,194,058 P2303.099.932
Taotal compre hensive income attributable to:
Buity holders of the Parent Campany ¥1.850,733,285 - 2726980671 P2035 287770
Nan-contrelling interests 728,213,911 383818112 291,827,291
B3.578.047,19% B3110.304 783 B2A2T 115,061
BASIC AND DILUTED EARNINGS
PER SHARE (Mote 300
Based on net mcome B{.508 POLST4 PL422
Based on lotal comprehensive income F0.599 PO.573 0427

See aecompaaying Notes to Corsolidated Fireciol Statements,
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SHANG PROPERTIES. INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
Years Ended December 31
25 2014 13
CASH FLOWS FROM OFERATING
ACTIVITIES
[ncome before income tax P4,T6T 165357 14,1 14.605 797 13.054,529.634
Adjustments for:
Ciain on;
- Fair value adjustment of investment :
properties (MNote 13) {549,224,660) - =
Remeasurement arisimg from business
combinations (ole 12) - (824.431.141% -
Eeversal of impairment loss on real estate
development project (MNote 14) - - (181,934,607
[Disposal of investment in associate
(Mote 23) - - (17.438,767)
Sale of property and equipment (Mote 23) (724,894) - {216983)
Interest income (Mote 23) (236,873,016) (269,361.029) (279.426,86T)
Interest expense (Note 23) 193,952,916 225,860,264 154,388,327
Share in net losses (income) of associates
and joint venture (Note 10) (70,658,121) 9,692,903 4,674,079
Dhvidend income (MNote 23) {40,033.691) (13.234,198) C1EE23.456)
Amortization of discount of deferred leasze
income (Mot 207 (25,370,048) (92,979.585) 7.184,470
Depreciation and smortization (Nofe 16) 22513967 20414157 18,177 555
Unrealized foreign exchange losses - net {6,248,738) {830,730 (3,525,257
Fair value adjustment of financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss (Mote 23) {L869,576) (2,663 820) 1,926,992
Proviston for bad debts (Note 25) - 932 363 -
Operaling meome before working capital changes 4,052,629 496 3,166,084 981 2,769 495 493
Deecrease (increase) in:
Receivables 1,512,381,838 (300,351.2600  (1,949.033,659)
Properties held for sale (522,784,68T)  (2844.722312) 306,915,626
Input tax and other current assets 39496497 {469,044, 4423 (40082317
Real estate development project - - (21,890,467
Increase (decrease) in:
Accounts pavable and other current liabilities T09,998, 749 1.803,634,063 598,743,103
Dieferred lease income 7,885,426 36,941,351 9,314,747
Accrued emplovee benefits {20,001,206} 15,762,280 2300786
Cash generated from operations 5,779.6006,113 1318314861 2573231240
Tncame taxes paid (940,563,195) (745.899,225) (607.138.948)
Interest received 53319202 32,141, 486 51389706
et cash provided by operating activities 4,892 362,120 Gl 557 122 2017481 9498

{(Forward)
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Years Ended December 31

2015 2014 20013
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING
ACTIVITIES
Additions to;
Investments in associates and joint
venture (Mote 100 (#10,500,000) (171.5,000,000) {16, 100, 0000
Investment properties (Mote 13} (518,475,727 {367 641,538} (1,589,435 5911
lieal estate development projects ' '
{Motes 12and 14) (2,365,633.368) 284, 8TTO0TS -
Property and equipment (Mote 1G) {92,606,564) (17,541,185 {14, 766,250
Cither noncurrent assets (Mate 17) 5,082,333 (15,931,785) 5,669,539
Dividends received (Mote 23) 40,033,691 15,234,198 18,823,456
Proceeds from sale of!

Property and equipment (MNote 23) TI4.894 - 567,171

[nvestment in associate Mate 10} - - 92,000,000
Acguisition of a subsidiary,

net of cash acquired (Note 12) - (1,465,048 4973 =
Net cash used in investing activities (2,941, 375,041) (1,581,051,724) (1,493 241 675
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING

ACTIVITIES
Froceeds from loan avaithment,

net of debt 1ssue costs (Mate 19) 2,211,493.915 3734336434 1, <M 000,000
Payments ol

Loan principal (MNote 19) (1,595,833 333) (047.619,048) (952, 980,952)

Interest (Note 19) (177,216,122) (168,584,440) (182,181,047}
Cash dividends paid to

Stockholders {750,447675) (359,408,273) (520,922 320)

Non-controlling shareholders of subsidianes

(Note 1) (226,080,000) (376, 800,000) (164, 850,0007

Inerease (decrease) in deposits from tenants 11,012 320 (6,595,557} 183,105 842
Net cash provided by {used in) financing activitics (827,070,895) 1995331116 {237,828 486)
NET EFFECTS OF EXCHANGE RATE

CHANGES ON CASH AND CASIL

EQUIVALENTS (Note 5) 6,248,738 721,363 4,081,797
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH

EQUIVALENTS 1,130,164,921 LS8 87T 200,493 634
CASH AND CASIT EQUIVALENTS AT

BEGINNING OF YEAR 2,911,004,820 1891 440,043 1,600,953 3080
CASH ANID CASH EQUIVALENTS AT

END OF YEAR B4,041,169,742 BLOTLO04820 P1LE91.446,943

See aecompaaping Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Corporate Information and Authorization for Tssue of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Corporate Information

Shang Propertics, Inc. (the Parenl Company), a corporation duly organized and existing in the
Philippines, was incorporated and registered with the Philippine  Sceuritics and  Exchange
Commission (SEC) on October 21, 1987 1o acquire, own, develop, subdivide, sell, mortgage,
exchange, lease or hold for investment, real estate of all kinds,

The Parent Cﬂmpany's.rt;gislm'ml office address, which is also its principal p;],aoe of business, is
Administration Office, Shangri-La Plaza Mall, EDSA corner Shaw Boulevard, Mandaluyong City,

The Parent Company’s and Subsidiaries™ (collectively referred to as the Group) businesses include
property investment and development, real estate management, leasing, mall and carpark operations.

Shang Properties Realty Corporation (SPRC. a wholly owned subsidiary) is the developer of The
Shang Grand Tower Project (I5GT), located in Makati City, The St Francis Shangri-La Place
Project (TSFSP) and the Ons Shangri-La Place Project (OSP), both located in Mandaluyong City.

Shang Property Developers, Inc. (SFDIL a wholly owned subsidiary) is the developer of Shang
Salcedo Place Project (S517), located in Makati City.

Acepusition of 2006 Faquity Interest in Shang Global City Properties, fne (SGCPH and Fort
Bonifacio Shangri-la Hatel, Tre, (FESHI) from a Third Party

On April 30, 2014, the Parent Company, through its wholly owned subsidiaries, Shang Global City
Holdings, Inc. (SGCHI) and Shang Fort Bonifacio Holdings, Inc. (SFRHI), acquired additional 20%
interest in SGCPI and FBSHI, respectively, which were owned by a third party for a purchase price
of PL700,000,000. Prior to the acquisition, the Group owned 40% equity mterest in 3GCPL and
FBSHI. On December 17, 2014, the SEC approved the merger of SGCPI and FBSHI, with SGCPL
as the surviving entity {see Note 12),

Incorporation of The Rise Development Company, Ine. (TRODCT)

In 2013, the Board of KRC (KPFI Realty Corporation) approved the redevelopment of its real estate
project (see Note 14). As such, on April 22, 2014, TRDCT was incorporated and registered with the
SEC. On the same date, KRC transferred its contractual obligations in The Rise Project located in
Makati City to TRDCL As of December 31, 2015 and 2014, the percentage of completion of the
project is 10.00% and 1.88%, respectively.

Authorization for Issue of the Consolidated Financial Statements

The consolidated financial statements have been approved and authorized for ssuc in accordance
with a resolution of the Board of Dhirectors (the Board) on March 4, 2016,

Summary of Significant Accounting and Financial Reporting Policies

Basis of Preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost basis, except for
investment properties, financial asscts at fair value through profit or loss (FVPL) and available-for-
sale {AFS) financial assets that have been measured at fair value, The consolidated financial
statements of the Group are presented in Philippine Peso (Peso), which is the Parent Company’s
functional and presentation currency, with amounts rounded Lo the nearest Peso.
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Statement of Compliance
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Philippine Financial
Eeporting Standards (PFRS) as issued by the Financial Reporting Standards Council (FRSC).

Basis of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Parent Company and
all of its subsidiaries as al December 31, 2015 and 2014 and for each of the three years in the period
ended December 31, 2013,

Subsidiaries are entities over which the Group has control. Control is achieved when the Group is
exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the subsidiary and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over the subsidiary. Specifically, the Group controls the
subsidiary it and only if the Group has:

= Power over the subsidiary (i.c. existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant
activities of the subsidiary),

= Exposure, or rights. fo variable returns from its involvement with the subsidiary, and

= The ability to use its power over the subsidiary to atfeet its returns,

When the Group has less than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group
considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power over an investee,
including;

= The contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the investee,
*  Rights arising from other contractual arrangements, and
*  The Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

The Group re-assesses whether or not it controls an investee iff facts and circumstances indicate that
there are changes to ong or more of the three clements of control. Consolidation of a subsidiary
beging when the Group obtains confrol over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control
of the subsidiary. Assets, liabilitics, income and cxpenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income from the date
the Group gains control until the date the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an
equity transaction. If the Group loses conlrol over a subsidiary, it:

=  Derecognizes the assets (including goodwilly and Labilities of the subsidiary.

= Derecognizes the carrving amount of any NCI (non-controlling interest),

= Derecognizes the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity.

= Recognizes the fair value of the consideration recemved.

= Recognizes the fair value of any investment retained.

" Recogmizes any suplus or defcil in profit or ss.

* Reclassifies the parent’s share of components previously recognised in OCI (other
comprehensive mcome) to profit or loss or relained carnings, as appropriate, as would be
required if the Group had directly disposcd of the related assets or liabilities.

3
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Profit or loss and cach component of other comprehensive income are attributed to the equity holders
of the Parent of the Group and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the NCI having
a deficit balance. When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries
to align their accounting policies with the Group’s accounting policies.  All intra-group assets and
liabilitics, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between members of the
Group are eliminated m full on consolidation.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting period as the Parent

Company, using consistent accounting policies.

The following are the subsidiaries for which the Parent Company acls as the principal decision

maker:
Effective Percentages of Ownership
2015 2014
Property Development;
SPRC 100.00%% 100.00%
SPDI 100.00%% 100.00%
TRIDCI (Mote 14) 100.00% 100.00%
SGCPI (Note 12) 60.00% 60.00%
Leasing:
SPSI(SPI Parking Services, Inc) 100.00%% 100.00%%
SLPC (Shangri-La Plaza Corporation ) 100.00% 100.00%
KS5A (K5A Really Corporation) 2. H% 3290%
Real Estate:
IPPT (Ivory Post Propertics, Inc) 1L 100,00%
ERC 100.00% 100.00%
MBPI (Martin B. Properties, Inc.) 100.00% 100.00%
NCRI (New Contour Realty, Inc.) 100.00% 100.00%
PSI (Perfect Sifes, Inc.) LN 100.00%
SFBHI (Shang Fort Bonifacio Holdings, Inc.) 100.0%% 100.00%
SGCHI (Shang Global City Holdings, Inc.) 100,00 100.00%
Property Management:
EMSC (KPP Management Services Corporation) 1. 00% 100.00%
SPMSI (Shang Property Management Scrvices,
Inc.) 1. 100.00%
Others:
Gipsey (BVI Company) 100.00% 100.00%
SHIL (Silver Hero Investment Limited BV
Company) 100.00% 100.00%
ELHI (EPHI Logistics Holdings, Inc.} G0.00% 60 00%%

Except for Gipsey and SHIL., which were incarporated in the British Virgin [slands and uses [ong
Kong dollars (HKIY) as its functional currency, all the other subsidiaries were incorporated in the

Philippines which uses Peso as their functional currency.
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Mew and Amended Standards and Interpretations
The Group apphied for the lirst time certam standards and amendments, which are effective for
annual periods beginming on or after January 1, 2015

The nature and the impact of each new standard and amendment are deseribed below:

" Amendments to PAS 19, Defined Banefit Plans: Emplovee Contribattions

PAS 19 requires an entity fo consider contributions from emplovees or third parties when
accounting for defined benefit plans. Where the contributions are linked to service, they should
be atiributed to pericds of service as a negative benefit. These amendments clarify that, if the
amount of the contributions s independent of the number of years of semvice, an enlity s
permitted to recognize such contributions as a reduction in the service cost in the period in
which the service is rendered, instead of allocating the contributions to the periods of service.
This amendment is effective for annual periods beginning on or after July 1, 2014. This
amendment is not relevant to the Group, since none of the entities within the Group has defined
benefit plans with contributions from employess or third parties.

Annual Improvements to PFRSs {2010-2012 cvele)

These improvements are cffective from July 1, 2014 and the Group has applicd these amendments
for the first time in these consolidated financial statements. Unless otherwise stated, these
amendments have no wnpact on the Group’s consolidated financial statemnents.

= PFRS 2, Share-based Payment — Definition of Vesting Condition

This improvement is applied prospectively and clarifies various issues relating to the definitions

of performance and service conditions which are vesting conditions, including:

= A performance condition must contaim a service condition

= A performance target must be met while the counterparty 1s rendering service

= A performance target may relate to the operations or activitics of an entity, or to those of
another enfity in the same group

= A performance condition may be a market or non-market condition

= Ifthe counterparty, regardless of the reason, ceases to provide service during the vesting
period, the service condition is not satisfied.

= PERS 3, Business Combinations — Aceonpting for Contingent Consideration in a Business
Cambination
The amendment is applied prospectively for business combinations for which the acquisition
date 1s on or alter July 1, 2014 It clanfies that a contingent consideration thal s not classified as
equity is subsequently measured at fair value through profit or loss whether or not it falls within
the scope of PAS 39, Financial [nstruments: Recognition and Measurement (or FITRS 9,
Financial Invivuments, iF carly adopted).

*  PFRS 8, Operating Jesments — Agoregation of Operating Segments and Reconciliation of the

Tatal af the Reportable Segments ' Asseis to the Entity's Assets

The amendments are applied retrospectively and clarify that:

= An entily must disclose the judgments made by management in applying the aggregation
criteria in the standard, including a brief description of operating segments that have been
aggregated and the economic characteristics (e.z. sales and gross margins) used to assess
whether the segments are ‘similar”,

= The reconciliation of segment asscts to tofal assets s only required to be disclosed if the
reconciliation is reported to the chief operating decision maker, similar to the required
disclosurs for sepment labilities.
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PAS 16, Froperty, Plant and Fquipment, and PAS 38, Intangible Assets — Revaluation Method -
Proportionate Restatement of Accumdated Depreciation

The amendment is applied retrospectively and clarifies in PAS 16 and PAS 38 that the asset may
be revalued by reference to the observable data on either the gross or the net carrying amount. In
addition, the accumulated depreciation or amortization is the difference between the pross and
carrying amounts of the asset. The adoption of this amendment did not have any impact in the
Group’s consolidated financial statements as the Group’s property, plant and equipment and
intangible assefs are not carried at revalued amounts.

PAS 24, Related Party Disclosures — Kev Maragement Personnel

The amendment s applied retrospectively and clarifies that a management entity, which is an
entity that provides key management personnel services, is a related party subject to the related
party disclosures. In addition, an entity that uses a management entity is required to disclose the
expenses neurred Tor management services.

Annual Improvements to PFRSs (201 1-2013 eycle)

These improvements are eflfective from July 1, 2014 and the Group has applied these amendments
for the first time in these comsolidaled fnancial statements. Unless otherwise stated, these
amendments have no impact on the Group’s consolidated lnancial statements. They include:

PFRS 3, Business Combinations — Scope Ixceptions for Joint Arrangements

The amendment is applied prospectively and clarifies the following regarding the scope

exceplions withm  PTRS 3:

= Joint arangements, not just joind venlures, are oulside the seope of PFRS 3.

=  This scope exception applies only to the accounting in the financial statements of the joint
arrangement itsell

PIRS 13, Fair Falue Measturement — Porlfolio Fxception
The amendment is applied prospectively and clarifies that the portfolic exception in PFRS 13
can be applied not only to financial assets and financial liabilities. but also to other contracts
within the scope of PAS 39 for PERS 8, if early adopted).

PAS 40, favestment Property

The deseription of ancillary services in PAS 40 differentiates between the investment property
and owner-occupied property (i.c., property, plant and equipment). The amendment is applied
prospectively and clarifics that PFRS 3, and not the description of ancillary services in PAS 40,
is used to determine if the transaction is the purchase of an asset or business combination. The
description of ancillary services in PAS 40 only differentiates between investment property and
owner-occupied property (i.e., property, plant and equipment).

The standards and interpretations that arc issucd, but not vet effective, up to the date of issuance of
the Group’s consolidated financial statements are disclosed below. The Group intends to adopt these
standards, if applicable. when they become effective.

Dieferred

Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 13, Agreements for the Construction of Real Estate

This interpretation covers accounting for revenue and associaled expenses by entities that

undertake the construction of real estate directly or through subcontractors. The interpretation

requires that revenue on construction of real estate be recognized only upon completion, except

when such contract qualifies as construction contract to be accounted for under PAS 11 or

involves rendering of services in which casc revenue is recognized based on stage of
MES ANNUAL REPORT
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completion. Contracts involving provision of services with the construction matenals and where
the risks and reward of ownership are transfered to the buver on a continuous basis will also be
accounted for based on stage of completion.  The SEC and the FRSC have deferred the
cffectivity of this interpretation until the final Revenue standard is issued by the International
Accounting  Standards  Board (IASB) and an  evaluation of the requirements of
the final Revenue standard apainst the practices of the Philippine real estate mdustry
completed, The Group is currently assessing the impact and plans to adopt this interpretation on
the required cffeetive date onee adopled locally.

Iiffective January 1, 2016

PFRS 10, Consolidated Financial Statements and PAS 28, fnvestments i Associates and Joint
Fentures - Investment Entities: Applying the Consolidation Exception (Amendments)

These amendments clarify that the exemption in PFRS 10 from presenting consolidated financial
statements applies 1o a parent entity that is a subsidiary of an investment entity that measures all
of its subsidiaries at fair value and that only a subsidiary of an investment entity that 15 not an
investment entity itself and that provides support services to the invesiment entily parent is
consalidated. The amendments also allow an investor (that is not an investment entity and has an
investment entily associate or joint venlure), when applying the equity method, to retain the fair
value measurement applied by the investment enlity associale or joint venture to its inferests n
subsidiarics. These amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or afer January 1,
2016, These amendments are not applicable to the Group since the Group does not have
investment entity associates or joint venture.

PAS 27, Separate Financial Statements — Hguity Method in Separate Financial Statements
{ Amendments)

The amendments will allow entilics to use the equily method to account for investments in
subsidiarics, joint ventures and associates in their separate financial statements. Entitics already
applying PFRS and clecting to change to the equity method in its separate financial statements
will have to apply that change retrospectively, The amendments are effective for annual periods
beginning on or afler January 1, 2016, with early adoption permitted. These amendments will
not have any impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

PFRS 11, Joint Arvangements — Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests (Amendments)

The amendments to PFRS 11 require that a joint operator accounting for the acquisition of an
mterest in a joint operation, in which the activity of the joint operation constitutes a business
must apply the relevant FIRS 3 principles for busincss combinations accounting.  The
amendments also clarily that a previously held interest in a joint operation is not remeasured on
the acquisition of an additional interest in the same joint operation while joint control is retaimed.
In addition, a scope exclusion has been added to PFRS 11 to specily that the amendments do not
apply when the parties sharing joint control. including the reporting entity, are under common
control of the same ultimate controlling party.

The amendments apply to both the acquisition of the initial nterest in a joint operation and the
acquisition of any additional interests in the same joint operation and are prospectively eflective
for annual periods beginning on or afler January 1. 2016, with early adoption permitted. These
amendments are not expected to have any impact to the Group.
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PAS 1, Presentation of Financial Statements - Disclosure Imbiative (Amendments)

The amendments are intended lo assist entitics in applying judgment when meeting the

presentation and disclosure requirements in PFRS. They clarify the following:

= That entities shall not reduce the understandability of their Bnancial statements by aither
obscuring material information with immaterial information; or aggregating matenal items
that have different nature or functions

= That specific line items in the statement of income and OCT and the statement of financial
position may be disageresated

* That entitics have flexibility as to the order in which thev present the noles to financial
statements

®  That the share of OCI of associated and joint ventures accounted for using the equity
method must be presented in aggrepate as a single line item. and classified between those
iterns that will or will not be subsequently reclassified to profit or loss.

Carly application is permitted and entities do not need to disclose that fact as the amendments
are considered to be clarifications that do not affect an entity™s accounting policics or accounting
estimates. The Group is currently asscssing the impact of these amendments on its consolidated
financial statements.

PTRS 14, Regulatory Deferral Accounts

PFRS 14 is an optional standard that allows an entity, whose activities are subject to rale-
regulation, to continue applving most of its existing accounting policies for regulatory deferral
account balances upon its first-time adoption of PFRS. Entities that adopt FI'RS 14 must present
the regulatory deferral accounts as separate line items on the statement of financial position and
present movements in these account balances as scparate line items in the statement of profit or
loss and other comprechensive ncome.  The standard requires disclosurcs on the nature of, and
risks associated with, the entity’s rate-regulation and the effects of that rate-repulation on its
financial statements. PFRS 14 s effective for annual periods beginming on or after January 1,
2016, Since the Group is an existing PFRS preparer, this standard will not apply.

PAS 16, Property, Plant and Equipment, and PAS 41, Agriculture — Bearer Plants
{ Amendments)

The amendments change the accounting requirements for biological assets that meet the
definition of bearer plants. Under the amendments, biological assets that meet the definition of
bearer plants will no longer be within the scope of PAS 41, Instead, PAS 16 will apply. After
initial recognition, hearer plants will be measured under PAS 16 at accumulated cost (before
maturily) and using either the cost model or revaluation model (after maturity) The
amendments also require that produce that grows on bearer plants will remain in the scope of
PAS 41 measured at fair value less costs to sell. For government grants related to bearer plants,
PAS 20, Accounting for Government Grants and Disclosure of Government Assistance, will
apply. The amendments are retrospectively effective for annual periods beginning on or atter
January 1, 2016, with early adoption permitted These amendments are nof expected to have any
impact to the Group as the Group does not have any bearer plants.

PAS 16, Property, Plant and Egquipment, and PAS 38, Tntangible Assets — Clarification of
Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and Amortization (Amendments)

The amendments clarify the principle in PAS 16 and PAS 38 that revenue reflects a pattemn of
economic benefits that are generated from operating a business (of which the asset is part) rather

than the cconomic benefits that are consumed through use of the asset. As a result, a revenue-

based method cannot be used to depreciate property, plant and equipment and may only be used

in very limited circumstances to amortize intangible assets. The amendments are retrospectively

effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2016, with carly adoption
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permitted. These amendments are not expected to have any mmpact to the Group as the Group
has not used a revenue-based method Lo depreciate its non-current assels,

Annual Improvements to PEESs (2012-2014 cvele)

The Annual Improvements to PFRSs (2012-2014 cvele) which are cffective on or afier
January 1, 2016 are expected to have no impact to the consolidated financial statements of the
Giroup. These include:

= PFRS 5. Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations — Changes in Methods
af Disposal
The amendment is applied prospectively and clarifies that changing from a disposal through sale
to a disposal through distribution to owners and vice-versa should not be considered to be a new
plan of disposal. rather it & a continuation of the original plan. There is, therclore, no
interruption of the application of the requirements in PFRS 3. The amendment also clarifies that
changing the disposal method does not change the date of classification.

o PEFES 7, Financial Instruments: Discloswres — Servicing Confracts

PIFRS 7 requires an entity to provide disclosures for any continuing involvement in a transterred
assct that is derecognized in its entircly. The amendment clarifies that a servicing contract that
includes a fec can constilute continuing involvement in a financial asset. An cntity must assess
the nature of the fee and amangement against the guidance for continuing involvement in
PFRS 7 in order to assess whether the disclosures are required. The amendment is to be applied
such that the assessment of which servicing contracts constitute continuing invohvement will
need to be done retrospectively. However, comparative disclosures are not required to be
provided for any period beginning before the annual period in which the entity first applies the
amendments.

= PFRS 7 - Applicability of the Amendments to PFRS 7 to Condensed Interim Financial
Staterents
This amendment is applicd retrospectively and clarifies that the disclosures on offsetting of
financial assets and financial liabilities are not required in the condensed inferim financial report
unless they provide a significant update to the information reported in the most recent annual

report.

= PAS 19, Emplovee Bengfits — regional market issue regarding discount rate
This amendment is applied prospectively and clarifics that market depth of high quality
corporate honds is assessed based on the currency in which the obligation is denominated, rather
than the country where the obligation is located. When there is no deep market for high quality
corporate bonds in that currency, government hond rates must be used.

= PAS 34, Interim Financial Reporting — disclosure of information “elsewhere in the interim
financial report’
The amendment is applied retrospectively and clarifies that the required interim disclosures must
either be in the interim financial statements or incorporated by cross-reference between the
interim financial statements and wherever they arc included within the greater interim financial
report (€.g., In the management commentary or risk report).

Fffective Sameary 1, 2018

= PFRS 9, Financial nstruments
In July 2014, the IASE issued the final version of PFRS 9, Financial Instruments. The new
standard (renamed as PFRS 9) reflects all phases of the financial mstruments project and
replaces PAS 39, Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement, and all previous
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verstons of PEFRS 90 The standard introduces new requirements for classification and
measurement, impairment, and hedge accounting. FFRS 9 s effective for anmual periods
beginning on or after January 1. 2018, with early application permitted. Relrospective
application is required, but comparative information 15 not compulsory. Karly application of
previous versions of PFRS 9 (2009, 2010 and 2013} is permitted if the date of initial application
is belore February 1 2015, The Group did not arly adopt PFRS 9.

The adoption of PFRS 9 will have an cffeet on the elassification and measurement of the
Group’s financial assets and impairment methodology for financial assets. but will have no
impact on the classification and measurement of the Group’s financial labilities.

IFRS 15, Revenue fiom Contracts with Customers

International Financial Reporting Standard (IFES) 15 was issued in May 2014 and establishes a
new five-step model that will apply to revenue arising from contracts with customers.  Under
IFRS 15 revenue is recognized at an amount that reflects the consideration to which an entity
expects lo be entitled in exchange for transferring goods or services to a customer.  The
principles in IFRS 15 provide a more structured approach to measuring and recognizing
raqCnic,

The new revenue standard is applicable to all entitics and will supersede all current revenue
recognition requirements under IFRS,  Either a full or maodified retrospective application is
required for annual periods beginning on or after January 1. 2018 with early adoption permitted.
The Group is currently assessing the impact of [FRS 15 and plans to adopt the new standard on
the required effective date once adopted locally.

IFRS 16, Leascs
On January 13, 2016, the [ASE issued its new standard, IFRS 16, Leases, which replaces
International Accounting Standards (IAS) 17, the current leases standard. and the related
Interpretations,

Under the new standard, lessees will no longer classify their leascs as cither operating or finance
leases in accordance with [AS 17. Rather, lessees will apply the single-asset model. Under this
maodel, lessees will recognize the assets and related lLiabilities for most leases on ther balance
sheets, and subsequently, will depreciate the lease assets and recognize interest on the lease
liabilities in their profit or loss. Leases with a tarm of 12 months or less or for which the
underlying asset is of low value are exempted from these requirements,

The accounting by lessors s substantially unchanged as the new standard carries forward the
principles of lessor accounting under TAS 17. Lessors, however, will be required to disclose
more information in their financial statements, particularly on the risk exposure to residual
value,

The new standard is effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2019. Entities
may carly adopt IFRS 16 but only if they have also adopted IFRS 15, Revenue from Contracts
with Customers. When adopting IFRS 16, an entity is permitted to use cither a full retrospective
or a modified retrospective approach. with oplions to use certain transition reliefs. The Group is
currently assessing the impact of IFRS 16 and plans to adopt the new standard on the required
effective date once adopted locally.
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Business Combinations and Goeodwaill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition is
measured as the ageregate of the consideration transferred measured at acquisition date fair value
and the amount of any NCI in the acquiree. For cach business combination, the Group elects
whether to measure the NCI in the acquiree at fair value or at the proportionate share of the
acquiree’s identifiable net asscts. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred and included in
administrative expenses.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial asscts and habilitics assumed for
appropriate classification and designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic
circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the separation of
embedded derivatives in host contracts by the acquiree.

When such an acquisition is not judged to be an acquisition of a business, it s not freated as a
business combination. Rather. the cost to acquire the corporate entity is allocated between the
identifiable asscts and habilitics of the entity based on their relative fair values al the acquisibon
date. Accordingly, no goodwill or additional delemed tax arises.

If the business combination is achicved in stages, any previously held cquity interest is re-measured
at its acquisition date fair value and any resulting gain or loss is recognized in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer will be recognized at Fair value at the
acquisition date. Contingent consideration classificd as an asset or hability that is a financial
instrument and within the scope of PAS 39 is measwred at fair value with changes in faw value
recognized either in profit or loss or as a change to OCL If the contingent consideration is not within
the scope of PAS 39, it is measured in accordance with the appropriate PFRS.  Contingent
consideration that i classified as equity is not re-measured and subsequent settlement is accounted
tor within cquity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate of the consideration
transforred and the amount recognized for NCIL, and any previous interest held, over the net
identifiable asscts acquired and liabilities assumed. If the fair value of the net assets acquired is in
excess of the ageresate consideration transferred, the Group re-assesses whether it has correctly
identified all of the assets acquired and all of the liabilities assumed and reviews the procedures used
to measurc the amounts to be recommized at the acquisition date. T the re-assessment still results in
an execess of the fair value of net assets acquired over the aggregate consideration transferred, then
the gain is recognized in profit or loss.

Afer initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. For
the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from the
acquisition date, allocated to cach of the Group’s cash generating units (CGUY) that are expected to
henefit from the combination, imespective of whether other asscls or habilities of the acquiree are
assigned to those units,

Where goodwill has been allocated to a CGU and part of the operation within that unit is disposed
of, the goodwill associated with the disposed operation is included in the camrying amount of the
operation when determining the gain or loss on disposal. Goodwill disposed in these circumstances
is measured based on the relative values of the disposed operation and the portion of the CGU
retained.
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Current versus Noncurrent Classification
The Group presents assets and liabilities in the consolidated statement of financial position based on
current or noncurrent classification.

An asset is current when it is;

*  expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cvele,

*  held primarily for the purpose of trading,

= expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period, or

= cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at
least twelve months atter the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as noncument.
A hability s current when:

» it is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle,

= it is held primarily for the purpose of trading,

= it is due Lo be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

= there is no unconditional right to defer the seftlement of the liability for at least twelve months
after the reporting period.

The Group classifies all other liabilitics as noncurrent.
Deferred tax assets and labilitics are classified as noncurrent assets and labilities.

Fair Value Measurement

The Group measurcs financial instroments. such as financial assets at FVPL and AFS financial
assets and non-financial asscts such as investment properties, at fair value at each reporting date.
Additional fair value related disclosurcs ineluding fair values of financial instruments measured at
amortized cost are disclosed in Mote 34,

Fair value is the estimated price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability
in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurcment date. The far value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the assel or transfer the
liability takes place either:

= in the principal market for the assct or habahity, or
= in the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

The principal or the most advanta geous markel must be accessible to the Group,

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants
would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their
economic best interest,

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best usc or by sclling 1t to another
market participant that would use the asscl in ils highest and best use,

The Group uses valuation techniques that arc appropriate mn the circumsfances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure [air value, maximizing the usc of relevant observable inputs
and minimizing the vse of unobservable inputs.
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All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the consolidated financial
statements are categorized within the lair value hierarchy, deseribed as follows, based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

= Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical asscts or liabilitics.

= Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the [ar
value measurement is directly or indirectly observable.

= Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is sigmificant to the fair
value measurement 1s unobservable

For assets and liabilitics that are recogmzed in the consolidated financial statements on a recurring
basis, the Group determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-
assessing categorization (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the [air value
measurement as a whole) at the end of cach reporting period.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures. the Group has determined classes of assets and liabilities
on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair
value hicrarchy as explained above.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash includes cash on hand and in banks that earn interest at the respective bank deposit rates. Cash
equivalents are short-term, highly hquid investments that are readily convertible to known amounts
of cash with original maturities of three months or less from the date of acquisition and are subject to
an insignificant risk of change in value.

Financial Instruments

Tnitial Recognition and Measurement

Financial instruments are recognized initially at fair value, adjusted for directly attributable
transaction costs in the case of financial instruments not at FVPL. The Group recognizes a financial
instriument in the consolidated statement of financial position when it becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognized on the trade date, which is the
date that the Group commits to purchase the asset. Regular way purchascs or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assefs that require delivery of assets within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Classification

Financial assets are classified as financial assets at FVPL, loans and receivables, held to maturity
(HTM) financial assets, and AFS financial assets as appropriate. Financial liabilities are classilied as
financial Labilitics at FVPL and other financial liabilities. The Group determines the classification
of its financial instruments at initial recognition and., where allowed and appropriate, re-<evaluates the
designation at cach reporting date.  As of December 31, 2015 and 2014, the group has no HTM
financial assets and financial habilities at FVEL.

Financial Assets or Lighilities at FVPL
Financial instruments at FVPL include financial assets or liabilities held for trading and those
designated upon initial recognition as financial asscts or habihties at FVPL.
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Financial asscts and liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are acquired for the purpose of
selling in the near term. Derivatives, including separated embedded derivatives, are also classified
as held for trading unless they are designated as ellective hedging instruments or linancial guarantes
contracts. Dividends, interests and gamns or losses on held for trading financial instruments are
recognized m the profit or loss.

Financial instruments may be designated at initial recognition as financial assets or liabilities at
FVPL when any of the following criteria are met: (i) the designation eliminates or sigmificantly
reduces the inconsistent treatment that would otherwise arise from measuring the assets or liabilities
or recopnizing the gains or losses on them on a difforent basis; (i) the assets or habilities are part of
a group of linancial instruments which are managed and their performances are evaluated on fair
value basis, in accordance with a documented risk management stralcgy: or (iii) the fnancial
instrument contains an embedded derivative that would need to be separately recorded.

As of December 31, 2015 and 2014, the Group has imvestments in shares of stock of various publicly
listed companies which are designated as financial assets at FVPL.

Foans and Receivables

Loans and recervables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market. After initial measurement. loans and reccivables arc
subsequently carried at amortized cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method, less any
allowance for impairment. Amortized cost is calculated taking into account any discount or premium
on acquisition, and includes foes that arc an integral part of the FIR. The FIR amortization 1
included in interest income in the profit or loss. Gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss
when the loans and recoivabls are derccognized, impaired or amortized,

Az of December 31, 2015 and 2014, the Group’s loans and receivables consist of cash in banks, cash
cquivalents, cash in escrow, receivables (except for advances to contractors and suppliers) and
refundable deposits.

AFE Financial Assets

AFS financial assets include equily investments. Equity investments classified as AI'S are those that
are neither classified as held for trading nor designated as at FVPL.  Financial assets mav be
designated at initial recognition as AFS financial assets if they are purchased and held indefinitely,
and mav be sold in response to liquidity requirements or changes in market conditions,

AFS financial assets are carried at fair value in the consolidated statement of fmancial position
Changes in fair value of such assets are accounted for in OCI in the cumulative changes in fair value
of AFS financial assets until the Onancial assets are derecosnized or until they are determined to be
impaired.  When an AFS financial assct is derccogmized or determined to be impaired, the
cumulative gains or losses previously recorded in OCT are recognized in profit or loss.

Investments in equity investments that do not have quoted market prices in an active market and
whose [air values cannat be reliably measured are carried at therr cost, less any impairment in value.

As of December 31, 2013 and 2014, the Groups investment in proprictary elub shares and listed and
unlisted shares of stock are classified as AFS financial assets.

Other Financial Liabilitics

This category pertains to financial liabilities that arc not held for trading nor designated as financial
liabilitics at FVPL upon mception of the lability.
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Other financial liabilitics are initially recorded at fair value, less directly attributable transaction
costs.  After initial recognition, other financial Habilities are carried at amortized cost using the EIR
mathod  Amortized cost is calenlated by taking into account any issue costs, and any discount or
premium on settlement.  Gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss when the liabilities are
derecogmized or amortized.

As of December 31, 2015 and 2014, the Group’s other financial habilities include accounts payable
and other current liabilities (except for advanced rentals, customers” deposils, reservation payables,
output value added tax (VAT), defared output VAT and withholding taxes). bank loans, deposits
from tenants and acerued emploves benefits {excluding defined benefit liability).

Determination of Fair Value

The far value of financial instruments that are actively traded in organized financial markets is
doetermined by relerence to quoted market bid prices at the close of business on the reporting date.
For investments and all other financial instruments where there is no active market, fair value 15
determined using wvaluation techniques.  Such techniques melude using arm’s-length market
transactions; reference to the cumrent market value of another nstrument, which is substantially the
same; and discounted cash flow (DCF) analysis and other valuation models. T the fair value cannot
be measured reliably, the financial instruments arc measured at cost. being the fair value of the
consideration paid, in case of an assct, and received, in case of a hability. All transaction costs
directly attributable to the acquisition are also ncluded in the cost of investment.

Day 1 Difference

Where the transaction price in a non-active market is different from the fair value from other
observable cwrrent market fransactions in the same instrument or based on a valuation technique
whose variables include only data from observable market, the Group recopnizes the difference
between the tmansaction price and fair value (a Day | difference) in the profit or loss unless it
qualifies for rccognition as soms other type of asset. In cases where the data used are not
obscrvable, the difference between the transaction price and model value i only recognized in the
profit or loss when the inputs become observable or when the instrument is derccognized For each
iransaction, the Group determines the appropriate method of recognizing the Day 1 difference.

Offsetting

A financial assct and a (inancial hability are offset and the nct amount is reported in the consolidated
statement of financial position if, and only if, there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the
recognized amounts, and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or to realize the asset and settle
the Lability sinmitancously. This is not generally the case with master netting agreement. and the
related assets and labilitics are presented gross in the consolidated statement of nancial position.

Impairment of Financial Assets

The Group assesses, at cach reporting date. whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset
or a group of financial assels is impaired. An impairment exists if onc or more events that has
oceurred since the initial recognition of the asset (an incurred ‘loss event’), has an impact on the
estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or the aroup of financial assels that can be reliably
cstimated.  Evidence of impairment may include indications that the debtors or a group of debtors 15
experiencing significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or principal payments,
the probability that they will enter bankruptey or other financial reorganization and observable data
indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the sstimated future cash flows, such as changes in
arrears or economic conditions that correlate with defaults.

a.  Fimancial Assets Carried at Amortized Cost
For financial assets carried al amortized cost, the Group first asscsses whether impairment exists
individually for financial asscts that are individvally significant, or collectively for financial
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assets that are not individually significant. If the Group determines that no objective evidence of
impairment exists for an individually assessed fnancial asset, whether sigmficant or not, it
includes the assel m a group of fnancial assels with similar credit risk characteristies and
collectively assesses them for impairment.  Asscts that are imdividually assessed Tor impairment
and for which an impairment loss 5. or continues to be, recognized are not included in a
collective assessment of impairment.

The amount of anv impairment loss identified s measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of ecstimated future cash flows (excluding future expected
credit losses that have not yet been meurred). The present value of the estimated future cash
flows is discounted at the financial asset’s original EIR.

The carrving amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance account and the loss
is recognized in the profit or loss. Interest income (recorded as Gnance income in the profit or
loss) continues to be acerued on the reduced carryving amount and is aceruad using the rate of
interest used to discount the luture cash flows for the porpose of measuring the impairment loss.
Loans together with the associated allowance are written off when there 1s no realistic prospect
of future recovery and all collateral has been realized or has been transferred to the Group. If. in
a subsequent year, the amount of the cstimated impairment loss increases or decreases because
of an cvent occurring afler the impairment was recognized, the previously recognized
impairment loss is increased or reduced by adjusting the allowance account. IF a write-off s
later recovered, the recovery is credited to finance costs in the profit or loss,

AFS Financial Assels
For AFS financial assets, the Group assesses al cach reporting date whether there s objective
evidence that an investent or a group of investments is impaired.

In the case of cquily imvestments classified as AIS, objective evidence would include a
significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of the investment below its cost. *Significant”
is evaluated against the original cost of the investment and ‘prolonged’ against the period in
which the fair value has been below its oniginal cost. When there is evidence of impairment, the
cumulative loss, measured as the difference between the acquisition cost and the cument fair
value, less any impairment loss on that investment previously recognized in profit or loss, is
removed from OCI and recognized in the profit or loss. Impaiment losses on equity
investments are not reversed through profit or loss: increases in their fair value after impairment
are recognized in OCIL

The determination of what is ‘significant’ or 'prolong” requires judgment. In making this
judgment, the group evaluates, among other factors, the duration or event to which the fair value
of an investment is less than its cosL

Finencial Assets Carried at Cost

If there is objective evidence that an mpairment loss has been incured on an unquoted equity
instrument that is not carried at fair value becausc its fair valuc cannot be rehably measured, or
an a derivative asset that & linked to and must be settled by delivery of such unquoted equity
instrument, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of cstimated future cash fows discounted at the current market
rate of return for a similar financial asset.
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Derecognition

a. Financial Assets
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar
financial asscts) is primarily derecognized (iLe. removed from the Group’s consolidated
statement of financial position) when:

= Therights to recerve cash flows from the asset have expired; or

*  The Group has transferred its rights {o receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under
a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either (a) the Group has transforred substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither transforred nor retained
substantially all the nisks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferved its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered info
a pass-through ammangement, it evaluates if. and to what extent, it has retained the risks and
rewards of ownership. When it has neither transformed nor retained substantially all of the risks
and rewards of the asset, nor transfemred control of the asset, the Group continues to recognize
the transferred asset to the extent of the Group's continuing involvement. In that case, the Group
also recognizes an associated lability. The transforred asset and the associated liability are
measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

b, Financial Liabilities
A financial liability is derccognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled, or cxpires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing lability are substantially
modified. such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecogmition of an oviginal liability
and a recognition of a new lability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is
recognized m the profit or loss.

Properties Ield for Sale

Properties held for sale are properties being constructed or acquired for sale in the ordinary course of
business, rather than for rental or capital appreciation, and are carried at the lower of cost and net
realizable value (NRV). NRV is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of the business,
based on market prices at the reporting date, less estimated costs of completion and estimated costs
to sell.

Condominnom Units Held for Sale

Cost of condominium units held for sale represent accumulated costs of the onsold units of the
completed Projects. Cost includes those directly attributable to the construction of the Projects such
as cost of land, direct materials, borrowing costs, professiomal and consultancy fees. and project
management costs, which are allocated to the unsold units.

Conistruction in Progress

Cost of construction in progress represents the accumulated costs for the construction and
development of the ongoing Projects. It includes those that are directly attributable to the
construction of the Projects such as cost of land, direct materials, borrowing costs, professional and
consultancy fees, and project management costs,
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Prepaid Commission and fxpenses

Prepaid commission and expenses include cxpenditures already paid but not yet incurred and from
which future economic bencfits are expected to flow to the Group within the normal operating cyele.
These are measured at cost less allowanece lor impairment losses, i any.

Creditable Withholding Tax ¢fCWTI
CWT represents taxes withheld for goods and services provided. CWTs can be claimed as credit
against income tax due,

[rvestments in Associates and Joint Venture

An associale is an entity over which the Group has significant influcnce.  Significant influence is the
power to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee, but is not control
or joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement wherchy the parties that have joint control of the
arrangement have rights to the net assets of the joint venture. Joint control is the contractually agreed
sharing of control of an arrangement. which exists only when decisions about the relevant activities
require unanimous consent of the partics sharing control.

The considerations made in determining significant influcnce or joint control are similar to those
necessary to delermine control over subsidiaries.

The Group’s investments in its associate and joint venture are accounted for using the equity
method.

On acquisition of the investment, any difference between the cost of the investment and the
investor’s share in the net fair value of the associate’s identifiable asscts, labilitics and contingent
liabilities is accounted for as follows:

a. Goodwill relating to an associate & included in the carying amount of the investment
However, amortization of that goodwill is not permitted and is therefore not included in the
determination of the Group’s share m the associate’s profits or losscs.

b. Any cxcess of the Group’s share in the net fair value of the associate’s identifiable asscts,
liabilities and contingent habilitics over the cost of the investment is excluded from the carrying
amount of the investment and is instead included as income in the determination of the Group”s
share in the associate’s profit or loss in the period in which the investment 1s acquired.

Under the equity method, the investment in an associate or a joint venture is initially recognized at
cost. The carrying amount of the investment is adjusted to recognize changes in the Group’s share
of net assets of the associate or joint venture since the acquisition date.  Goodwill relatmg to the
associate or joint venture is included in the carrying amount of the investment and is not indrvidually
tested for mpaiment.

The profit or loss reflects the Groups sharc of the results of operations of the associale or a joint
venture. Any change in OCI of these investecs is presented as part of the Group’s OCL In addition,
when there has been a change recognized directly in the cquity of the associate or a joint venture, the
Group recognizes its share of any changes, when applicable, in the consolidated statement of
changes in cquity. Unrealized gains and losscs resulting from transactions between the Group and
the associate or joint venture are eliminated to the extent of the inferest in the associate or a joint
venlure.
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The aggregate of the Group’s share in net profit or loss of an associate or a joint venture is reported
on the face of the consolidated statement of comprehensive income outside operating profit and
represents profit or loss after tax and NCI in the subsidiarics of the associate or a joint venture, If the
Group’s share of losses of an associate cquals or exceeds its interest in the associate or a joint
venture, the Group discontinues recognizing its sharc of lurther losses.

The financial statements of the associate or a jomt venture are prepared for the same reporting perod
as the Group. When necessary, adjustments are made 1o bring the accounting pohcies in Iine with
those of the Group.

Adter application of the equity method, the Group determmes whether it s necessary to recognize an
impairment loss on its investment in its associate or a joint venture. At each reporting date. the
Grroup determines whether there is objective evidence that the investment in the associate or a joint
venture is impaired. If there is such evidence, the Group caleulates the amount of impairment as the
dilference between the recoverable amount of the associate and its camyving value, and then
recognizes the loss as “Share in net profit (loss) of an associale and a joint venlure” in the profit or
loss.

Upon loss of significant influcnee over the associate or jomnt control over the joint venture, the Group
measures and recognizes any retained investment at its fair value. Any difference belween the
carrying amount of the associate or a joint venture upon loss of significant influence and the fair
value of the retained investment and proceeds From disposal s recognized in the profit or loss.

Investment Propertics
Investment properties consist of land and buildings that are held for long-term rental yields or for
capital appreciation or both, and that are not owner-oceupied by the companies in the Group.

Investment propertics are measured initially at their costs, mcluding related transaction costs. The
cost of a purchased investment property comprises of ils purchase price and any directly attributable
costs, Transaction costs inchide transfer taxes, professional fees and other costs necessary to bring
the investment propertics to the condition necessary for them to be capable of being used.

After initial recognition, investment properties are camied at fam value which reflects marlet
conditions at the reporting date. Gains or losses arising from changes in [air value are recorded in
profit or loss in the vear in which they arise including the corresponding tax effect. Fair value is
based in an annual evaluation performed by an accredited external independent valuer, applying a
valuation model recommended by the International Valuation Standards Committee,

An investment property that is being redeveloped for continuing use as investment property, or for
which the marcket has become less active, conlinues to be measured at fair value.

A subsequent expenditure is charged to the asset’s carrving amount only when it is probable that
future economic benefits associated with the asset will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be reliably measured. Repair and maintenance costs are recognized in profit or loss in the period in
which they are incurred.

Investment propertics are derceogmized when they are disposed of or permanently withdrawn from
use and no future cconomic benefit is expected from their disposal. Any gain or loss on the
retirement or disposal of an investment properly is recognized in the profit or loss. Gam or loss on
disposal of investment property is determined as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the assct at the date of disposal.
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Transfers are made to (or from) investment properties when, and only when, there is a change in use,
evidenced by the ending of owner-occupation or commencement of an operating leasc to another
party. Transfers are made from investment properties when, and only when, there is a change in use,
evidenced by the commencement of owner-occupation or commencement of development with a
view to sell,

When the Group completes the construction or development of a sclf-constucted investment
property that will be carried at fair value, any difference between the Fair value of the property at that
date and its previous carrving amount shall be recognized in profit or loss. If a land or building and
building improvement classified as *Property and equipment™ becomes an investment property, the
Group accounts for such property in accordance with the policy stated under property and equipment
up to the date of change in use. For transfer fiom investment property carried at fair value to
property and equipment or construction in progress, the mvestment property™s deemed cost shall be
its fair value at the date of change in use.

Real Estate Development Projects

The real estate development projects are undertaken by the subsidiaries and are carried at cost less
any impanrment in value.  Cost primarily consists of acquisition cost of the propaty being
comstructed, air rights, expenditures for the development and construction of the real estate project
and borrowing costs incwrred, if any, in  the acquisition of qualifying assets during  the
construction period and up to the date of completion of constiuction.

Upon completion of the properties, certain portion of the real estate are aceounted for as investment
properties if the planned purpose of these properties meet the definition of investment properties.

Upon completion of the propertics which are pre-determined [or sell-use purpose, the properties are
classified as ‘Property and equipment’.

Upon the completion of the properties which are pre-determined for sale purpose, the properties are
classified as ‘Properties held for sale” in current assets.

Property and Equipment
Property and equipment is stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and amortization, and
accurnulated impairment losses, if any.

The initial costs of property and equipment consist of their purchase prices and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the asscts to their working condition and location for their intended use.
Expenditures incurred after the property and equipment have been put into operation, such as repair
and maintenance costs, are recognized in profit or loss in the year in which the costs are incurred. In
situations where it can be clearly demonstrated that the expenditures have resulted i an mercase in
future economic benefits expected to be obtained from the use of an item of property and equipment
bevond its originally assessed standard of performance. the expenditures are capitalized as additional

costs of property and equipment.
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Depreciation and amorlization commence once the assets are available for use and are provided on
all property and equipment at rates caleulated to wnte off the costs, less estimated residual values
based on prices prevailing at the reporting date, of each asset evenly over its expected usetul life as

follows:
Category Usctial Lives in Years
Building improvements 25
Transportation equipment 2o 3
Furniture, fixtures and other equipment Zilod

Depreciation or amortization ceases at the earlier of the date when the asset i classified as either
investment property or property held for sale and the date the asset is derecognizad. The Group uses
straight-line method as the basis of depreciation to systematically allocate the cost of the assels over
the following estimated usefil lives.

The assefs” estimated useful lives (EUL), and depreciation and amortization method are reviewed
periodically to ensure that these are consistent with the expected pattern of economic benefits rom
the items of property and equipment. The assets” estimated residual values are reviewed periodically
and adjusted if appropriate.

Fully depreciated and amortized property and equipment are retained in the accounts until they are
no longer in use, and no further depreciation and amortization are charged to profit or loss.

An itemm of property and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future cconomic
benefits are expected from its use or disposal.  Any gain or loss arising from derecognition of the
asset {calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the camrying amount of the
agset) is included in the profit or loss when the asset is derecognized.

Immpairment of Nonfinancial Assets

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that the nonfinancial assets
consisting of investments in associates and joint venture, real estate development projects, property
and equipment and goodwill may be impaired. If any such indication exists, or when annual
impairment festing for an assct is roquired, the Group makes an estimaie of the asset’s recoverable
amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or CGU’s fair value less cost to
sell and its value in use and is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset docs not generate
cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or group of asscts.  Where the
carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impamed and 15
wrilten down Lo its recoverable amount.

[n assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using
a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of moncy and the
risks specific to the asset. In determining Fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions
are taken into account. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model s
used. These caleulations are corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly
traded companics or other available Gur value indicators,

The fair value less costs of disposal calculation is based on available data from binding sales
transactions, conducted at amm’s length, for similar assets or observable madket prices less
incremental costs for disposing of the asset. Impamrment losses, if any, are recognized in profit or
loss in those expense categorics consistent with the function of the impaired assets.
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The Group bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations, which are
prepared separately for each of the Group’s CGUs to which the individual assets are allocated. These
budgets and forecast caleulations generally cover a penod of Give years. For longer pariods, a long-
term growth rate is caleulated and applied to project future cash flows after the fifth vear.

Impairment losses of continuing operations are recognized in the statement of income in expense
categorics consistent with the function of the impaired asset, cxeept for propertics previously
revalued with the revaluation taken to OCIL For such propertics, the impamrment is recogmized i OCT
up to the amount of any previous revaluation.

For asscts excluding goodwill, an asscssment is made at cach reporting date as to whether there s
any ndication that the previously recognized impairment losses may no longer exist or may have
decreased. 1F such indication exasts, the recoverable amount 15 estimated. A previously recogmzed
impairment loss i reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the
asset’s or CGLs recoverable amount sinee the last impairment loss was recognized. If that is the
case, the carrving amount of the asset or OGU s mereased Lo its recoverable amount. That mereased
amount cannot exceed the canying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or
amortization, had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior years.  Such reversal is
recognized in profit or loss. Adter such a reversal, the depreciation or amortization charge is adjusted
in future periods to allocate the asset’s revised carrying amount, less any residual value, on a
systematic basis over its remaining useful lifc,

The following criteria ate also applied in assessing impairment of specific asscts:

Imvesiments in Associates and Joint Fenlure

After application of the equity method, the Group determines whether it s necessary o recognire
impairment Ioss on the Group’s investrnents in associates and joint venture. The Group determines
at each reporting date whether there is objective evidence that an investment s impaired. IF that is
the case. the Group caleulates the amount of impatrment as the difference between the fair value of
the investee company and the camrying value of the investment. The difference 18 recognized
profit or loss.

Gaadwil!

Impairment testing for goodwill is performed anmually and when circumstances indicate that its
carrying value may be impaired. Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount of
the CGU or group of CGUs to which the goodwill relates.  Where the recoverable amount of the
CGU or group of CGUs to which geodwill has been allocated is less than ifs carrying amount. an
impairment loss is recognized in the profit or loss. Impairment losses relating to goodwill cannot be
reversed in luture periods.

Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying
asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for ils intended use or sale are
capitalized as part of the cost of the asset.  Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in
which they occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in
connection with the borrowing of funds.

Deeposits from Tenants

Deposits from tenants are carried at the present value of future cash flows using appropriale discount
rates. The difference between the present value and the actual deposit received is treated as
additional rental incentive which i recorded under “Deferred lease income™ in the statement of
financial position and are recognized as rental income using the straight-line method over the term of
the lease
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Refundable Deposits
Relundable deposils represent cash received from customers for rent and utilities which are expected
1o be returned after a specified period of time. or when certain conditions are satisfied.

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result
of a past event, it is probable that an cutflow of resources embodying cconomic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation: and a reliable cstimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.
If the cffeet of the me value of money s material provision is determined by discounting the
expected future cash flows at a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and, where appropriate, the risks specific to the liability, Where discounting s
used, the increase in provision due Lo passage of ime 15 recognized as interest expense. When the
Crroup expects a provision or loss to be reimbursed, the reimbursement is recopnized as a separate
assct only when the reimbursement s virtually certain and its amount is estimable. The expense
relating to any provision is presented in profit or loss, net of any remmbursement.

Equity

Capital Stock and Additiomal Paid-m Capital (APIC)

Capital stock is measured at par value for all shares issued.  When the shares are sold at a
premium, the difference between the proceeds and the par value is credited to the “APIC™ account.
When shares are issued for a consideration other than cash, the proceeds are measured at the far
value of consideration received. In case the shares are issued to extinguish or seltle a liability of
the Parent Company, the shares are measurcd either at the fair value of the shares issued or fair
value of the lability settled, whichever is more reliably determinable.

Treasury Shares

Own equily instruments that are reacquired (treaswry sharcs) are recognized at cost and deducted
from equity. No gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, ssue or
cancellation of the Group’s own equity instruments. Any difference between the carrying amount
and the consideration, il reissued, is also recognized in the APIC. When the shares are retived, the
capital stock account is reduced by its par value and the excess of cost over par value, upon
retirement, is charged to APIC when the shares are issueid,

Other Camponents of Equity

These are recorded for items that are directly recognized in equity, which include cumulative
changes in fair value of AFS financial assets, cumulative translation adjustments and remeasurement
gains (losses) on defined benefit liability. They are measured either at gross amount or net of tax
effect depending on the tax laws and regulations that apply.

Other components of equity are derccognized when the related asset or liability where they arise are
derceogmized.

Retained Earnings

Retained earnings include cumulative profits attributable to the Parent Company’s stockholders, and
reduced by dividends. Retained earnings also inchide effect of changes in accounting policics as
may be required by the standards” transitional provisions.
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Dividend Distribution

The Group recognizes a liability to make cash distributions to equity holders of the Parent Company
when the distribution is authorized and the distribution 15 no longer at the discretion of the Group.
As per the corporate laws in the Philippines, a distribution is authorized when it is declared by the
Board. A comesponding amount 15 recognized divectly in equity.

Revenue and Cost/Expense Recoamition

Revenue 15 recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Group and the amount of revenue and expense can be reliably measured, regardless of when the
collection or pavment is made. Revemue is measured at the fair value of consideration received or
receivable, taking into account contractually defined terms of pavment and cxcluding taxes and
duties. ' ' ' '

The Group assesses its revenuc arrangements against specific criteria in order to determine if it is
acting as a principal or as an agent. The Group has concluded that it is acting as the principal in all
of ils major revenue arrangements since it is the primary obligor in all the revenue arrangements, has
pricing latitude and is also exposed to properties held for sale and credit risks.

The following specific recognition criteria must also be met before revenuc and cxpenses are
recognized:

Cemelominiom Sales

The Group assesses whether it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group when
the contract price is collectible. Collectability of the contract price i demonstrated by the buyer’s
commitment to pay, which is supported by the buyer’s initial and continuous investments that
molivates the buyer to honar its obligation.  Collectability is also assessed by considering factors
such as collections and credit standing of the buyer.

Revenue from condominium sales is accounted for using the full accrual method. In accordance
with Philipping Interpretations Committee O&A No. 2006-01, the percentage of completion (POC)
method is used to recognize income from condominivm sales where the Group has material
obligations under the sales contract to complete the real estate project after the unit is sold, the
equitable intercst has been transferred to the buyer, construction is beyond preliminary stage (ie.,
engineering, design work, construction confracts execution, site clearance and preparation,
excavation and the building foundation are finished). and the costs incurred or to be incurred can be
measured reliably. Under this method, revenue is recognized as the related obligations are fultilled,
measured principally on the basis of the cstimated completion of a physical proportion of the
contract work

Any excess of collections over the recognized revenue are included in the “Customers” deposits™
account in the consolidated statement of financial position. If the revenue recognition criteria under
the full acerual or POC method are not met, the deposit method is applied until all the conditions for
recognizing sales are met. Until revenue [rom condomimium sales is recognized, cash received from
customers are recognized also as part of “Customers” deposits ™

Cost of real estate sales is recognized consistent with the revenue recognition method applicd. Cost
of condominium units sold before the completion of the development is determined on the basis of
the acquisition cost of the land plus its full development costs, which mclude estimated costs for
future development works,

The cost of condominium sales recognized in profit or loss on their disposal is deternined with
reference to the specific cost mcurred on the property, allocated to salcable arca based on relative
size and takes into account the POC used for revenue recogmtion purposes.
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Estimated loss on unsold units s recognized in profit or loss immediately when it is probable that
total project costs will exceed total contract revemc, '

Hental

Rental revenues from the leasing of properties held under operating lease are recognized on a
straight-line basis over the periods of the respective leases or on a cetain percentage of gross
revenue of the lessees, whichever is appropriate.

When the revenue recognition criteria are not met, cash received from lessees are recognized as
Advanced rental, until the conditions for recopnizing rental income are met.

Fnterast Income

Interest income 15 recognized as it accrues, taking into account the effective vield on the asset
Interest income from accretion of installment contracts receivable is recognized using the HIR
method.

Dividend lncome
Revenue is recognized when the Groups right to receive the payment is established, which s
generally when the Board of the investee company approved the dividend.

Other Service {ncome

Administration and management services, customer lounge fees, banner meome, meome from
cinema operations and other service income are recognized when the related services have been
rendered. Revenues from auxiliary services such as handling, sale of scrap materials, import break
bulk and brokerage are recognized when services are provided or when goods are delivered. Money
reccived or amounts billed in advance for rendering of services or delivery of goods are recorded as
uncamed income until the carning process 1s complete.

Commission Expense

Commuissions paid to sales and marketing agents on the sale of pre-completed units are deferred
when recoveries are reasonably cxpected and are charged to expense in the period in which the
related revenues are recognized as carmed.  Accordingly, when the POC method is used,
commissions are likewise charged to expense in the period the related revenues are recognized.

Creneral and Administrative Expenses
General and administrative expenses are recognized as incurred.

Leases

The determination of whether an arrangement is, or contains, is a lease is based on the substance of
the arrangement and requires an assessment of whether the fulfillment of the arrangement is
dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets and the arrangement conveys a right Lo use the
asset,

A reassessment is made after inception of the lease only if one of the following applics:

a.  there is a change in contractual terms, other than a renewal or extension of the arrangement;

b. a rencwal option is exercised or extension is granted, unless that tem of the renewal or
extension was initially included in the lease term;

¢. there is a change in the determination of whether fulfillment 15 dependent on a specified asset; or

d. thereis a substantial change to the asset.
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When a reassessment is made, lease accounting shall commence o cease from the date when the
change in circumstances give rise to the reassessment for scenarios (a), () or (d) above, and at the
date of renewal or extension period for scenario (b),

Grron s the Lessor

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of
the assets are classified as operating leases. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating an operating
lease are added to the camying amount of the rental receivables or customers’ deposits and
recogmzed over the lease term on the same basis as rental income. Contingent rents are recognized
as revenue in the period in which they are carned.

Emplovee Benefits

Retirement Benefits

The net defined benefit liability or asset is the aggregate of the present value of defined benefit
obligation at the end of the reporting period reduced by the fair value of plan assets (if any). adjusted
for any effect of limiting a net defined benefit asset to the asset ceiling,

The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit plan is actuarially determined using the
praojected unit credit method.

Defined benefit costs comprise the following:

= service cosl,

=  nel imterest on the net defined benefit liability or asset, and
= remeasurements of net defined benefit liability or assct.

Service costs which include current service costs, past service costs and gains or losses on non-
routine settlements are recognized as expense in profit or loss. Past service cosls arc recognived
when plan amendment or curtailment occurs. These amounts arc caleulated periodically by
independent qualified actuaries.

Met interest on the net defined benefit liability or assct 15 the change during the period m the net
defined benefit liability or asset that anises from the passage of time which is determined by applying
the discount rate based on government bonds to the net defined benefit liability or asset. Met interest
on the net defined benefit liability or asset is recognized as expense or income in profit or loss.

Remeasurements comprising actuarial gams and losses, return on plan assets and any change in the
effect of the asset ceiling {(excluding nect interest on delined benefit hability) are recognized
immediately in OCI in the period in which they arise. Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit
or loss in subsequent periods.

Plan assets are assets that are held by a long-term employee benefit fund or qualifying insurance
policies. Plan assets are not available to the creditors of the Group, nor can they be paid directly to
the Group. Fair value of plan assets s based on market price information. When no market price is
available, the fair value of plan assets is cstimated by discounting expected future cash flows using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects both the risk associated with the plan assets and the maturity or
expected disposal date of those assets (or, if they have no maturity, the expected period until the
seltlement of the related obligations). If the fair value of plan assets is higher than the present value
of defined benefit obligation, the measurement of the resulting defined benefit assct s lmited to the
present value of economic benefits available in the form of refunds from the plan or reductions in
future contributions to the plan.
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The Group’s right to be reimbursed of some or all of the expenditures required to setile a defined
henefit obligation is recognized as a separate asset al fair value when and only when reimbursement
is virtually certain,

Termination Benefits

Termination benefits are employee benefits provided in exchange for the termunation of an
employee’s employment as a result of either an entity’s decision to lerminate an employee’s
employment before the normal retirement date or an employee’s decision to accept an offer of
benefits in exchange for the termination of employment.

A liahility and an expense for a termination benefit is recognized at the carlier of when the entity can
no longer withdraw the offer of the benefit and when the entity recognizes related restructuring
costs. I[nitial recognition and subsequent changes to termination benefit are measured in accordance
with the nature of the emploves benefit, as either post-cmployment benelil, short-term employee
benefit, or other long-term employee benefit. Benefits falling due more than twelve months from the
reporting date are discounted to their present values.

Emplovee Leave Entitfement

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognized as a liability when they are accrued to the
emplovess. The undiscounted liability for leave expected to be settled wholly betore twelve months
alter the end of the annual reporting period is recognized for services rendered by employees up to
the end of the reporting perind. The lability for leave expected to be settled more than twelve
months after the end of the annual reporting peviod are discounted to its present value,

Foreign Currencics

The Group’s consolidated financial slatements are presented in Peso, which is also the Parent
Company’s functional currency. For cach entity, the Group determines their functional currency and
items included in the financial statements of cach entity are measured wsing that functional curvency,
The Group uses the direct method of consolidation and has clected o recyele the gains or losses that
arise [rom using this method.

Transactions and Balances
Transactions in foreign currencies are nitially recorded by the Group’s entities at their respeetive
functional currency spot tates at the date the transaction first qualifics for recogmtion.

Monclary assets and liabilities denominated in forcign currencies are translated at the functional
currency spot rates of exchange at the reporting date. Differences arising on settlement or translation
of monetary items are recognized in profit or loss.

Mon-monetary itemns that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the dates of the mitial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair
value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value is
determined. The gain or loss arising on translation of non-monetary items measured at fair value is
treated in line with the recognition of pain or loss on change in fair value of the item (1., translation
differences on items whose fair value gain or loss is recognized in OCI or profit or loss arc also
recognized in OCI or profit or loss, respectively).

Growp Companies

On comsolidation, the assets and liabilities of Gipsey and SHIL., forcign subsidiaries with functional
and presentation currency of Hong Kong Dollar (HKS), are translated into Peso at the rate of
exchange prevailing at the reporting date and their income statements are translated at exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. The exchange differences arising on translation for
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consolidation are recognized in OCL On disposal of a foreign subsidiary, the component of OCI
relating to that particular foreign subsidiary is recognized in profit or loss.

Income Tax

Current Tax

Current lax assels and habilities for the cwrenl and prior periods are measured at the amount
expected to be recoverad from or paid to the taxation authoritics, The tax rates and tax laws used to
compute the amount are those that have been enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date.

In the sale of condominium unils resulting to recognition of installment contracts recevable, full
recogmiion for mcome lax purposes 1s applied when more than 25% of the selling price has been
collected in the year of sale. Otherwise, the installment method is applied.

Daferrad Tax

Deterred tax is provided vsing the lability method on temporary differences at the reporting date
between the tax bases of assets and labilifies and their canrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes. Deferred tax liabilitics arc recognized for all taxable temporary differences, except:

= where the deferred tax liabality arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or of an asset or
liability in a transaction that s not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affeets neither the accounting income nor faxable income or loss; and

= in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with inmvestments in subsidiarics and
associates and interest in joint arrangements, where the timing of the reversal of the lemporary
differences can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary ditferences will not reverse in
the loresceable fulure.

Dreferred tax assets arc recognized for all deductible temporary ditferences, carryforward benefits of
excess minimum corporate income tax (MCIT) over regular corporate income tax (RCIT) and net
operating loss carryvover (NOLOO), to the extent that it is probable that taxable mcome will be
available against which the deductible temporary differences. and the carryforward benefits of
excess MCIT over RCIT and NOLCO can be utilized except:

*  where the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the
time of the transaction, afTects neither the accounting income nor taxable profit or loss; and

= in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates and interest in joint arangements, deferred tax assets are recognized only to the extent
that it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the foresceable future and
taxable income will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilzed.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable income will be available to allow all or part
ol the defared tax assets to be utilized. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are reassessed at each
balance sheet date and are recognized to the extent that it has become probable that fiture taxable
profit will allow the deferred tax assets to be recoverad,

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the lax rates that are expected to apply in the year
when the asset is realized or the liability is scttled, based on tax rates (and Lax laws) thal have been
enacted or subsiantively enacted at the reporting date.
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Deferred tax relating to items recognized outside the consolidated statement of income is recognized
outside the consolidated statement of income. Deferred 1ax ilems are recogmized in correlation to the
underlying transaction either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Dieferred tax assets and deferred tax labilities are offset, if a legally enforceable right exists to offset
current tax assets against current tax habilitics and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity
and the same tax authority, Subsicdiaries operating in the Philippines file income tax return on an
individual basis. Thus. the deferred tax assets and deferred tax habilities are offset on a per entity
hasis.

VAT ;
Revenue, expenses, assets and liabilities are recognized net of the amount of VAT, except:

= where the VAT incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from the tax
authorily, in which case the VAT is recognized as part of the cost of acguisition of the asset or as
part of the expense item as applicable; and

= receivables and payables that are stated with the amount of VAT included.

The net amount of VAT recoverable from, or payable to, the tax authovity is included as part of
“Input tax and other current assets” or “Accounts payable and other current habilities™ accounts,
respectively, in the consolidated statements of Anancial position.

Earnings Por Sharc

Farnings per share is computed by dividing the total comprehensive income and net income
atiribulable to equity holders of the Parent Company for the year by the weighted average number of
shares outstanding during the year adjusted to give retroactive effect to any stock dividends declared
during the year.

Basic earnings per share is caleulated by dividing the total comprehensive income and net income
attributable to equity holders of the Parent Company for the year by the weighted average number of
common shares outstanding during the year,

Diluted earmings per share is computed by dividing the adjusted tolal comprehensive income and net
income attributable to equity holders of the Pareni Company for the year by the weighted average
number of shares taking into account the effects of all potential dilutive common sharcs.

Segment Reporting

For management purpases, the Group is organized and managed separately according to the nature
of the business. These operating businesses are the basis upon which the Group reports its segment
information presented in Note 4 to the consolidated financial statements.

An operating segment is a component of an entity:

a. that engages in business activities from which it may earn revenues and meur expenses
{(including revenues and expenses relating to transactions with other components of the same
entity);

b. with operating results regularly reviewed by the entity’s chief operating decision maker to make
decisions about resources to be allocated to the segment and 1o agseey ile performance:; and

¢. for which discrete financial information is available
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Contingencics

Contingent liabilitics are not recognized in the consolidated financial statements. They are disclosed
in the notes to the consolidated financial statements unless the possibility of an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits i remote. Contingent assets are not recognized in the consolidated
financial statements but are disclosed in the notes to the consolidated financial stalements when an
intlow of economic benefits is probable,

Events after the Reporting Date

Any post year-end event that provides additional information about the Group’s financial position
at the reporting date (adjusting cvent) 1s reflected in the consolidated financial statements. Post
year-cnd ecvents that are not adjusting events, it any. are disclosed when matenal to the
consolidated financial statements.

[F¥]

Significant Accounting Judgments, Estimales and Assumptions

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with PIRS requires
management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that alfect the amounts reported in the
consolidated financial statements based on evaluation of relevant facts and circumstances at the
reporting date. Future events may occur which can cause the assumptions used in arriving at those
Judgments and estimates to change. The effccts of any changes will be reflected 1n the consolidatal
financial statements as they boecome reasonably determinable

Judgments

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies. management has made the following
judgments, apart {rom those involving estimations, which have the most significant cffect on
amounts recognized in the consohdated financial statements:

Valuation of Investment Praperties

The Group carries its investment propertics at far value, with changes in fair value being recognised
in the statement of profit or loss. The Group’s financial controller and the managers of each property
determine the policies and procedures for the fair value measurement of the investment properties.
External valucrs are involved in the valuation of investment propertics as decided annually by the
Group. The selection criteria for the extemal valuers melude market knowledge, reputation,
independence and whether profissional standards are maintained.

At each reporting date, the Group analyzes the movements in the values of investment properties
which are required to be re-measured or re-assessed as per the Group’s accounting policies, TFor this
analysis, the Group verifics the major inputs by agrecing the information in the wvaluation
computation to contracts and other relevant documents.

Based on the analysis performed by management, the Group has concluded that the fair value
adjustment in 2014 and 2013 is insignificant. In 2013, the management determined the fair value
adjustment to be significant and reflect the current economic condition. The key assumptions used to
determine the fair value of the propertics and sensitivity analyses are provided in Note 13.

Distinction between Praperties Held For Sale, Investment Froperites and Property and Equipment

The Group determines whether a properly is te he classified as a property held for sale or an
investment property through the following:
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= Propertics held for sale comprise propertics that are held for sale in the ordinary course of
business. These are condominium units that the Group developed or is developing and intends
to sell,

= Investment properties comprise land and buildings, which are not oceupied substantially for use
in the operations nor for sale in the ordinary course of business of the Group, but arce held
primarily to earn rental income or capital appreciation.

The Group determines whether a property qualifics as an investment properly or an ilem of properly
and cquipment. In making its judzment. the Group considers whether the property generates cash
flows largely independent of the other assets held by the Group. Property and equipment generate
cash flows that are attributable not only to them but also to the other assets used in the operations of
the Group.

Some propertics comprise a portion that s Lo cam rentals or for capital appreciation and another
portion that is held for use in the operation or for administrative purposes, I these portions cannot
be sold separately at the reporting date, the property is accounted for as an investment property only
if' an insigniticant portion is held for use in the operation or for administrative purposes. Judgment i
applied in determining whether ancillary services are so signiticant that a property does not qualify
as an investment property. The Group considers cach property separately in making its judement.

The carrving values of propertics held for sale, investment propertics, and property and equipment as
of December 31, 2015 and 2014 are disclosed m Notes 8, 13 and 16, respectively.

Assessing Sigmificant Influence over Associates

The Group determined that it exercises  significant influence over all its associates by considering,
among others, its ownership interest tholding 20% or more than of the voting power in the investec),
representation on the board of directors and participation in policy-making processes of the
associates, and other contractual terms.

Classification of joint arrangements

The Group’s investment 1 joint venture is structured in separate incorporated entities.  The jont
arrangement agreements require unanimous consent from all partics to the agreement for the relevant
activitics identificd. The Group and the parties to the agreement only have rights to the net assets off
the joint venture through the terms of the contractual arrangements.

Property Acquisition and Business Combination

The Group acquires real estate properties. At the time of acquisition, the Group considers whether
the acquisition represents an acquisition of a business or a group of assets and liabilitics. The Group
accounts for an acquisition as a business combination if it acquircs an imtegrated st of business
processes in addition to the real estate property.  The consideration is made to the extent that the
significant business processes are acquired and the additional services to be provided by the
subsidiary.

When the acquisition of subsidiary does not constitute a business, it is accounted for as an
acquisition of a group of assets and liabilities. The purchase price of the acquisition is allocated to
the assets and liabilities acquired basced upon their relative fair values at the date of acquisition, no
soodwill or deferred tax is recognized.

In 2014, the Group accounted for the acquisition of the 20% ecquity intercst of Alphaland
Development, Inc. (Alphaland) in SGCPI and FBSHI as a business combination achieved in stages
(zee Mote 12).
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Classification of Leases as Operating Lease

The Group has entered into commercial property leases on its investment property porttolio. The
Group has determined. based on an evaluation of the terms and conditions of the arrangements, such
as the lease term not constituting a major part of the economic Iife of the commercial property and
the fair value of the asset, that it retains all the sienificant risks and rewards of ownership of these
properties and accounts for the contracts as operating leases.

The camrying values of investment properties as of December 31, 2015 and 2014 are disclosed in
Mote 13,

Impesirment of ARS Feeity Financial Assets : ;

The Group treats AFS equity financial assets as impaired when there has been a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value below its cost or whether other objective evidence of impairment
exisls. The determination of what is “significant™ and “prolonged™ requires judgment. The Group
generally treats a decline of 20% or more of the original cost as “significant” and a period greater
than six months as “prolonged™ In addition, the Group evaluates other factors including normal
volatility in share prices for quoted securitics, future cash flows and discount fctors for unguoted
securities.

The carrying values of AFS cquity financial asscts are disclosed in Nete 150 Based on
management’s assessment, there has been no significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of
AF'S equity financial assets, thus, no imparment loss was recognized in 2013, 2014 and 2013.

Determination of the Functional Currency

Baszed on the economic substance of the underlying circumstances relevant to the Parent Company,
management determined its functional currency to be the Peso. It is the currency that mainly
influences the revenues, and costs and expenses of the Group.

Classification of Financial Instruments

The Group classifies a financial instrument, or ils component, on imtial recognition as a financial
asset, a financial liability or an equily instrument in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangement and the definitions of financial asset. financial liability and equity instrument. The
substance of a financial instrument, rather than its legal form, governs its classification in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

Financial assets are classified as financial assets at FVPL, loans and recevables, ITTM and ATS
financial assets. Financial labilities, on the other hand, are classified as financial liabilitics at FVPL
and other financial habilities. The Group determines the classification at initial recognition and re-
gvaluates the classification at every reporting date.

Revenue Recognition

Selecting an appropriate revenue recognition method for a particular real estate sale transaction
requires certain judgments based on the buyer’s commitment on the sale which may be ascertained
through the significance of the buver’s initial investment and completion of development. The
buver’s commitment is evaluated based on collections, credit standing and location of the property.
Completion of development s determined based on enmineer’s judgments and estimates on the
physical portion of contract work done and the completion of development beyond the preliminary

slage.

Condominium sales recognized in 2015, 2014 and 2013 are reflected in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income,
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Cont ingencies

The Group is currently involved i various legal proceedings. The estimates of the probable costs
for the resolution of these claims have been developed in consultation with the outside legal counsel
handling the defense in these malters and are based upon analyses of potential reports. Based on
management’s assessment, these proceedings will not have a material effect on the Group’s financial
position and performance (see Note 32),

Estimates and Assumplions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
reporting date that have a significant risk of causing material adjustments to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities are as follows:

Purchase Price Allocation in Business Combination.

The acquisition method requires extensive use of accounting estimates and judgments to allocate the
purchase price to the far market values of the acquiree’s identifiable assets and habiliies at
acquisition date. It also requires the acquirer to recognize goodwill. On April 30, 2014, the Group
acquired the 20% equity interest of Alphaland in SGCPI and FBSHI. The Group recognized
goodwill from the business combination as disclosed in Notes 12

Valuation of Financial Instruments

Financial instruments carried at fair values require the use of accounting cstimates.  While
significant components of fair value measurement are determined using wverifiable objective
evidence, it would differ if the Group utilizes a different valuation methodology. Any changes in the
fair values of financial instruments will affeet profit or loss and equity.

The fair values of financial instraments on initial recognition are normally the transaction prices.
These prices are indicative of actual and regularly occurring market transactions on an arm’s length
basis.

The fair values of the Group’s financial assets at FVPL and AFS financial assets traded in active
markets are based on quoted market prices at the reporting date. The quoted market prices used for
financial asscts held for rading are the current bid prices. The Group’s installment contracts
receivable’s and deposits from tenants” fair values are based on the present values of cstimated
fulure cash flows discounted using prevailing pre-tax discount rates at the reporting date.  The fair
values of the other financial instruments are estimated by discounting the future confractual cash
flows al the current market interest rates that are available to the Group at the reporting date for
similar financial instruments. The fair value measurement hierarchy of the Group’s fmancial
instruments is disclosed in Note 34.

Fstimation of Allowance for Impairment of Receivabies

The Group maintains an allowance for impairment of reccivables at a level considered adequate to
provide for potentially uncollectible receivables. The level of this allowance is evaluated by
management on the basis of the factors that affect the collectibility of the accounts. These factors
include, but arc not limited to, the length of the Group’s relationship with the customer, the
customer’s payment behavior and known market factors. The Group reviews the age and status of
receivables, and identifics accounts that are to be provided with allswance on a continuous basis.

Bad debts recognized in 2015, 2014 and 2013 are disclosed in Note 25. The carrying values of the
Group’s receivables and allowance for impairment of receivable as of December 31, 2015 and 2014
are disclosed in Note 7.

S0 : F
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Estimation of POC of the Projects

The Group®s revenue and cost recognition policies require management to make use of estimates and
assumptions that may affect the reported amounts of revenue and costs. The Group’s revenue from
condominium sales, recognized based on the POC, are measured principally on the basis of the
actual costs incurred to date over the total estimated project costs and by reference to the estimated
completion of a physical proportion of the contract worke The total project costs are estimated by
the Groups technical staff and are independently reviewed by the Group™s third party consultanis.
At cach reporting date, these estimates are reviewed and revised to reflect the current conditions,
when necessary.

OSP is 99% and §8% complete as of December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively. S5P is 53% and
28% complete as of December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively. The Rise is 10% and 1.88%
complete as of December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively. Shangri-La at the Fort is 70% and
54.73% complete as of December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively.

Fstimation of NRV

Propertics held for sale are carried at the lower of cost and NIV, NRV for completed condominium
unils is the estimated selling price of condotinium unit less cstimated costs necessary to make the
sale. NRV in respect of condominium units under construction is the cstimated sclling price of a
condominium unit less estimated costs to complete the construction, less estimated time value of
money to the date of completion and less estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

As of December 31, 20135 and 2014, carrying values of the Group™s properties held for sale are
disclosed in Note 8.

Determination of Fair Values of nvesanent Properties

The fair values of investment properties are determined by independent real estate valuation experts
using recognized valuation techniques. The fair value of the Group™s land is determined using the
market comparison method. Under the market comparison method (or market comparison
approach), a property’s fair value is estimated based on comparable transactions. The market
comparison approach is based upon the principle of substitution under which a potential buyer will
not pay more for the property than it will cost to buy a comparable substitute property. In theory, the
best comparable sale would be an exact duplicate of the subject property and would indicate, by the
lknown selling price of the duplicate, the price for which the subject property could be sold. The umt
af comparison applied by the Group is the price per square meter (sqm). The market comparison
approach is often used in combination with cither DCF or the income capitalization method as many
inputs to these methods are based on market comparison. Under the direct income capitalization
method, a property’s fair value is cstimated based on stabilized net operating income divided by an
appropriate capitalization rate. In some cases, fair values are determined based on recent real estate
transactions with similar characteristies and in the location to those of the Group™s assets. In the
absence of such nformation, the Group determines the amount within a range of reasonable fair
value estimates. In making its judgment, the Group considers information from variety of sources
including:

a. cwrrent prices in an active market for propertics of different nature. condition or location
{or subject to different lease or other contracts). adjusted to reflect those dillerences;

b. recent prices of similar properties in less active markets. with adjustments to reflect any changes
in cconomic conditions since the date of the transactions that occumred at those prices; and

c. slabilized net operating income based on reliable estimates of future cash fows, derived from
the terms of any existing lease and other contracts and (where possible) from external evidence
such as current market rents for similar properties in the same location and condition. and using
pre-lax discount rates that reflect current market assessments of the uncertainly m the amounts
and timing of the cash flows.
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The significant methods and assumptions used by the valuers in estimating Bair values of mvestment

‘properties are set out in Note 13, The fair values, which are also the carrying values of myvestment

properties as of December 31, 20135 and 2014 are disclosed m Note 13,

FUL af Praperiy and Eqguipment

The Group estimates the EUL of property and equipment based on the internal technical evaluation
and experience with similar assets. LEUL of property and equipment are reviewed periodically and
updated if expectations differ from previous estimates due to physical wear and tear, technical and
commercial obsolescence and other limits on the wse of property and equipment. There were no
changes in EUL of the Group’s property and equipment. As of December 31, 2015 and 2014, the
carryving values of property and equipment are disclosed in Note 146.

Impairment of Nonfinancial Assets, Inchuding Goodwill

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of impairment for all nonfinancial assets at
cvery reporting date.  Nonfinancial assets with indefinite life such as goodwill are tested for
impairment annually and at other times when impairment indicators exist. Other nonfinancial assets
arc tested for impairment when there are indicators that the carrving amounls may not be
recoverable,

The factors that the Group considers important which could trigger an impairment review include the

following:

= significant underperformance relative to expected tustorical or projected future operating results;

= significant changes in the mamner of usc of the acquired assets or the strategy for overall
business: and

= significant negative industry or economic trends.

If any such indication exists or in case of nonfinancial asscts with indcfinite life, the recoverable
amount of the asset is estimated. Whenever the carrving amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable
amount, an impairment loss is recognized.  The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair
value less costs to sell and value in use. The value in use caleulation s based on a direct income
capitalization model, The cash flows are derived from the budget for the next tive years and do not
include restructuring activities that the Group s nol yol committed to or sigmficant future
investments that will enhance the asset’s patormance of the CGU being fested. The recoverable
amount is sensitive to the discount rate used for the direct income capitalization model as well as the
expected future cash-inflows and the growth rate used for extrapolation purposes. Recoverable
amount is cstimated for an individual asset or, if it is not possible, for the CGU to which the assct
belongs.

As of December 31, 2013 and 2014, based on management’s assessment, there are no indications of
impairment for the rest of the Group™s nonfinancial assets composed of properties held for sale, input
tax and other current assets, investment in associates, investment properties, real estate development
projects, property and equipment and goodwill.

The key assumptions used to determine the recoverable amount for the goodwill and project of KRC
are disclosed in Note 12,

Fstimation of Retirement Bengfit Casts

The cost of defined benefit plan as well as the present value of defined benelt obligation 1s
determined using actuarial valuations. Actuarial valuations involve making various assumptions that
may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount
rates, foture salary increases, mortality rates and future retirement increases. Due to the complexity
of the valuations. the underlying assumptions and the long-term nature, defined benefit obligation is
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highly sensitive to changes in the assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.
“The net defined benefit liability as of Tecember 31, 2015 and 2014 are disclosed in Note 27,

In determining the appropriate discount rate, management considers the interest rates of government
bonds that are denominated in the curency in which the benefits will be patd. with extrapolated
maturilies comresponding to the expected duration of the defined benelit obligation.

The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables and is modified accordingly with
estimales of mortality improvements, Future salary increases and retirement increases are based on
expecled future inflation rates.

Further details about the assumptions used are provided in Note 27.

Realizability of Deferred Tax Assets

The Group reviews the carrying amounts of deferred tax assets (DTA) at each reporting date and
reduces them to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient Tuture taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax assets fo be ntilized. The Group expects to generate
sufficient future taxable profits to allow its recognized deferred income tax asscis Lo be ulilized.
Deferred tax assets recognized and unrecognized as of December 31, 2015 and 2014 arc disclosed in
Note 29,

Segment Information

The Group’s operating businesses are organized and managed according to the nature of the products
and serviees marketed, with each segment representing a strategic business unit that offers different
products and serves different markets. The Group has operations only in the Philippines. The Group
derives revenues from two main scgments as follows:

Property Development
This business scpment pertains to the sale of condominium units,

Leasing

This business segment pertains to the leasing operations of the Shangri-la Plaza Mall, The
Enterprise Center (TEC) and their related carpark operations. It also includes leasing of a portion of
the Parent Company’s land to EDSA Shangri-La Hotel and Resort, Ine. (ESHRI).

Other business seaments pertain to properly management services and the results of operations of
real estate entities and BVI companies.

Except for the rental revenue from ESHRI revenucs come from transactions with third partics.

There is no transaction with a single external customer that amounts o 10% or more of the Group’s
agoregale revenuss,
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3. Cash and Cash Equivalents

This account consists of:

2015 2014

Cash on hand and in banks P343,622,081 P404.681.437
Cash equivalents 3,697.547,661 2,506,323,383
P4,041,169742  P2911.004.820

Cash in banks earn interest at the prevailing bank deposit rates. Temporary investments are made for
three months or less depending on the immediate cash requirement of the Group and earn interest at
the respective temporary investment rates. Temporary investments, which have an average maturity
of 30 days, earn interest ranging from 1.25% to 2,13% in 2015, 1.75% to 2.00% in 2014, and 1.00%

to 1.8E% in 2013,

Total interest meome camed {rom cash m banks and cash equivalents amounted to P50,552 252,
P25.492 857 and P44,451.835 m 2015, 2014 and 13, respectively (see Note 23),

As of December 31, the Group’s cash and cash equivalents melude United States Dollar (USS) and

(HEKE) deposits with local banks as follows:

115 Dollar HE Dollar
2015 2014 2015 2014
Foreign currency $3,.374993 S1L48R.019 $215,786 F218.002
Peso equivalent P139,164.689 BG6,544,230  P1,314,138 P1,253.513
Closing exchange rate per dollar
as al Decembar 31 B47.16 P44.72 Bo.09 P5.75

Met unrcalized foreign exchange pains charged to profit or loss amounted
P880.730 in 2014 and P3,525,257 in 2013.

to P6,248.738 in 20135,

Financial Assels at FVPL

Financial assets at FVPL represent shares of stock of various publicly
December 31, 2015 and 2014

The movements in this account are as follows:

listed companies as of

2015 2014
Beginning balance B33.,012,524 B30,348.704
Far value adjustment (Note 23) 1,869,576 2,663,820
Ending balance B34.882,100 B33.012.524

The Group recognized unrealized gains (losses) om far value adjustments of the investments

amounting to PL369.576 in 2015, P2,663,820 in 2014, and (P1,926,992)
There were no additions or disposals in 2015 and 2014,

in 2013 {see Note 23).
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7. Reccivables

This aceount consists of

2015 2014
Trade:
Installment contracts receivable - net of
noncurrent portion of BA60,986,703
in 2015 and nil in 2014 P1163,008030  P2.842 228604
Rent {MNote 31) 194,320,946 201,286,080
MNontrade: :
Advances to confractors and suppliers 655,909,442 LO31, 179038
Related parties (Note 31) 72002777 42,794,114
Advances to officers and emplovees 5,732.997 7.695,914
Interest (Note 5) 4,396,733 1,697,524
{Others 51,129,262 43,424,463
2.180,491,09 4,170 305,823
Less allowanee for impairment loss 83,056,439 8,056,439

P2,172,434657 P4,162,249384

Installment contracts receivable represent noninterest-bearing receivables from sale of condominium
units with average lerm ranging from one o five years. These are carried at amortized cost and are
discounted using prevailing interest rates at the dates of tramsactions. Installment contracts
receivables are subject to either bank financing or in-house financing. The differences between the
present valucs and Face values of the receivables are amortized using the EIR method over the term
of the respective contracts.  Interest income from acerction of installment contracts recemnvable
amounted P180.854.605, P236.879.642 and B228,037.161 in 2013, 20014 and 2013, respectively (see
MNote 23}

Hental reccivables are noninterest-bearing and pertain to rental fees charged to tenants and to the
Group™s alliliates for the office, commercial and carpark spaces. The normal credit terms range
from 30 to 60 days.

Advances to contractors and supphers are noninterest-bearing downpayments and are captalized to
projects cost in the consolidated financial position, upon actual receipt of services or supplies, which
15 normally within 12 months or within the normal operating cycle.

The tetms, balances and transactions with related parties are disclosed in Note 31
Advances to officers and emplovees are normally settled within the nest financial vear.

Other recervables are nomnterest-bearing and consist of income from banner and non-tenant related
recevables.

The movements of the allowance for doubtful accounts in 2015 and 2014 that & individually
impaired as follows:

2015 2014
Beginning balance 8,056,439 P7.074,077
Bad debis - 982,362
Ending balance - P8,036,439 P8,056.439
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The following table shows the expected cash flows from installment contracts receivable as of
December 31:

2015 2014

Expected cash flows in:
2015 B P4T95,800,178
2016 3.767,.852.227 1099 457 377
2017 1,079,666,775 570,046,949
2018 460,203,122 047 885,065
20149 1,344 248 187 =
: : H,651,97T0311 . 7.113,189.5069
Less unamortized discount and uncamed income® 4,827 884,669 4270960875

P1,824,085642 P2 E42 728 694
*Unearmed income i5 the portion of the fotal contracts price of sold uwmits which remains lo be
unearvied as of the reporting period The amownt will be recognized as condomintivm sales as the
construction of the profects progress based on the percentage of completion of the projects,

As of December 31, 2013 and 2014, excess collections from condominium unit buyers over
recognized revenue based on the percentage of completion method were recorded as part of the
“Customers’ deposits™ account amounting to P1,165,035,149 and P945.320,881 respectively
(see Mote 18)

As of December 31, 2015 and 2014, installment contracts reccivables with a total nominal amount of
P1.839,103,127 and P2.872,095.478, respectively, were recorded at amortized cost amounting to
PLE24.085.642 and P2.842, 728,694, respectively.

The movements i the unamortized discount and uwncarned income on installment contracls
recetvable ave ag follows:

2015 2014
Beginning balance BLITOO6G08TS  P3.402.472504
Additions 5391.8581,197 4.869,645.906
Recognized as:
Condominium sales (4,654,102,798)  (3.764.277,893)
Intercst income (Note 23) (180,854,605) (236.879.642)
Ending balance P4.527.884.669 P4.270,90.875
Properties Held for Sale
This account consists of*
25 2014
Condommium units held for sale B74,941,130 B103, 768,502
Construction in progress TO8SB3142  5.669,340.192

P7.160,774272  B5.773,117.694

Condominium units for sale pertain to the completed residential condominium projects of the Group.

Construction in progress pertains to the Group™s on-going residential and mixed-use condominium
prajects.
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The movements in “Condominiam units held for sale™ account are as tollows:

2015 2014
Begmning balance 103,768,502 P119.518,437
Recognized cost of condominium sales (Note 24) (28,827.372) (15,749.935)
Ending balance 274,941,130 P103,768,502
The movements in “Construction in progress™ account are as tollows:
2015 2014
Begmning balance B5660,349,192 P2.373.99]1 358
Construction or development costs incurred
{Motes 1 and 12):
Construction cost 1,523,782,137 2034, 475,320
Land cost 1,028,067 503 497995, 1M
Project management expenses 131,465,358 174,969,320
Taxes, permils and licenses 62,067,527 40,333 923
Profissional and consultancy fees 61,316,890 149,262,935
Insurance and bonds 13,538,473 29,873,680
Others 53,327,389 28,986,047
Transfer from real estate development
prajects (Nate 14) 8EK, 757,454 2.815,955.676
Feeopnized cost of condominium sales (Note 24) (2, 345838,781)  (2.426.694187)

Ending balance P7,085,833,142  B5.669,349,192

O November 2, 2015, TRDCT and Vivelva Development Company, Inc. (VDCI) have entered o
a contract to sell the land where TRDCI s project is currently being constructed. The consideration
For the land shall be fir 2 minimum base price of P11 billion, exclusive of 12% VAT, Payment
term for the purchase price includes a down pavment upon signing the contract of fifteen per cent
{15%) of base price amounting to P165.0 million, cxclusive of 12% VAT, The remaining balance of
the purchase price shall be paid on a quarterly installment basis until full payment of the purchase
price. In 2013, interest cost related to the amortization of the installment payable was capitalized as
bormrowing cost amounted to PAS million. The unamortized discount on installment payable as of
December 31, 2013 amounted to B71.9 million.

Condominium units held for sale and construction in progress are stated at cost as of
December 31, 2015 and 2014, There were no allowances for inventory write-down as of
December 31, 2015 and 2014,

9. Input Tax and Other Current Assets

2015 2014

Input tax BL207.958471 PLO39.008,TH
CWT 296,539,147 22207813
Prepaid commassion 205,256,575 159,004,639
Cash in escrow - 352,027 489
Other prepand expenses 55,931,316 32 443 275
£1,765,695509 P1,305. 192006
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Input tax represents VAT paid to suppliers that can be claimed as credit against the future output
VAT habilities without preseription.

CWT s the tax withheld by the withholding agents from pavments to the Group which can be
apphed against the income tax payable

Prepaid commission pertains to the excess of the commission paud to properly consultants and
brokers over the commission expense recognized for the vear based on the percentage of completion,

Cash in escrow pertains o the cash deposited with a local bank in compliance with the escrow
agreement between TRDCL, a local bank and the Housing and Land Use Regulatory Board
{(HLURB}. The cash in escrow shall be released upon written notice of the HLURB to an escrow
agent upon submission by TRINCT of coertain requirements. In 2015, TRDCI has complied with the
requirements and rceerved a license to sell from HLURB. The cash in escrow has also been released
to the TRIXCL

Other prepayments mainly consist of advance payments for msurance, real property taxes, rent, and
other cxpenses which are normally utilized within the next financial vear.

10.

Investments in Associates and Joint Venture

This account consists of:

2mMs 2014
Acquisition costs:
Beginning balance BA9S 810,625 B2 200 388110
Additions to investment 10,500,000 13,000,000
Reclassitication as a result of business
combination (Note 12) —  {1.809.577 485)
Ending balance 306,310,625 195,810,625
Accumulated share in net income {losses);
Beginning balance (85020,396) 150,922,180
Share in net income (losses) of associates and a
Juint venture T0,658121 {9.692.903)
Reclassification as a result of business
combination (MNote 12} - (226.249.673)
Ending balance (14362275)  (85,020,396)

B491,948.350 P410,79),229

On April 30, 2014, the Group obtained control over its associates, both SGCPI and FBSHI, through
step acquisition as discussed in Note 12,

In 2013, the Group sold 623,800 common shares representing 33% mterest in Exchange Properties
Resources Corporation (EPRC) for a total consideration of PO2,000.000. Gain on the disposal of
EPRC shares recognized in the profit or loss amounted to P17438,767 (see Note 23).

The Group is restricted from declaring dividends out of the accumulated share m net profits untal
these are declared by the associates.
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All of the Group’s associates and joint venlure are considered to be immaterial individually, The
Group’s assoctates and joint venture are as follows:

Percentages of Ownershap

2015 2014
Sky Letswre Proparties, Inc. (SLPT) 50.00% 30.00%
Ideal Sites and Properties, Inc. (ISPI) 40,000 40.00%s
Orthers various VArToLs

The aggregate amount of the Group’s share m the net meome (losses) after tax and total
comprehensive income (losses) of these associates are B70,658,121 in 2013, (P9.692.903) in 2014
and (P4.674,079) in 2013,

As at December 31, 2015 and 2014, the Group has no share in any contingent liabilities or capital
cominitments.

11. Material Partly-Owned Subsidiaries

The proportion of equity intersst held by the NCL of KSA and SGCPL the Group®s subsidiaries with
NCT that are deemed material, are as follows:

23 2014
K5A 47.1% 47.1%
SGCHI 0% 40.0%

The summarized financial information of material subsidiarics arc provided below. This information
13 based on amounts before inter-company eliminations.

K84 Realty Corporation

2015 2014 2013

Summarized Statements of

Comprchensive Income
Rental revenue P99, 119,39 PO05,609013 PE36.632 4606
General and adminstrative

EXpEnses {63,034, 780) (61,821,297 (64,206,912)
Finance income {cost) — net 2,036,023 (1,724, 8806) {3,906,763)
Other income — net T47 660,456 7,507,820 3,796,880
Income hefore income Lax 1.678,781,095 349,630,656 TH,335.671
Provision for income tax : {403,222 929 {159,322.635) (1507439100

Total comprehensive income P1275,558166  P690.308021  P619,591,76]

Net income and total comprehensive income attributable to;
Equity holders of the Parent
Company 674,770,270 P363,172.943 B327.764,042
NCT 600,787 896 375,135,078 291,877,719
P1275,558,166  P690308021  P619,391,761

Dividends declared to NCI P282_ 600,000 P376, 800,000 Plod, 850,000
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215 2014
Summarized Statements of Financial Position
Current assets P655,921,294 B492 715,947
MNoncurrent assets 8,913,278,871 8,105,438,224
Current labilities (430,540, 293) {396,680,088)
Equity P7054008019 Po 378 449 853
Fquity attributable to:
Equity holders of the Parent Company F3,731,570243  P3374.199972
MNCT 3322437776 3,004,249 881
P7,054,008019  P6.378.449.853
205 2014
Summarized Statements of Cash Flows
Oiperating activities 2620,753,300 PTT0.395 062
Investing activitics (8,331.,564) (3.757.036)
Financing activities {468,595,467) {BO1073,780)
Met effect of exchange rale changes on cash and
cash equivalents 34,931 281
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents £143,861,200 B75,567.069

Shang Global City Properties, Inc.

Dividends paid to NCIL amounted to #226,080,000 in 2015 and B376.800,000 in 2014,

2= 2014
Summarized Statements of Comprehensive
Income
Sale of condomimum wnits $1,258,520,181 B425, 762,627
Cost of sales of condomimium units (SH2,981,253) {(208,513.630)
CGieneral and administrative expenses (217,577.962) (16,697 532)
Other income - net 1,108,845 4,464,422
Income before income tax 459,070,511 205,015,881
FProvision for income tax (140,504,026) (58.303,499)
Total comprehensive income P318,566,T85 B146, 712,382
Net income and total comprehensive income atfributable to:
Equity holders of the Parent Company P191,140,071 BEE02T7 429
NCI 127,426,714 58,684,953
P318.566,783 P146,712 382
Summarized Statements of Financial Position
Current assels P4,700,699,511  P4.279.418,110
Noncurrent asscts 10,734,362,780  8,290,510,828
Current labilities (1,645,496,245)  (5,393,047,264)
MNoncurrent liabilities (8,220,977,222) (6.833.3539.633)
Hquity P5559,588824  P3d3.522.030
Lquity attributable to:
Equity holders of the Parent Company $3.335,753.295 P06, 113,223
NCI 2223835529 137,408,816
£5,559,558,824 P343,522.039
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As a result of the business combination in 2014, NCI was remeasured in the 2014 consohdated

statements of financial position resulting to additional balance amounting to P823,672481 (see
MNote 12}

On Angust 3. 2015, SGCPI has tssued preference shares of stocks to its stockholders equivalent to

the amount of deposit for [oture stock subscription amounting to P4,897.499.000, of which
B1,939 000,000 pertaing to NCIL

pll) ) 2014

Summarized Statements of Cash Flows
Operating activities : BT41.340,014  (F2949489.701)
Investing activities (3, 154,581,107) {182.322.639
Financing activities 2,198,387.500 3,378,025,000
Net effect of exchange rate changes on cash and

cash equivalenis 924,376 156,99
Net increase {(decrease) in cash and cash

equivalentis 213929217} P26, 369,656

No dividends was declared and paid by SGCPL in 2015 and 2014

The principal place of business of KSA 15 al Admimistration Office, Shangri-La Plaza Mall, Edsa
corner Shaw Boulevard, Mandaluyong City while the principal place of business of SGCPI is at
Crescent Park West District, Fort Bonifacio Global City, Taguig City.

12. Business Combination and Goodwill

Acquisition of additional 20% equity interest in SGUPT and FESHT

On Apnl 30, 2014, SGCHI and SFBHL both wholly owned subsidiaries of the Parent Company,
cach entered mlo an agreement and acquired the 20% cquity interest of Alphaland Development, Inc.
{Alphaland) in SGCPI and FRSHL

Prior to the acquisition, the Parent Company through SGCIHI and SFBHI effectively owned 40%
equity interest in SGCPI and FBSHIL. SGCHI and SFBHI each acquired from Alphaland additional
20% mterest m SGCPT and FRSHI respectively, for a  lodal cash  consideration  of
BL700,000,000.  As a result of the step acquisition, the Group obtained controlling interest in
SGCPI and FBSHI owning 60% equity interest over each of the acquired entities.

The following are the fair values of the identifiable assets acquired and habilitics assumed as of date
of acquisition:

B3PI FREIL TOTAL

Asszis
Cash and cash equivalents P52 912485 P173.0539.023 234,951 508
Eeceivables 26961 1.342.Ta2 1,369 723
Property under development 4, B0 000 01K 6,696, 161,000 11,496, 161000
Prepayments and other current asseis 27722029 566,766,301 B35, 488,330
Property and equipment - net - 2 786,769 2,786,769
Eefundable deposit 15,275,500 15,275,800
5131 601,475 T.457 371,655 12589033, 130
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SGCH JQERINN TOTAL
Liabilities

Trade and other payables P3,165.762 1"399.637.815 P02 803,577
Income tax pavable - 13615 13,615
Long term bank loan - 4,005 4991 38 400 400 138
Dreposit for future stock subscription 1976487102 1,94] 512858 3,918, 000,000
Drclerred tax liahility 782,412,852 154,058,230 Y37,071,122
2762065756 6,594.321,6% 5.356,387,452

Total identifiable net assets at fair
vilue 2369595719 863,049,939 3,232,645.678
CGroadwall 1401,355,21 ] 129,515,653 260,370,864
Acquisition cost F2,509 950930 POu2 565612 P3.502 516,542

As of acquisition date, the fair value of SGCPPs and FBSHIs property under development
amounted to PESO0HLO00 and P.696, 161,000, respectively. Their carrying amounts in SGOPTs
and FESHI's books amounted to B2 373 8400000 and P6, 180,633,566, respectively.

The far values of other assets and habihties approximate ther carrying amounts since these are
short-term m nature or with current market terms.

The cost of the acquisition is determimed as follows:

SGCHI FBESHI Tatal

Cash paid 009 571,770 Paon 428,224 P00 000 00

Non-controlling interest 750,189,577 151,068,694 Q01,258,271
Acquisition-date fair value of

previcusly held interest 750,189,577 151,068,694 901,258,271

P2,509,950,930 PO92,565,612 P3,.502,516,542

Analysis of cash flow on acquisition s as follows:

Cash paid {1, T00,000,0000
Net cash acquired from subs idiarics 234,951,508
Net cash outtlow on acquisition (P1.463.048,492)

Non-controlling interest and far value of previously held inferest have been measured at the
proportionate share of the net identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed at fair value,

Gain from remeasurement of the previously held interest to fair value amounting to P824.431,141 s
recognized in profit or loss in 2014,

Goodwill from the business combination amounted to B269.870, 864,

From the date of acquisition (April 30, 2014) to December 31, 2014, SGCPL the surviving entity in
the merger, contributed P4235,762,627 of revenue and P207.861.063 of income before tax to the
Group, If the combination had taken place at the beginning of the vear, there would be no change in
the total revenue of the Group but mmcome before tax of the Group would have been
P4112988 684,

Merger of SGCPI and FBSHI
On May 3, 2014, the BOD and sharcholders of SGCPI and FBSHI approved a proposed merger
between SGCPL and FRSIHL On September 2, 2014, the article of merger was executed between
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SGCPL and FBSHI. The SEC approved the Companies™ application for merger on
December 17, 2014,

The merger 15 intended to accumulate the costs of construction in the surviving entity, allowing for
better tax management, The plan of merger states that FBSHI will transter to SGCPI its business
properties, assets and liabilities that are reflected in its April 30, 2014 audited {inancial statements.
Beftore and atter the merger, both companies are effectively under the common control of Kerry
Group Limited (KGL). KGL is the indirect parent company and investor of the stockholders of
SGCPLand FBSHIL As a result, the merger was accounted for using the pooling of interests method.
The merger has no effect on the carrying amounts of the Group’s assets and Habilities.

Goodwill
CGroodwall acquired through business combinations has been allocated to SGCPL the CGUL for
imparment testing.

The recoverable amount of the CGU has been based on value in use calculation using cash flow
projections from financial budgets approved by management covering a five-year period. The pre-
fax discount rate applied to cash flow is 14.36% Cash flows bevond the five-year period are
extrapolated using a steady growth rate of 3%, which does not excesd the compound annual growth
rate for the real estate industry. As a resull of the analysis, management did not identily impairment
tor this CGUL

Key Assumptions Used in Value in Use Calculations
The caleulations of value in use for the CGU are most sensitive to the following assumptions:

s Gross Margins - Gross margins are based on average values achieved i one to five years
preceding the beginning of the budget period from other similar affiliated entities.

e Discound Rates - Discount rales represent the current market assessment of the nsks specific to
the CGU, taking into consideration the time value of money and individual risks of the CGU that
have not been incorporated in the cash flow cstimates. The discount rate is derived from its
weighted average cost of capital (WACC). The WACC takes into account both debt and equity.
The cost of equity is derived from the expected return on investment. The rates used to discount
the future cash flows are based on risk —free inferest rates in the relevant markets where the
CGU operates. The beta factors are based on publicly available market data. Adjustments to the
discount rate are made o factor in the specilic amount and timing of the future tax flows in order
to reflect a pre-tax discount rate.,

s Growth Rate Nstimates - Rates are based on published industry research.

o Market Share Assumptions - When using industry data for growth rates (as noted above), these
assumptions are mportant because management assesses how the umt’s position, relative to its
competitors, might change over the forecast pertod. Management expects its share of the real
eslate markel Lo be slable over the forecast period.

Sensitivity to Changes tn Assumptions

With regard to the assessment of value in use of the CGU, management believes thal no reasonably
passible change in any ol the above key assumplions would cause the carrymg value of the property
to exceed ifs recoverable amount.
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13. Investment Properties

- _ 2015
Land Buildings Total
Beginning balances P8,802,510220 PI18,308327,268 E27,110.867,488
Crain (loss)y on fair value
adjustments TTRI2L840  (228.897,180) 549,224,660
Additions through
subsequent expenditures i S18,475,727 518,475,727
Ending balances P9.580,602.000 PI18.597905815 B28,178,567.875
2014
Land Buildings Total
Beginning balances P8.802 540,220 P17 940685, 730 P26,743,225.950
Additions throush
subsequent expenditures - 367,641,538 367,641,538
Ending balances P8.802,540.220 P18308327.268 P27.110.867.488

The Group’s investment properties consist of commercial properties in Mandaluyong City and
Makati City under office, retail and land classes of asset. and other parcels of land held for capital
appreciation.  These classes of assets are based on the nature, characteristics and risks of cach
propetty.

As of December 31, 2015 and 2014, the fair values of the propertics are based on valuations
performed by Royal Asia Appraisal Corporation, an SEC accredited independent valuer. The
valuation models are in accordance with that recommended by the International Valuation Standards
Commiltee,

The Group has no restrictions on the realizability of its investment propertics and no contractual
obligations to purchase, construet or develop investment propertics or for repairs, mamtenance and
enhancements.

The fair value measurements for investment properties have been categorized as Level 2 for
parcels of land and Level 3 Tor office and retail propertics.  The current use of these properties is
their highest and best use.

The fair valuc of the Group’s land is determined using the market comparison method. Under the
markel comparison method (or market comparison approach), a property’s lair value 15 cstimated
based on comparable transactions. The market comparison approach is based upon the principle
of substitution under which a potential buver will not pay more for the property than it will cost to
buy a comparable substitute property. In theory, the best comparable sale would be an exact
duplicate of the subject property and would indicate, by the known selling price of the duplicate,
the price for which the subject property could be sold. The unit of comparison applied by the
Group is the price por square meler (sqm). The markel comparison approach s often wsed n
combination with either DCF or the income capitalization method as many mputs to these
methods are based on market comparison.

The following table presents the valuation techniques and unobservable key inputs used to value the
Group’s investment properties categorized as Level 3,
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Range of

Unobservable
[hputs
Fair Value as of {probability - Relationship of
Class of December 31, Valuation  Unobservable weighted  Unobservable [nputs
Property 2015 Technique Tnputs average) to Fair Value
TEC (Office)  PE40.733000  Dircctincome  Rental value Pa55to  The higher the rental
capitalization P1.260 per value, the higher the
sguare meter fanr value
Average long- 97 The higher the
term ocoupancy rate, the
ocoupaney higher the fair value
rate
Expense - 6.05% The higher the
TEVENUE ratio NSNS — FEVenue
raticy, the lower the
fair value
Capitalization 9 The higher the
rate discount rate, the
lower the fair value
Nain Wing, PR3 200000 Direct income Rental value P1.42510  The higher the rental
and Easl capitalization 1,890 per value, the higher the
Wing of square meter fair value
Shangri-La
{ Retail)
Average long- 7% The higher the
term ocoupancy rate, the
OECUPAnGY higher the fair value
rate
FExpense - 21% The higher the
revenue ratio SXPENSE — TeVenue
ratio, the lower the
fair value
Capitalization 9% The higher the
rate dhscount rate, the

lower the far value

Fair values for investment properties are caleulated using the direct income capitalization method,
which results in these measurements being classificd as Level 3 in the fair value hierarchy, In
applying the dircel meome capilalization method, the stabileed nel operating meome (WOI) of cach
property is divided by an appropriale capitalization rate. Capitalization rate s based on actual
location, size and quality of the property and taking into account any available market data at the
valuation date. Stabilized NOI 15 the revenues less property operaling expenses adjusted for items
such as average lease up costs, long-term vacancy rates, non-recoverable capital expenditures,
management fees, straight-line rents and other non-recurring items.

Generally, an increase in stabilized NOT will result in an increase to the fair value of an investment
property.  An increase in the capitalization rate will result in a decrease to the faw value of an
investment property. The capitalization rate magnifies the effect of a change in stabilized NOL with
a lower capitalization rate resulting in a greater impact of a change in stabilized NOI than a higher
capitalization rate.
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The following are the significant unobservable inputs:

s fental Falue

Average rental rate per square meter paid by tenants based on the asking price in the market;

= Discount Rotes

Reflecting current market assessments of the uncertainty in the amount and timing of cash flows:

= Average long-term occupancy rate

Based on current and expected future market conditions afller expiry of any current leasc;

= [ypense — Revenue Hatio

Total direct operating expenses for the entire property based on budget.

Eental revenue recogmized lor investmenlt properties and direct operating expenses incured for the

leasing operations m 215, 2014 and 2013 arc as follows:

2015 2014 2013
Rental revenue B2,676,323,065 P2624.893.646 P2338.900,151
Direct operating expenses S04, 495,691 440,430,051 419,425 983

Profit arising from investment
properties carried at fair value  £2.271,824,374

P2.184 463595

P1.919 564 168

14.

Real Estate Development Projects

STCPT

In 2014, the Group recognized the real estate development project of SGCPI in the consolidated

tinancial statements as a result of the business combination (ses Note 12),

The real estate development project pertains to the construction cost of the hotel and residence
portion of SGCPUs Shangri-la at the Fort project, while the construction cost of the project’s

condominium units are classified as Construction in Progress under Propertics Held for Sale,

The “Real estate development projects™ account consists of the followmg:

2015 2014
Structure and architectural works B3 257,705,655 B2.570,735,19
Building service 2,673,404,471 1.979.081.659
Cost of land 2ITIBMMN0  2.373,840,000
Interior filting out works 2233,152,58% 1.058,993. 369
Site formation and subsiruclure 1,.251,650,938 1,242, 280,854
Finance cost (Note 19) 984,828,502 304,457,410
Protessional consultancy fees 881,076,757 834,248 066
Project management expenses 395,520,127 299,164.168
Project management and technical fee 87544616 69529419
Preliminaries and preparation works 53,171,570 41,215,442
Taxes, permits and licenses 51,917,971 38,347 830

{Forward)
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2015 2014

Artworks and display itemns PI18538,192 P-
Sofl landscaping 12,177,293 £
Retention fee = 258,248 524
Others 65,414,006 15,210,221
Total construction and development

costs incumed 14,339,942, 986 11.085,552 164
Construction and development costs transterred

to real estate held for sale (Note ) (3,7T04,T13,130) (2,815,9355,676)
Fair value adjustments due to business

combination (Note 12) | 2,941,687,434 2941687434

P13,576917,290 P11.211283 922

KRC

As of December 31, 2013, the real estate development project pertains to the project of KRC that
had underpone initial development activities. Costs incurred for this project include initial
construction costs, architect and professional fees, project management costs and borrowing costs.

In 2013, the Board of KRC subsequently approved the redevelopment of this real estate project.
Thus, the Group reversed the accumulated impairment losses amounting to B181,954,697 which
resulted from the uncertainty on the planned development due Lo suspension of the project. The
recoverable amount of the real estate project s determined based on a value in use calculation using
cash [low projections from financial budgets approved by management covering a four-vear period.
The cash flows have been prepared to reflect the market selling price of a condominium unit per
square meter and the expected costs of its construction per square meter.  The preax discount rate
applied to the cash low projections is 21%.

In 2014, KRC acquired 100% ownership interest over TRDCL an entity incorporated on April 22,
2014 and registered with the SEC. On the same date, KRC transferred to TRDCI its contractual
obligation to develop a high rise condominium building located in Makati City.  Construction
activities tor the project commenced in 2014, As a result, the entire carrying amount of real estate
development project amounting to P484.885 587 was reclassified to Construction in Progress in
2014 (see Note 8).

15. AFS Financial Asscts

This account consists of:

205 2014

At cost - unquoted 488,826,327 P43%.826.,327
At fair value — quoted

Aequisition cost 92.121,515 9121515

Cumulative changes in fair valuc 6,925,000 4. 875,000

- 16,046,515 13,996,515

P5IH,872.542 B502,322.842

Unequoted equity securities include unhisted shares of stock which the Group will continue to carry as
part of its ivestment. The fair value of this investment cannot be reliably determined. thus, it is
carried at cost less allowanee for impairment, if any.
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The quoted equily securitics consist of investment in various golf club shares and stocks. These are
carried at fair values with cumulative changes in fair valucs presented as part of “Other components

&

of cquity,
date.

" The fair values of these shares are based on the quoted market prices as of the reporting

Management intends to dispose the quoted and unquoted equity shares through sale, as the need
arises. The movement in the cumulative changes in fair value of AFS financial assets 15 as follows:

2015 2014 23
Beginning balance B4,875,000 B4 375,000 B4,075.000
Inerease in fair value 2,050,000 300,000 300,000
‘Ending balance B0,925.000 P4,875.000 B4, 375,000
16. Property and Equipment
This account consists oft
2015
Furnture,
Building and Fidures and
Building  Transporiation Cither
Improvements Equipment  Eguipment Total
Cost
Beginning balances PHAMMZEZE E3IS015700 B1OO921,742 222 880,276
Adlditions 221,230 9,033,560 ¥3.352.074 92,606,804
Disposals (SRTAT3) (2.605356)  (4,780,653) {7,973 482)
Reclassification - (2570,53T) (2 AR7.588) {5,058,125)
Ending balances 86,576,591 38873367 177,005,575 302,455,533
Accumulated Depreciation and
Amortization
Beginning balances 50,355,965 26,869,710 TR.645,184 155,870,859
Drepreciation and amortization 5,891,585 5,550,553 12,876,214 24,318,355
isposals (SRT.473) (2.605,356)  (4,780,653) (7,973 .482)
Reclassification - (L5T0536)  (2487.558) (5,058,124)
Ending balances 55,600,080 27244371 54,253,157 167,157,608
Net Book Values BI0916511 PI11G62899% PB92.752.418 R135297 925
2014
Furmiture,
Building and Fixtures and
Building  Transportation {ither
Improvements Equipment Fguipment Total
Cost
Beginning balances P83,001,439  DP32812778  PR635390676  [P204 153,803
Additions 1,541 395 3,914,527 15,542,640 21,398,562
Reclassification - (1,711,605) (0,5 74) (2672179
Ending balances 86,942 534 35015700 100921742 222 880276
Accumulated Depreciation and
Amartization
RBeginning kalances 46,863 (89 22,671,262 67,523,922 137,038 273
Depreciation and amortization 34592870 2010053 12081819 21484748
Reclassification - {1,711 605) (960,557) (2.672,162)
Ending balances 500355 065 26,869710 75,645 184 155 ¥70 859
Net Book Values P30,586, 869 BB 145900 P22276558 PATOHE41T
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Total depreciation and amertization amounting to B1LE0A388 i 2015 and P1O70,591 in 2004 were
capitalized as part of construction in progress.

As at December 31, 2015 and 2014, the gross carrving amount of fully depreciated property and
equipment still n use amounted to P115.939,9%66 and PO4.520. 818, respectively,

There are no restrictions on the Group’s fitle on the property and equipment and there are no

property and equipment pledged as securily for liabilities.

17. Other Noncurrent Assets

This account consists of:

2015 2014

Refundable deposits PS8, 480,593 Pos 414064
Retirement asset (Maote 27) 4,923,100 -
Others TA28 79,6
P63, 411,421 P08, 493,754

Fefundable deposits are cash paid by the Group for utilitics and which are expected to be returned
afier a specified period of time, or when certain conditions are satisfied

18, Accounts Payable and (Mther Current Liabilities

This aceount consists ol

2015 2014
Trade:

Accounts payable BSI3 8T8 353 P293.203. 247
Adhvanced rental 238,751,652 244 333 788

Accrued expenses:
Construction 635,073,513 925 298, 088
Taxes 165,897,633 108,920, 388
Utilities 39,004,153 4D, 803,660
Titling cost 52,122,450 8,307,633
Performance bonus 4R 528,538 3R, 53T9449
Administrative 41,681,163 28.707910
Interest I8 435379 47,886,875
Cutside services 28,153,985 13,329,749
Commission 23852115 47.604,434
Repairs and maintenance 15,733,544 12,591 641
Professional fees 6,520,746 7.930,546
Others 65,243,536 46232805
Customers” deposits (Note 7) 1,255, 778,764 992 139,826
Retention payables 1,171.834,115 1006, 949,126
Reservation payables 408,504,556 367,124 866
Advances from condominium unit buyers 293 547,261 217,346,741

(Forward)
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2015 2014

Comstruction bongs B54.657.350 B34.535992
Payable to contractors and suppliers 44,097,825 44 097825
MNontrade:
Deferred output VAT 139,736,544 107,826,686
Withholding taxes 53,117,569 30,767,384
Payable to related partics (Note 31) 45,224,002 43629767
Output VAT 42,691,007 43697652
Other current liabilities 85,320,129 41,277.077

B5,557,385891  P4.883,213,157

Accounts payable and accrued expenses are noninterest-bearing and are normally seltled within 30
to 60 days and within the next financial year, respectively.

Advanced rental pertains to the advance rental collected from tenants and are usually applied for the
subsequent months.

Other accrued expenses consist of accruals for adverlising and promotions, insurance, other
employves related cost and other general and administrative expenses.

Eetention payables represent the portion of contractor billings which will be paid upon satisfaction
by the contractors of the conditions specificd in the contracts or until the defects have been
corrected.

Customers” deposits mainly represent excess of collections from buyers over the related revenue
recognized based on the percentage of completion method.

Reservation payables pertain to cash paid by the buyers of condominium units for the reservation of
the units purchased. These shall be considered as part of the downpayment on the unils purchased
upon execution of the contracts.

Advances from condominium unit buyers pertam to the amounts recenved in advance from the
condominium unit buyers of The St Francis Shangri-La Place (TSFSP) and OSP for utilities,
maintenance, and repairs of common arcas.  These will be paid to The St. Francis Shangri-La Place
Condominium Corporation (TSFSPCC) and One Shangri-La Place Condominium Corporation
{OSPCC) when demanded.

Construction bonds pertain to cash deposits posted by tenants as security for any expenses or
damages that may be mcured by SLPC in relation to construction activitics conducted by the tenants
during the fit-out, as well as during renovation period of the lease. It s normally returned Lo the
tenants within six months after completion of their construction activitics.

Payable to contractors and suppliers represents progress billings from various contractors for the
material and labor costs meurred to date with normal credit terms of 30 to 60 days, but may go
bevond as agreed.

Deferred output VAT s the result of the difference in the application of installment method
between the accounting policy of the Company and the tax regulations. It will be reclassilicd 1o
output VAT payable when the collections from condominium unit buyers warrant recognition of

TevVEnmue.
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Withholding taxes payable are expected to be settled within the next financial vear.

The terms, balances and the volume of related party transactions which were and were not
eliminated during consolidation are disclosed in Note 31,

Cutput VAT represents tax due and payable after deducting the comesponding imput VAT,

Other current liabilities pertain mainly to taxes, insurance, and various immaterial account balances,

. Bank Loans

This account consists of borrowings of the following entitics:

2015 2014

SGCPI (Note 12) PRY964,329487 P65, 752835,572
Parent Company 3,200, (00, 00eD 5.095,833.333
SLPC 300,000,004 300,000,000
12,464,329,487  12,148,668,905

Iess cumrent portion 867,751,562 383 333333
Noncurrent portion P11,596,577.925 P11,565335572

SGCFT

OUn February 17, 012, the Board of the Parent Company passed and approved a resolution wherein
it agreed to act as a surety to the loan of FBSHI, now SGCPL, the surviving entity in a merger as
discussed in Note 12, On April 11, 2012, FBSHI secured a P10,000,000,000 long-term loan facility
with a local bank to finance the construction of a hotel, serviced apartment, and residential units in
Fort Bonifacio, Taguig City in relation to the Shangri-La at the Fort Project.  Under the conlinuing
surctyship agreement executed between the Parent Company and the local bank on May 23, 2012,
the Parent Company agresd to be solidarily liable to the extent of 30% of any and all amounts due
under the loan agreement between FESHI and the local bank. The local bank is entitled under
current jurisprudence to demand directly from the Parent Company any and all amounts due.

Under the terms of the loan agreement, the principal amount of the loan shall be payable in 24 equal
quarterly consecutive installments commencing on the 17th quarter from the mitial drawdown, with
the last installments in an amount sufficient to fully pay the loan. Interest shall be paid on each
mnterest payment date for the relevant interest period based on three-month treasury bill rate as
published in the Philippines Dealing System Treasury Reference Rates — 2 (PDST-R2). Effective
October 2015, the interest shall be based on the higher between the PDST-R2 rate plus spread of
1.85% par annum and the Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas (BSP) overnight borrowing rate minus spread
of 0.95% per annum. SGUPI has the option to prepay and to fix the interest rate. Further, SGCPI is
required to maintain a 2.5:1 ratio of debt to tangible net worth, which was complied with by SGCPL

The loan is sceured by an absolute and unconditional continuing suretyship of the sureties namely
Shangri-La Asia Limited and the Parent Company.

The loan is subject to a front-end fee of 23 basis points (0.25%) of the total principal amount. The
front-cnd lee 15 considered a fransaction cost which is allocated based on each drawdown and
amortized using effective interest rate. Debt issue costs also include the documentary stamp tax paid
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by SGCPI for each drawdown. As of December 31, 2015 and 2014, unamortized debt issuc cost
amounted to P45.670513 and P42 164428 respectively. Total interest expense. meluding
amortization of transactions costs, amounted to BG80,371,392 and B304,457 410 in 2015 and 2014,
respectively, Capitalized interest in 2015 and 2014 amounted to the same amounts and is included as
part of *Construction in progress™ and “Tleal estate development projects™.

Subject to the negative covenants of the loan, from and after signing the loan agreement and for as
long as the loan is outstanding, SGCPL without the prior written consent of the bank, shall not
declare or pay dnadends fo s stockholders (other than dividends payable solely m sharcs of its
capital stock) if payment of any sum due to the bank is in arrears.

Farent Company

On February 12, 2008, the Parent Company obtained an unsecured ten-year term Ioan facility from a
lirzal bank amounting to B3, 300,000,000 with interest based on the higher between the PDST-R2
rate plus 0.73% per annum and the BSP overnight borrowing rate. The loan is payable in 24 cqual
guarterly mstallments commencing on the 17th quarter from the inttial borrowing dale and 15 subject
to a debt-to-cquity ratio of 3:1 which was complicd with by the Parent Company.  The Parent
Company has fully drawn the facility as of December 31, 2009 The loan has been repaid in full in
2015,

On July 30, 2012, the Parent Company obtained another ten-vear loan facility from a local bank
amounting to B5,000,000.000 with interest based on the higher between the three-month Treasury
Bill ratc as published in the PDST-R2 plus a spread of (075% per annum and the BSP overnight
borrowing rate. The Company has a one-time option to convert from a floating rate into a fixed rate.
The loan 15 payable in 24 equal quarterly mstallments, commencing on the 17ih quarter rom the
inilial borrowing date. It s secured by a ‘nesative pledge’ on all present and futlure assels of the
Parent Company and is subject to a debt service coverage ratio of 3:1 which was complied with by
the Parent Company. Total drawdown from the facility amounted to P3. 200000000 as of
December 31, 20135 and 2014

SLPC

On June 25, 2007, the Company oblamed an unsccured  seven-year term loan from a local bank
amounting to POOC,000.000 for working capital and refinancing of the Company’s existing loan with
interesl based on Philippines Interbank Reference Rate (PHIREF) rate plus 0.73% poer annum.  The
Company has fully settled the loan in 2014,

On November 5, 2012, SLIX obtained an unsceured ten-year term loan facility from a local hank
amounting to BT 400,000,000 to partially finance its mall redevelopment program with interest based
on the higher between the PDST-R2 rate plus 0.75% per annum and the BSP overmght borrowing
rate. The loan s payable in 24 equal quarterly nstallments commencing on the 17th quarter from
the initial borrowing date and is subject debi-to-equity ratio of 3:1 and debt coverage ratio of not
lower than 1.2 which was comphicd with by SLPC.
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The current and noncurrent portions of the bank loans as of December 31 and its movements during
the vear are as follows:

e N— 2015 2014
Beginning principal balance B12, 148,668,905  P4.943.452381
Proceeds from loan availment,

net of unamortized debt issue costs 2 211,493,915 3754336434
Principal payments during the vear {1,895,833,333) (0476 19,04%)
Loan acquired from SGCFI as a result of

the business combination = 4098499138
Ending principal balance N 12464329487 12.148668.905
Less current portion 867,751,562 383,333,333
Nomeurrent portion P11,396,577,925 P11.565335 572

Inlerest expense ansing from the above loans charged to profit or loss m 2015, 2014 and 2013
amounted to P167,764,626, P194,498, 162 and P182,181,047, respectivelv (see Note 23).

Repayment Schedule
The repayments of long-term debt arc schedoled as of December 31, 2015 is as follows:
Y ear Amount
2016 PR34. 166,667
2017 2072500000
2018 2085000000
2019 2,085,000,000
2020 20835 000,000
2021 2,085,000000
2022 1,200,833 333
2023 i 12,500,000
12,510,000,000
Unamortzred debt 1ssue cost . (43,670,513}
B12 464,329 487

20. Deposits from Tenants

This account represents noninterest-hearing rental deposits from tenants equivalent to six months”
rent which have been discounted using PDST - R2 rates and are carried at amortized cost. The
difference between the discounted and face values of the deposits was recognized as deferred lease
income. Deferred lease income is amortized on a straight-line basis over the lease term and is
recognized in profit or loss as additional renl meome.  Interest s acercted on the deposits from
tenants using the EIR method and is recognized as additional interest expense in profit or loss,

The movements in the wnamorlizcd discount on deposits from lenants for the years ended

December 31 are as follows:
s 2014
Beginning balance P39.985135 B33, 767608
Additions 7,885,426 36,941,551
Amortization of discount (Note 23) {26,188,290) (30,224 024}
};lp-m‘i_m I:rariﬂmet £21.682271 B39,985,135
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21. Equitly

The details of the Parent Company s capital stock as of December 31, 20135 and 2014 arc as follows:

Na. of Shares Amount
Authorized - P1 par value S.000,000,000  BEOOCL000.000
Unsubscribed (2,235941.018)  (3.235941,018)
Subscribed, issucd and fully paid 1764058982 4.764,058.982
Treasury shares (2. 140.645) {2.140.645)
Issued and outstanding 4.761,918337  P4.761,918.337

The Parent Company s listed in the Philippine Stock Exchange. It was registered on June 13, 1991
with total listed shares of 4,764,058,982 which was initially issucd at B1L 18 per share.  As at
December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013, the Parent Company has 5,403, 5457 and 5,553 stockholders,
respectively. The details of the Parent Company s stockholders are disclosed in the annual report.

There are 2,140,645 shares that are in the treasury amounting to P6.850.064 as of
Drecember 31, 2015 and 2014

As of December 31, 2015 and 2014, retained carnings of the Group include accumulated fair value
adjustments of investment properties not available for dividend declaration amounting to
P12,871,839,543 and P12.322,614 883, respectively, of which P4,103.242,307 and P5,130,258,834,
respectively, pertains to fair value adjustments of subsidiaries,

. Dhividends

As of December 31, 2015 and 2014, unpaid dividends amounted to B148,464,960 and B104,204,980,
respectively (see also Note 11),

The Parent Company’s Board approved the declaration of the following cash dividends for the years
ended December 31:

Date of Declaration Record Date Total Per Share

2015
March 27 April 15 P4, 763,059 BD.OSS
August 18 September 3 333,334,596 0.070
ET38.097.655 B).155

2014
February 19 March 17 333,484,129 0070
August 14 August 29 309.375,117 (.065
Bo42 859,240 B, 135

2013
February 27 Warch 13 285 843 539 PO.OGD
August 14 Aupust 30 237,967 698 0,030

P523.811,237 PO.110
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23. Interest Income, Other Income, and Interest Kxpense and Bank Char ges

Interest Income

20153 2014 2013
Interest on:
Aceretion of mslallment
contracts receivable
(Note T) 180,854,605 B236,879,642 228037, 161
Cash in banks and
cash cquivalents (Note 5) 50,552,252 25,492,852 44,451 855
Orvverdue accounts from
tenants 5,466,159 6,988,335 6,937,831
P236,873,016 P260.361,029 P79 426 867
Other Tncome (Charges)
2Ms 2014 2013
Dividend income 40,033,691 P15.234 198 P18 823 456
Admimistration and
management fee (Note 31) 14,086,986 12 806,351 11,642,137
Income from back-out buyers 9,216,137 2609 798 3. 181,975
Customer lounge fec 7,399,531 3,439,786 8,267,732
Banner income 4,443,506 2,141,016 2,675,584
Setvice revenue - net 2,754,798 485,749 1,257,919
Fair value adjustments of financial
assets at FVPL (Note 6) 1,869,576 2.663.820 (1,926.992)
Revenue from ancillary services 1,332,947 2029822 3,063,401
Forfeited security deposits 1,001,089 6,185,855 1,425,085
Crain on:
Disposal of investment in
associate (Note 10) - = 17,438,767
Sale of property and
cquipment 724,594 : 216,983
Others 17,371,850 15379200 46,326,184
104,235,005 P67 975 683 B112,392.231
Interest Expense and Bank Charges
2015 2014 2013
Interest on bank loans and
bank charges P175.370,285 P19%6,842,320 PI82 754 533
Acerction of deposits from tenants 26,1588 290 30,224,024 2,207,280
P201,558,575 P227.066,344 P184 961 863
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24. Cost of Condominium Sales

2015 2014 2013
SPRC PS38317.772  P1.953,260414  P2.903,561689
SPDI 638,580,756 262,381,970 73,465,348
SGCPI 582,981,253 208,313,630 -
The Rise 286,414,000 - -
Parent Company 28,372,372 18,279,102 13,987,067
F2374,666,153  P2442.444.122  P2.991.014.104
23, General and Administrative Expenses and Taxes and Licenses
General and Admmistrative Expens«s

2015 2014 2013

Professional fees and outside
SEIVices P76,514,965 B536,338.585 B4, 199,442

Janitorial, security and other
SEIVices 36,675,444 368032606 29982 384
Advertising and promotions 27,736,250 18,594 903 24,566,910
Utilities 23,430,827 16,127.671 13,923,603
Telephone and communication 9,199,991 6,737,493 5,724.174
Supplics 7,896,708 7,422,906 3,783,430
Transportation and travel 6,612,751 2 980,597 2.945.008
Condomininm ducs (Note 31) 6,416,787 5212612 4452176
Repairs and maintenance 5,186,045 8,908,204 4,037,200

Entertamnment, anusement and
representation 3,507,886 1,938,106 1,617,455
Rent 3,343,413 2,738,809 2,198 100
Membership fees and dues 3,133,230 2896738 2,670,149
{ras and ol 1,638,833 1,938 306 1,693,901
Svstems license and maintenance 1,571,899 4026 878 1,936,271
Reproduction charges 1,055,347 863,037 857,053
Commission 020,574 3,301,285 3,586,279
Bad debts (Note 7) - 982,363 -
Donation - - 5,790,843
Others 6,244,073 15,460,423 4,906,930
P221,094,023 B193,324.687 P156,933,328
Taxes and Licenses

2015 2014 2013
Rl estate tax B07.829.014 BOLTTL820 B638.300.448
Busmness taxes 06,330,691 79,285,330 64,326,136
Documentary stamp taxes 20,265,261 19408 687 11,367,767
License and parmit fees 2,778,208 339630 631,74
Oihers 2,556,050 11,438,375 437,319
F219,809.224 BI05 446 842 B145.063,414
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26, Stafl Costs

2015 2014 2013
Salaries and wages P347,548415  P246.583276  P192.447 590
Employee benetits 83,083,512 27055713 20,788,573
Retirament benetit costs (Note 27) 20,333,059 16371642 22000972
Others 7,607,021 53528513 6. 008,973
430 471 807 P295,539,144 P241,330,108

27 Accrued Employee Benefits

This account consists of:

2015 2014
Retirement benefits B39,644, 347 P55.626,328
Other emplovee benefits 1,170,513 12,873,707
B49.815 160 BGE, 502035

Acerued employee benefits pedain to habality for retrement, leaves and other related benefits
expected to be settled more than twelve months after the end of the annual reporting period.

Retirement asset amounted to B4,923.100 and nil as of December 31, 2015 and 20 14, respectively,
are not offset with the retirement liability as the retirement liabilities within the group shall be settled
on an per entity basis (see Note 17).

Retirement Benefits

The Group has a funded. noncontributory defined benefit retirement plan, providing death, disability
and retirement benefits for all of its regular employees. Under the plan, the normal retivement age is
60 years old and completion of at least five years of service. Normal retirement benefit consists of a
lump sum benefit equivalent to 100% of the emplovee™s final pay for every vear of service,

The plan is administered by an independent trustee bank which is under the supervision of the
Group™s Treasury Department (Treasury).  The Treasury s responsible for investment of the assets.
It defines the investment strategy as often as noecessary, at least annually, cspecially in the case of
significant market developments or changes to the structure of the plan participants. When defining
the investment strategy, it takes into account the plans’ objectives, benefit obligations and risk
capacity. The investment strategy is defined in the form of a long-term target structure {investment
policy).
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Under the existing regulatory framework, Republic Act (RA)Y 7641 requires a provision for
retirement pay to qualified private sector employees in the absence of any retirement plan in the
cntity, provided, however, that the employee™s retirement benefits under any collective bargaming
and other agreements shall not be less than those provided under the law. The law does not require
minimum funding of the plan. The Group is compliant with this regulatory framework.

Retirement benefit costs recognized in the consolidated profit or loss as part of “Staff costs™ consist
of the following:

2015 2014 2013
Current service cost B18,215190 B15492700 P16,110.4490
Met interest cost 2,117,869 $78.942 5,980,532

P20,333,059 P16,371.642 B22 090,972

The components of remeasurements, before tax effect. in the consolidated statements of
comprehensive ncome are as follows:

2015 2014 2013
Actuarial loss (gain) in defined
benefit obligation (B46.334) P11.336913 (P29.107.153)
Remeasurement loss {gain)
in plan asset 1,360,665 4,190,942 (7,123,218)

Remeasurement loss (gain) on
changes n the effect of
asset ceiling L (3.018.101) 3.018.101
£1,314,331 P12,509.736 (B33.212 270)

The acerued retirement benetits and retirement assets recognized mn the consoldated statement of
financial position as parl of “Accrued employee benefits™ and “Other noncurent asscts™,
respectively, were determined as follows:

Presented as retirement liability:

2015 2014

Present value of defined benefit obligations PRI0,553,665 B157 435,294
Fair value of plan assets (40,939 318) {101, 808,966)
F39.644,347 B33.620,328

Presented as rebrement assct:

2015 2014

Present value of defined benefit obligations B75,662,971 -
Far value ol plan assels (50.586,071) -
(B4,923,100) P
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Shown below is the summary of the defined benefit obligation and fair value of plan assets as of
December 31:

2015 2014
Present value of defined benefit abligations P136.246,636 P137,435,204
Fair value of plan assets (121,525,380 {101, 808 966)

P34,721,247 P35,626,328

The movements in the present value of defined benefit obligations are as follows:

2015 2014
Defined benefit oblization at the beginning of year P157,435294  P127.893.493
Current service cost 18,215,190 15,492,700
Net interest cost 6,507,457 3,263,469
Actuarial loss (gain) arising from:
Changes i financial assumptions 15,516,744 12,122 800
Experience adjustments (15,563,075) (783,883)
Benefits paid (25864,971) (2,551,285)
Defined benefit obligation at the end of year P156,246,636 B157,435,294
The movements in the thir value of plan assets are as follows:
2015 2014
Fair valuc of plan assets at the beginning of year £101,808,966 Bl01,308.6605
Interest income 4,380 588 4,384,527
Remeasurament loss (1,360,665) (4, 190,942)
Contribulions 19,339 502 306,716
Henefils paid (2,652,002) -
Fair valuc of plan asscts at the end of year 121,525 389 B10 1,808,966

The tair value of the Group’s plan assets by each class as at the end of the reporting period are as
follows:

2015 214

Investments in debt instruments:
Treasury notes and bonds 67062272 P30, 182010
Corporate notes and bonds 6,858,608 5,745.859
Cash in banks _ 47,604,500 30,881,097

P121,525389 P101.808.966

Significant portion of the debt instruments held have quoted prices in an active market. The
remaining plan assets do not have quoted market prices in an active markel.  The plan asscts arc
highly concentrated in Treasury notes and bonds but have no credit risk since these are government
obligations,
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The principal actuarial assumptions used are as follows:

- - 2015 2014 2013
Future salary increase rate 4.00%0 3.00M% 4.00%%
Diiscount rate A 809 to SOBY, 4449 10 4.75% 4.25% 1o 3.8%9%

Mortality rate 1s based on the 1994 Group Annuity Morality Table for both 2015 and 2014,

The discount rates used are the smgle weighted average rate for each company based on bootstrapped
PDST-R2 at various tenors as of December 31, Rates for miermediate durations were interpolated.
The rates were then weighted by the expected benefit payments at those durations to arrive at the
single weighted average discount rate.

The wrmever rale represents the proportion of current plan members who will resign from service
prior to their retirement date and henee be entitled to resignation benefits instead of retirement
benefits.

There were no changes From the previous period in the methods and assumplions used in preparing
sensitivity analysis.

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on reasonably possible changes of cach
sigmficant assumption on the defined benefit oblization as of the end of the reporting period,
assuming all other assumptions were held constant:

Increase {decreasc) in

defined benelit obligation

Sigmificant Assumplions 205 2014
Discount rate
Increase of 1% (P11,429,998) (B12.655.707)
Decrease of 1% 13,270,756 13,025,893
Future salary increase rale
Increase of 1% 12,496,637 13,334,893)
Deerease of 1% (10,972,560) {12.073,207)

The mamagement performed an Asset-Liability Matching Study (ALM) annually. The overall
imvestment policy and strategy of the Group’s defined benefit plans 15 guided by the obgective of
achieving an investment retum which, together with contributions, ensures that there will be sufficient
assets to pay retirement benefits as they fall due while also mitigating the various risk of the plans.
The Group’s current strategic investment strategy consists of 55% treasury investments, 6% corporate
mvestments and 39% cash,

The Group expects to contribute B3 1,046,320 to the defined benefit plan in 2016,

The average duration of the defined benefit obligation as of December 31, 2013 and 2014 ranges
from years N0 do 44 years and 12 to 30 years, respectivel v,
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Shown below 15 the maturity analysis of the undiscounted benefit payments as of the reporting date:

Plan Year 2015 2014
Iess than one vear B40,044,010 P13,482,327
More than one year to five years 29,233,998 38,022 748
Muore than five years to 10 years 107,601,440 81,208, 244
Maore than 10 vears to 15 vears 89,405,891 108,765,509
More than 15 vears to 20 vears 149,152,895 148,516,779
More than 20 years and above 281,586,500 332,786,244

28. Unreimbursed Share in Commaon Expenses

SLPC colleets reimbursements from tenants, based on cither a fixed amount or a percentage of sales,
for the fenants” share in the costs of utilities, janitorial, security and other expenses on comman arcas
shared by SLPC and the tenants. SLPC also collects reimbursements from the tenants for the actual
costs of ulilities, repairs and maintenance used by the tenants in their leased areas. All unreimbursed

cxpenses are borne by SLPC and accordingly reported as operating costs,

The details of the account for the years ended December 31 are as tollows:

2015 2014 2013
Light, power and water 314,602,642 B3TT 273,041 P363,579 308
Janitorial, security and
other services 102,796,189 97 039984 899199046
Repairs and maintenance 58,426,440 57352106 47,428,008
Advertising and promotions 60, 108918 30,117,121 41,546,349
Tenants” reimbursements (467,693,136) (501 838.831) (446.380,891)
P68241053 P85 943421 P96,092.860
29. Income Taxes
a. 'The details of provision for income taxes for the vears ended December 31 follow:
203 2014 2013
Current:
RCIT PO80,616,391 P16, 844 302 PEO4 552 204
Excess of MCIT over RCIT 10,901,859 4015210 3,285,026
Final tax on interest income 4,701,176 3,749.300 8,800,371
996,219,426 §24 608 512 816,727.691
Deflerred 192,919,203 170,892,027 (63.297.967)
£1,189,138,629 P995 501,739 B751,429.724
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b.  The details of the recognized net deferred income tax assets (liabilitics) at December 31 follow:

2015 2014
DilTerence m profit, installment method versus
POC method 286,518,396 P284 183,755
Addvance rental T7,62549% 63 814474
Accrued expenses 29,964,427 61,463,424
Accrued employee benefits 29,197,768 26,960,297
Accumulated impairment losses 14,932,510 14932510
Exeess MOIT over RCIT 9,446,256 4,709,164
Delerred lease income : 6,200,321 11472017
Unamortized funded past service cost 5,6T0.8T1 23115351
Others 1,098,056 443,279
Deferred 1ax asscts 460,663,101 470,290,471
Unrealized increase in fair value of
investment property (6,903,109,611)  (6.690,778,630)
Unamaortized discount on deposits from tenants (8,018,729 (12767 123)
Unrealized gain on forcign exchange (2,137428) (238.463)
Deferred tax liabilities (6,913,263,768) (6.703,784.216)

(P6,452,602,667) (P6,233.493,745)

The deferred tax assets and liabilities balances presented in the statements of financial
position are netted on a per entity basis. The following are the details:

2015 2014
Deferred tax asscts B235.860271 P350,407.946
Deferred tax liabilities (6,688,462,938)  (6,589,901,691)

(B6,452,602,667) (P6,233.493,743)

¢, The reconciliation of provision for income tax using the statutory income tax rate and the actual
provision for income tax for the years ended December 31 ave as follows:

2015 2014 2013
Provision for income tax at the
statutory income tax rate B1430,149607 P1234 408738 PO16,358 897
Tax effects of:
Difference between ilemized
and optional standard
deductions (OSD) (160,800,943) (160,981,245) (148,121,393)
Share in losses (profits) of
associates (21,197.436) 2,870,807 1,402,224
Movements in wnrecognized
deferred income tax assels 20,054,161 A3 BTN (48,713, 14%)
Dividend income (12,010,107) (4.5370.259) (2.047.037)
Intercst income subjectad to
final tax (5,261,556) (2,474,580) {4-445.130)
(Forward)
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2015 2014 2013

Remeasurement gain as a result
of business combination B B247 320,342 B
Other non-laxable income,
net of non-deductible
EXPETISES (61,795.097) {334,953,290) 40,595 367
Provision for income tax . 1 lﬁfx’f,_‘i.iﬁ,ﬁ?.!:l‘ P993 301,739 PT51,429.724

d. The Parent and certain subsidiaries did not recognize the tollowing temporary differences as of
December 31, 2015 and 2014 since management believes that they may not have sufficient
future taxable-profits available to allow all or part of them to be utilized in the future or prior to -

expiration:
2015 2014
NOLCO PI08.592.636 P136, 100,712
Others ML 145 6,444 866
e The Group’s NOLCO which is available for deduction against future taxable income are as
follows:
Year Available
Incurred Beginning Incurred Expired Ending Until
2013 P P73, 179859 B P73.179.859 2018
2014 129,526,474 . 129,326,474 2017
2013 5,886,303 - - 5,886,303 2016
2012 687935 687935 - 2015

P136,100,712 B73,179.859 P687.935  P208,592636

£ The Group’s MCIT which can be applied against future income tax due are as follows:

Year Available
Incurred Beginning Incurred Expired Ending Until
2015 B- P4 568 974 e 4,565 974 2018
14 4070, 649 - 4,070,649 2017
2013 406,631 - - 806,631 016G

2012 120,169 - 120169 - 15
P4.997, 449 P4,568.974 B120.169 PY.446,254

2. The following are the provision for (benefit from) deferred income taxes directly recognized in

equity:
2015 2014 2013
Change in fair value of AFS
financial assets Ba15, (00 B130000 B0, 000
Remeasurcment gains (losscs) on
defined benefit liability (394,299) (3,752.927) 9.963 681

P220,701 (P3.602927)  P10.053,681

h. RA No. 95304, effective on July 7. 2008, allows availment of OSD. Corporations, except for
nonresident foreign corporations, may elect to claim OSD in an amount not exceeding 40% of
their gross income,  In 20035 and 2014, KSA, SLPC and IPPI availed of the OSD for the
computation of their taxable income,
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IEarnings Per Share

Basic and diluted carnings per share are the same since there are no dilutive potential common
shares.

The computation of carnings per share for the years ended December 31 are as follows:

Based on Net Income
2015 2014 2013

Net income attributable to equity _ )

holders of the Parent Company  $£2,849,812,817  P2.735,375.946  F2.011.272.641
Weighted average number

of outstanding sharcs (Notc 21)  4,761,918337 4761918337  4,761,918337
Earnings per share P0.598 P0.574 PO.422

Based on Tolal Comprehensive Income

2015 2014 2013
Total comprehensive income
attributable to equity holders
of the Parent Company B2,850,733,285 BE2726,986,671  BE2,033,287.770
Weighted average number
of outstanding shares (Note 21) 4, 761,918337  4,701.918337 4,761,918 337
Earnings per share P0.59 P0.573 P.427

There are no mstruments that could potentially dilute basic carnings per share in the fulure.

. Related Parly Transactions and Balances

Enterprises and individoals that direetly, or indireetly through ene or more intermediaries, control or
are controlled by or under common control with the Group, ncluding holding companies,
subsidiaries and [ellow subsidiarics, are related parties of the Group,  Associates and individuals
owning, directly or indirectly, an interest in the voting power of the Group that gives them
stgmificant influence over the enterprise, key management personnel, meluding directors and officers
of the Group and close members of the family of these individuals, and companics associated with
these individuals also constitute related partics. In considering each possible related party
relationship, attention is directed to the substance of the relationship, and not merely the legal form.

The following are the transactions with related partics:
Related Party Transactions and Balances which were Not Eliminated During Consolidation

The terms, conditions, balances and the volume of related parly transactions which were not
eliminated during consolidation are as follows:

2003 ANNUAL REFORI

105
R —a



Transactions with affiliates

= A portion of the Parent Company’s land 1s bemg leased by ESHRI, where the EDS A Shangri-La

Mhanila Hotel (the Hotel) is located. The lease is for a period of 25 vears commencing on

August 28, 1992 and renewable for another 25 years at the option of ESHRL Rental revenue is
based on a fixed percentage of the Hotel's room, food and beverage. dry goods and other service

revenue.,

= SPMSI provides management services to TECCC, TSFSPCC, and The Shang Grand Towers
Condominium Corporation (ISGTCC) for a minimum period of fve vears starting
January 7, 2009, April 1. 2010 and January 7. 2007, respectively.  As consideration, SPMSI
shall receive from TSGTCC, TECCC and TSFSPCC monthly management fees of BAOD000,
PLOOOO0 and P100.000, respectively, melusive of VAT, with an escalation rate of 10% per
annum. The parties agree mutually on the renewal of the agreements.

=  Rambursement of expenses paid for by SLPC for ESHRL

= Condominium dues charged by TSIFSPCC and TECCC.

= Sharing of expenses with affiliates.

The following are the amounts or volume of transactions during the years ended and the outstanding
recenvables and payables as of December 31:

Amonnt™Volume

Ontstanding Balance

s g 213 pITES plgs Tems Cinditicns
Rental
G-y, Unsecured,
ESHRI P98, 71556 PESA3LTSE  BIRITIT0:  P26,73R561 PARB2D506 noninterest-hearing no impaiment
Management
Services
{soe Note 233
3echay, Unscoured,
TECOC FE225105 BRSO3 A4S  BsOTA0T  PLSSSOTY PLALT 249 nonintaestbearing noimpaiment
30-chay; Unsecured,
TIESPOC A 565,179 2657679 L26A29 1,484,064 1A A6 noninterest-bearing  no ikpamment
30-chay, Unzcoared,
THGTCC 2296, T2 1555127 1,898,101 29264619 1&50.773  noninterest-bearing no impaimaent
PL4,056.986  BI2806351  PLLA213T  PROTOSST Bl AT ARG
Condominiim
ducs
{gee Mol 25)
30-chay, Unzcoored,
Parcit Coanpany PLE49020  P2A45042  BLSOT06T  PRI9RSE%  B1299230 ponintercst-hearing no impaiment
30-chay Unseonred,
E5A 4045193 233,135 2186422 - — noninterest-bearing 1o impaimment
30-chay, Unsecuresd,
SR 454,435 454435 454 435 - — nurinterest-Dearing o impairment
31-clany; Unseoured,
SFRC 08,132 = 214,252 = —_naoninterest-bearing oo impairment
P 416,787  PSIL2612 F4452,176  PRIYL.SRE P1.2%0 230
Reimbirsed
P[RSS
30-chay, Unzeoired,
ESHRI P10O067 328 PI4376411  PIZ353.93 P2.523.586 F3310.911  nonistarest-bearing no impainient
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AameountValume Cntstanding Balance
2015 014 W13 2015 24 Termis ol s
Affillates® share In
Cronp's
XIS
3i-dlay, Unscoared,
TECOC P42,736,164  BI3S81838 P41 SS25EF PLLITYMGE BT519966 noninteresti-bearing no impaiment
i-day, Unsered,
CEPCC 513 45T G585 - 1E789.747 419851 nomnterest-beanng no impainment
3ikday. Lnigeuared,
TEESPCC 9412203 TARSAS 1,758 ek 5,764,208 3466192 nominterest-bewnng 1w impainment
hday, Unisearedl,
TSGTOC 37730 6,167,258 5T B 6,629, T 4354043 noninterest-heaning o impainuent
Makati Shangri-La ] By, LCugecured,
Toted B16.7FT 10583155 TI4. 71 9,723,776 9960616 noninterest-bearing ne impainnent
Iday, LUnseoured,
ESHRI §05,703 16520,083 13,823 434 346,337 G134 nomnilerest-bearime o irpainment
Mluctum Shangr-La 3k-aday, Tnseorred,
Haolel TIRH2 (52,065 508,533 69,7 268,695 moninlarest-Dearing oo inpLinnt
Clavall Propertics, 30aday, Unsecured,
Inc. 533 917 4555 12,332 12,332 noninterest-bearing no impairment
Mactan Beachfront I0-clay; Tinseaqured,
Resourees, [ng, 643 [%,525) 3927 (7,793} (7459) noninterest-bearing 0o impainment
Shangri-La Fijisian Payahle on demand; Unseaured,
Be=ort . - - 626,952 626,952 noninterest-bearing no impaimnent
Machay;, Unsecured,
Others 14,251,075 4,724,217 10,541 095 7,073,422 39042 584 qroctinterest-bearisg no impainment
PI0T050,798  B6EAQ0417  PROAM.TIT  PobS05644  BILLAMNGE
Cronp’s share In
affiliales’
CRPEILS
(5o Mote [ 8)
F-day, Lnsecured,
TECOC B- B34 940 PTG 02T P- B73142 peninterest-bearing  no dnpainmait
30-clay, Unseoured,
TIFEPCC - 560,096 204679 - 320 peninteresl-Bearing 0o inpaimeatl
3i-dlay; Unseoored,
CAhers J089,103 AR2,T61 470,206 572,714 F8373  nuninterest-bearing no impairment
F3080,0103  PLETTTIT Bl el 612 PE72,714 F171.837

Fransactions with assaciates

*  On February 17. 2012, the Board of the Parent Company passed and approved a resolution
wherem it will act as a surety to the loan of FRSHI, now SGCPL the surviving entity in a merger

as discussed in Notes 12 and 19,

= Sharing of expenses with associates.

Amount/Volume Outstanding Balance
2015 04 2013 2015 2014 Terms Condltlons
Associates’ share
In Group’s
CAPENSES
30 -chiy; Unseoaresd,
I5PI F305, T2 BT03,105 Badd dse  RAEY0 BIA00ME poninterest-bearing no impainnent
300-ckay; Unseoired,
FRSHT - G493 210 11,200 668 - ~_naninteres-bearing no dmpaiman
P305.792  PLOI963LS PI1EIS 134 PIE99.990 PIa0i 48
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AmouaitVolusee

Qutdanding Balance

2015 004 2005 03 014 Terms Conditlons
Group's share in
an associate’s
EXpEIES
(zee Mote 1)
Payable oo
demzd, Unseoured,
SLEL P i B PMRISSTO0 $42,15%.700 neninteredt-bearmg no impairment

Outstanding balances from the above related party transactions as at December 31 follow;

2015 2014 -
Receivables:
Adtiliates:
Share in expenses #60,508,644 B31,390,165
Management services 8,970,557 4492430
Reimbursed expenses 2,523,586 3310911
Associates 3,899,590 3600548
£72.902.777 B42, 7941140
Accounts payable and other current liabilitics:
Associate 42,158,700 P42, 158,700
Adfiliates:
Condominium dues 2,192 588 1,290,230
Share in expenses §72,714 171 837
45224002 P45.629 767
Compensation of key management personnel consist of the following:
205 2014 2013
Salarics and other short-tam
employee benefits B39.M6,177 P37.603 264 36457991
Post-ecmployment benelils 3,871,167 2,989,031 2.431,986
B2 897 344 B4 597 205 B38,909.977

There are no stock option plans for officers and emplovees and no other long-term benefits aside

from retirement bencfits,

Related Party Transactions and Balances Fliminated During Consolidation

The terms, conditions, balances and the volume of related party transactions which were eliminated

during consohdation are as follows:

a. Lease of Parent Company’s land and the East Wing of the Shangri-1.a Plarza Mall to SLEC

2015 2014 2013
Parent Company P116,175,733 Pl16.469419 P137.860.212
SLPC 34,909,852 83,209,600 T8, 171,706
SPS1 7.834,677 3,832401 1461777
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A portion of the Parent Company’s land where the Shangri-La Plaza Mall is located s bemng
leased to SLPC. The lease is for a period of 23 vears from January 6, 1993, Rental revenue is
based on a certain percentage of SLPCs annual rental revenue from mall operations plus a
certain percentage ol the carpark’s net income,

In 2013, the Parent Company also leased to SLPC, the East Wing of the Shangri-La, the mall
area of OSP, for a certain percentage of SLPC’s rental revenue from the mall trom January 1,
2013 to September 30, 2013.

Usufruet agreement between the Parent Company, SLPC and SPSI

On January 16, 2002, the Parent Company entered into a usufruct agreement with SLPC and
SPSL SPSI will be granted limited usufructuary rights over the Parent Company’s and SLPC’s
parking spaces for a consideration equivalent to a certain percentage of SPSI's gross income less
direet and indirect expenses. The agreement is subject to renewal on a yearly basis. Rental
income of the Parent Company and SLIPC, and rental expenses of SPSI are as follows:

2015 2014 2013
SLIXC BY.333.842 Bl11. 754610 B10,043,538
Parent Company 7834678 5811469 1461777

17,168,520 P17.566.079 P17,505,315

Lease of East Wing of the Shangri-La Plaza Mall by SPRC (o SLPC

2015 2014 2013
Rental income PS0,843,417  P55.894923  PI3,695318

SPRC and SLPC entered into a memorandum of agreement whereby SLPC will operate the mall
establishment and constitute it as the East Wing of the Shangri-La. The leasc is for a period of
five years from October 1, 2013 and renewable upon mutual agreement by the partics.  Rental
revenue 15 based on a certain pereentage of SLIPCs annual rental revenue from that mall.

SP51 has an agreement with KSA, whereby SPSI is to manage and operate the parking slots of
KS5A, which commenced on January 1, 2009, The agreement is renewable upon mutual
agreement by the parties. In consideration of the agreement, the parties agreed on the following
revenue-sharing scheme: KSA shall receive the amount equivalent to 75% of the monthly gross
parking revenue, less applicable VAT, while SP5I shall receive the amount equivalent to 25% of
the monthly gross parking revenue, less applicable VAT, Income of KSA and expenses of SPSL
which are cquivalent to KSA’s sharc arc as follows:

2015 2014 2013
Rental income and expense P29,549.203 P29, 796,157 B26,512.768

The Parent Company leases its office space and SPRC leases a unit on Level 1 in Shangri-La
Plaza Mall from SLPC.

The Parent Company’s lease agreement is [or a period of three years starting November 1, 2002,
By mutual agreement of the parties, the contract of lease was renewed on May 16, 2010 for
another three years which commenced on May 17, 2010 and ended on May 16, 2013, The
Parent Company’s rental expense is exclusive of VAT and subject to five percent escalation
CVery year.
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In 2010, STRC and SLPC entered into a lease agreement, whereby SPRC shall lease a unit on
Level 1 in Shangri-La for the higher of (a) a minimum guarantee rent, or (b)) a certain
pereentage of gross sales, exclusive of VAT, The lease commenced on May 1, 2010 and ended
on April 30, 2014,

Rental expenses of the Parent Company and SPRC, and rental income of SLPC are as follows:

2015 se i 2013
SPRC P7.540,682 P7.319 287 BT 316,402
Parent Company 4,047,397 3,592,034 4067 282

P11,588,079 P10.912.221 P11.383684

The Parent Company™s and SPRCs refundable deposits from these transactions amounted to
B425,424 as of December 31, 2015 and 2014,

MManagement agresment between KSA and SPMSI:

2015 2014 2013
Management fee 3,084,414 2,804,013 P2,545.105

ES5A entered into a management agreement with SPMSI for a monthly fee of P130,000 with
10% annual escalation for a period of five years starting March 2008, The partics agrec
mutually on the renewal of the agrecment.  SPMSI shall provide on-site property leasing
management including Head Office suppat services and periodic audit to ensure compliance
with international practices; perform stall’ recruilment, traming and performance evaluation; and
perform financial management, including billing and collection and budget provisioning.

In 2011, SPDI obtained an unsecured, noninterest-bearing, payable on or before December 51,
2012 loan from SIHIL amounting to P2.317 500,000, As of December 31, 2015 and 2014, this
loan has not been settled.

Parent Company’s dividend income from declarations of the fllowing subsidiaries:

2015 2014 2013

SPRC E2 (M, (MK (HH) P P
SLPC 725,000,040 725,000,000 600,000,000
KSA 317,400,000 423,200,000 185,150,000
SPDI 95,000,000 75,000,000 &
SPSI 4,400,000 4,200,000 3,500,000
SPEMSI 5,300,000 4,000,000 -
P3,147,100000  P1231400000  P788.650.000

In 2013, the Parent Company and SPRC entered into a Deed of Absolute Sale for a parcel of
land owned by the Parent Company with total square meter area of 9.852 located at Internal
Road, Shangri-la Place, Mandaloyong City for a total consideration of PG40 380000, Ths
resulted to a loss on sale of the land amounting to P317.379,456 which was eliminated during
consolidation.

Eeimbursement of cxpenses paud for by a related party on behalf of a related party and wvice-
versa.

Unsecured, noninterest-bearing receivables and payables between related parties.
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Outstanding balances from the above related party transactions at December 31 which were
eliminated during consolidation are as follows:

2015 2014
Recervables of the Parent Company from:
SGCHI BLOIOOT2ZS03  PLO10OT2 162
SPRC 707,416,648 853.625.220
SFEHI 690,928,983 600,928 663
SLPC 35,944,768 103,943 521
SFMST 30,249,929 22622222
SPSI 5,569,821 7.984.922
SPDL 1,672,843 5,215.561
EMSC L062,775 1,037,217
KS5A 254,158 426,279
P2483,172428 P2695,855719
Payables of the Parent Company to:
SPIH E311,168,985 B0, 480,000
SLPC 3,266,635 1169881
SPRC 16,447,198 503,9%
330852818 P622,155,877
Recavables of:
SHIL from SPDI P2317.300000 P2317,500,000
Others 2,680,401,325  2549461,236
P4,997,901,325_P4,866,961.236

The receivables and payables between related parties, except for those arising from reimbursement
of cxpenses and those that arc unsceurcd and noninterest-bearing which are payable on demand,
have normal credit terms of 30 to 90 days, but may go beyond as agreed.

32. Commitments and Conlingencies

Cm July 14, 1993, a complaint was initially filed before the Regional Trial Court (RTC) - Pasig by
the principal contractor of the Shangri-La Plaza Mall agamst the Parent Company and the Board for
the recovery of the balance of alleged unpaid construction work, compensatory and moral damages,
lesal [ees and litigation costs totaling aboul B122 000000, exclusive of interest. In the answer ex
abundante ad cautelam, as a counterclaim, the Paremt Company s asking for approxmmately
P182. 000,000 in overpayment plus PTOMLOM m damages and litigation costs.  Due o technical
reasons, the principal contractor ve-filed the case on or about June 23, 1998 with the Construction
Industry Arbitration Comrussion (CLAC).

On October 27, 1998, the RTC-Pasig issued an order directing the parties to arbifrate their dispute
under the Arbitration Law., A similar order was issued by the CIAC on February 3, 1999 dismissing
the proceedings instituted before it by the plaintitf. The plaintiff, accordingly, served a demand for
arbitration dated April 5, 1999 under the provisions of the Arbitration Law.
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The arbitration hearing, during which both the Parent Company and the principal contractor were
given the opportunity to present ther wilnesses, commenced in December 2006 and ended with the
deeision of the Arbitral Tribunal promulgated on July 31, 2007, In its decision, the Arbitral Tribunal
awarded to the principal contractor the sum of P46,905,987. and to the Parent Company, the sum of
P8,387.484 (net award to the principal contractor was P38,518,503).

The principal contractor has appealed the Arbitral Trbunal’s decision to the Court of Appeals,
praying [or the award of the full amount of its claim. The Parent Company has partially appealed the
said decision, praying for the reduction of the award to the plamtiff. The Court of Appeals, in its
decision dated August 12, 2008 and resolution dated Apnil 16, 2009, awarded to the principal
contractor F24,497,556, unpaid progress billings based on the oniginal scope of work, and denied the
Parent Company of ils motion for partial reconsideration.

On June 5, 2009, the Parent Company filed a Petition for Review on Certiorari to the Supreme Courd
praying to issue an order or decision: {(a) declaring the Parent Company as not lable to the principal
contractor for unpaid progress billings based on the original scope of work, (b) ordering the principal
contractor to pay the Parent Company B7,590.000 as liquidated damages, and (c) sctting aside or
reversing the Court of Appeal’s decision and resolution insofar as they are adverse to the Parent
Company. On a Petition for Review on Certiorari dated June 11, 2009, the principal contractor
prayed to the Supreme Court to modify the decision and resolution of the Court of Appeals, to award
the principal contractor the full amount of its claim. Both petitions are pending resolution by the
Supreme Court as of March 4, 2016

The Parent Company and SLPC have other pending legal cases which are being contested by the
Parent Company, SLPC and their legal counsels. Management and the legal counsels believe that
the final resolution of these cases will not have a material effect on the Group’s financial position
and results of operations.

fad

LFS]

. Lease Commitments

The Group entered into lease agreements with third partics covering the freehold buildings and their
mprovements. These leases generally provide for either (a) fixed monthly rent, or (b) minimum rent
or a certain percentage of gross revenue, whichever is higher.

Rental income trom percentage of gross revenne of lessee recognized in the profit or loss amounted
to P121,620,707, P121.382.947 and P124.074.911 in 20135, 2014 and 2013, respectively.

The minimum future rental collections under non-cancellable operating leases follow:

2015 2014 2013
Within one vear P2082,234650 P2R23. 1566060 P1,9185,343.328
After one year but nol more than
five vears 2,126,994971 4,642,450.449 1475431761
More than five years 278,481,289 267,882,864 234,408,500
_ P4,487,710910  P7.733,489973 P3,628,184.089
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34 Fair Value Measurement and Financial Instruments

The following table provides the fair value measurement hicrarchy of the Group’s assets and

liabilitics as of December 31, 2013:

Fair Valne Measurement Using

Cioted Prices in Significant Significant
Active Markets  Observable Tnputs Unobsarvalde
(Laval 1) (Lavel 1) Inprts (Level 33 Tatal

Assets Measured at Fair Value
Financial assets at FVPL PMESX 100 i = E34.552 100
Ivestment properties: . : ;

Ll - 15701,020,110 - 15701,020,110

Buldings = - 12477547765 12477547, T65
AFS financial assets:

Unquoted - - 488,826,327 488,826,327

Queied 16,046,515 - - 16,046,515
Assety for which Fair Values are Disclosed
Lexans and receivables

Fecaivablas® - 2,144,511,918 - 2,144,511,918

Refiamdatde deposits = SR AR - SRARLEDI
Liabilities for which Fair Values are Disdosed
Accounts pavable and other

cursnt labilities** - 3,398,805, 799 - 3,398,805, 70
Bank loans - 12,464,329,487 —  12,464,329,487
Deposits fTom tenants - 995,952,193 = Y95952,193
Accnued emploves benefits™=* — 10,170,813 - 10,170,813

* Exeludinng advances to conractors aird mpplisrs of #4685 809 442,

= Excluwdiveg advanced rengl, enstonters” deposits, nessrvation payvable, auput VAT, deferred outpnt VAT and sithiiolding toves,

=etiveduding accrned retivement benefits of BI9.644 347,

The following table provides the fair value measurement hierarchy of the Group’s assets and

liabilitics as of December 31, 2014

Fair Valuz Measurement Using

Ot Prices in Sigmificant Sigmi ficant
Active Markets  Ohservable Inputs Unobservabls
Level 1) {Level 3 Inputs (Level 3) Tatal

Assets Measured at Fair Value
Financial assets at FVPL B33,012.524 B P B33.012,524
Inwvesiment properiies:

Land - 13428400270 ~  13428.400.270

Bunldingss: - - 13682, 467,218 13,682 467,218
AFE financial assets:

Unpuacdedd - - 488 826 32T ARE {6,327

Cneted 13,196,515 - - 13,196,515
Assets For which Fair Values are Disclosed
Loans and receivables

Recaivablas® - AU3L,070,345 - 313,070,345

Kefundable deposits - 6%.414,064 - 63,414,064
Liabiities for which Fair Values are Disdosed
Aceounts pavable and other

cuorent halnlines=* - 3,0°77,332,955 - 3,077,322,955
Bank loans 12,148 668,905 ~12,148.668.905
Dieposits forn terents - 977395226 - 077395326
Agcried emploves banefis™** = |2 873,707 = 12875707

* Eveluding advances to contractors and suppliovs of BILO 173038

o W iding advaced renial, customers deposits, nesvation pavable, eutmet VAT, defirnnd owpat VAT and witfoboddinge ey,

e fwding acormed retiremeet bengfits of B35 020,328
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The Group’s policy is to recognize transters into and transfers out of fair value hisrarchy levels as of
the date of the event or change in circumstances that caused the transfer

There have been no assets and liabilitics transferred between Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3 during
2015 and 2014.

The followmg methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair value of each class of
financial instrument for which it is practicable to cstimalte such valuc:

Financial Assets at FITL

. The fair value of financial asscts at FVIPL is based on quoted market prices at the reporting date.

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Receivables, Accounts Pavable and Other Current Liahilities, and
Dividends Favable

Due o the shorlterm nature of cash and cash equivalents. receivables other than installment
contracts recervable, accounts pavable and other current habilities, dividends pavable and accrued
employes benefits, their carrying values were assessed to approximate their fair values.

Fastallment Contracts Recefeable
The fair value of installment contracts recetvable are based on the discounted value of future cash
flows using applicable rates for similar instruments..

Refundable Deposits and Deposits from Tenants

The fair values of deposits from tenants were based on the present value of estimated future cash
fAows using PDST — K2 rates at the reporting date.  Discount ranges from 1.48% to 3.98% and
LO1%0 to 3.55% as of December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively.

AFS Finaneial Assets
The fair value of quoted equity securitics is bascd on quoted market prices as of the reporting date.
The fair value of unquoted equity securitics is not reasonably determinable.

fank Loans
The carrying value of the bank loans with variable mterest rates approximates their fair value
because of recent and quarterly repricing based on market conditions.

fald

. Financial Risk Management Objective and Policies

The Group™s principal financial instruments comprise of cash and cash equivalents, financial asscts
at I'VPL, loans and recervables, AFS financial assets and other financial liabilitics. These are held
primarily to finance the Group’s operations, capital expenditures and to provide suarantees to
support its operations. The Group’s financial instruments, such as cash and cash equivalents, trade
receivables and trade payables, arise directly from the conduct of the Group’s operations.

The mam risks arising from the use of the linancial mstruments arc interest rate risk, credit risk and
hiquadity risk. Risk management s camied out by the Group’s management under policies approved
by the Board. The Group’s management identifies and evaluates financial risks in close
cooperation with the Groups operating units.

The main objective of the Group’s financial risk management is to minimize the potential adverse
effects of the unpredictability of financial markets on the Group's linancial performance. The Board
provides principles for overall risk management, as follows:
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fnterest Reate Risk

Interest rate risk arises from the possibility that changes in interest rates will affect future cash flows
or the far values of financial instruments. The cash flows of the Group®s bank loans that are
cxposed Lo interest rate risk as of December 31, 2013 are disclosed in Note 19,

Interest rates on all bank loans are based on the higher between the PDST-R2 rate and the BSP
overnight borrowing rate.

The Group’s interest rate risk management policy focuses on reducing the overall interest expense
and exposwre to change in interest rates. Changes in market interest rates relate primanily to the
Group’s long term loans with floating intercst rates as it can cause a change in the amount of interest
payments,

Interest on financial instruments with floating rates is repriced al intervals of less than one year,
Interest on financial instruments with fixed rates is fixed until the maturity of the instrument. The
other financial mstruments of the Group are noninterest-bearing and are therefore not subject to
interest rate risk. The Group invests excess funds in short-term placements in order to mitigate any
increase in interest rate on borrowings,

The following table represents the impact on the Group’s income before income tax brought about

by reasonably possible change in interest rates, with all other variables held constant, as of
December 31 until its next financial reporting date:

Change in Interest Rate  Effcet on Income before Income Tax

2015 Increase by 0.50% B62 321,647
Decrease by 0.50% {62,321,647)

2014 Increase by 0.95% 45,754,940
Decrease by 0.95% {45,754,940)

There is no other effect on the Group’s equity other than those already alfecting profit or loss.

Cradie Risk

Credit risk is the risk that the Group will incur financial losses because its counterparties failed to
discharge their contractual obligations. The Group is exposed to credit risk from its operating
activitics (primarily frade recevables), including deposits with banks and other financial
instruments. The Group has no significant concentration on credit risk.

Trade Recervables

Sales of residential condominium units that are on installment basis are supported by post-dated
checks from the buyers. Titles to properties sold are not released unless full pavment is received. In
the case of leasing operation, tenants are subjected to credit evaluation and are required to put up
security deposits and pay advance rentals, if necessary. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the
reporting date is the expected cash flows from installment receivable and carrving value of rent
recetvable as disclosed in Note 7
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Financicd Instruments and Cash Deposits

Credit risk from balances with banks 1s managed by the Group’s treasury department in accordance
with the Group’s policy. Investments of surplus funds are made only with approved counterpartics (o
mitigate financial loss through counterparty’s potential failure to make payments. The Group’s
maximum exposure to credit risk for the component of the statement of financial position at
December 31 2015 and 2014 is the camying amounts as illustrated in Notes 5, 6, 7. 9, and 17 cxcept
for financial guarantees, The Group’s maximum exposure relating to financial guarantees is noted in
the liguidity table below.

The net maximum cxposure to credit risk for cash in banks, after taking into account msurance on
bank deposits, amounted to P96, 278,904 in 20135 and F116,234.079 in 2014,

The following tables provide the aging analvsis of receivables that are past due but not impaired
under the Group’s receivables account as of December 31:

215
Mare than
< 30 Days  60-90 Davs  91- 120 Davs 121 - 150 Davs 150 Davs Total
Ferd POSEE 081 P11,359.534 P15.228.735 £3.611,92)  P21.299001 Bod,587573
Felated parties - - - : T2H27TT T2M2,TTT
2014
N More than
<30 Davs o0 -90 Davs 91 - 120 Days 121 - 150 Days 150 Diays Tatal
Rent B3T 175,507 PR TR A3 B5,107,592 0. 861,126  BITOLO057  B74942 690

Related partics - A2,794,100 42,794,110
Financial instruments classified under “neither past due nor impaired” include high grade credit
quality mstruments because there were few or no history of default on the agreed terms of the
contract. “Past due and impaired” financial asset as disclosed in Note 7 pertams to those financial
mstruments that are long outstanding and have been provided with allowance for impairment
losses.

The credit quality of the financial asscts classificd under neither past due not impaired was
determined as tollows:

Cash and cash equivalents, financial assets at FVPL and AFS financial asscts are based on the nature
of the counterpartics and the Group’s internal rating system,

Receivables which are satisfactory pertains to receivables from existing and active tenants,
customers, related parties, counter parties, officers and emplovees: while unsatisfactory pertains to
receivables from tenants, customers. related parties and counter parties that have already ceased their
respective operations, and officers and employees that are no longer employed by the Group,

Ligueidity Risk

Liguidity risk 15 the risk that the Group will not be able to settle or meet its obligations on time or at
reasonable prices. The Group maintains sufficient cash and cash equivalents in order to fund its
operations.  The Group monitors its cash flows and carchully matches the cash receipts from its
condominium sales and leasing operations against cash requirements for its construction activities.
The Group utilizes its borrowing capacity, if necessary, to further bolster its cash reserves.
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The following tables summarize the maturity profile of financial assets compared with the
contractual undiscounted pavments of financial hiabilities in order to provide a complete view of the
Group’s hquidity as of December 31

201E
Over 1o 3 Over 310 5
i Within | Year ¥ears Yedrs  Ohver 5 Years Taotal
Financial Assels
Financial assets at FVPL P34,382 100 F- P P- B34 952, 146
Leans and receivables:
Cash ard cash cquivalets 40141, 16%,742 = - 401,169,742
Recervables:
Tnstaliment contracts receivalile™ ITGTESEIZT  1AI0E69897 1344245187 - 66319703
Rl - 194 320,946 - - - 194.320,946
Belated partics AN TTT = = TR T
Advances to officas and anpleyess 573297 - 5732997
Tniterest 4.396,733 - - 4396733
Oihers 51,129,262 - - 51,129,262
AFS financial assers S04.872.542 - - - SI4872 842
FI6T7259.6% F1AMLSA9ATT  F1344.245187 B- PI11.561 377,710
Cilver Financial Liabilities
Accounts payable and other current
liabilitics*= P3.462 487 051 P- P- B 3462437051
hadalinwent puyment 1448222777 3050798053 2909635 30 - 5308459221
Eank loans BE4L66667 4157500000 4170000000 3299333333 12,510.000,000
Toeposits from tenants THA03,920 331,920,732 SX20126,131 94.510,522 10291616035
Accued employes benefits=** - - 10170513 10, 170513
B3874250.445 PIA40218784 PTAOLESS 53 PIAN3ILANS P25319479.T20

*Expeeted eod) foves from insiallmea controct receivables as presemied in Note 7.

** Baclusting aovanced rendal, cistomers” deposis, reservation payeble, outpue FAT, defiensd guwipnet

*veinding acored reivement benefits of BIRGEE 17

FAT e withfiolding towes.

2014
Cwer 13 Cwer3to 5
Within 1 Yesr Wears Wears  Ower 5 Years Taral
Financial Assels
Financial aseets al FVPL BI5002.524 B [ e B33,012,524
Loans and receivahles;
Cash and cash equivalents 2,011 004,220 - - 2511004 820
Feceivables:
Imstallnient contracts receivable 4795 8001TE 1600 50,320 647 AR5, 065 713,189,569
Fent A, 3%6, 080 - - - I 256,080
Related partics 43794110 - - 42794 110
Adbvvances to officers and anplovess 71X 24 - - - 11272
Interest L &497 524 - - 1,697 524
Cibers 04 121,266 - . 8, 221,206
Cash in es@ow ™" FE2 02T A% - - - FRE02T ARG
AFS financal asoels 02 RYT R4 - - - 502822342
PEOLLTHM ST BIG6O.SM A PEITERS 065 P P11,229 183548
Other Financial Liabilities
Accounts pavable and other cirrent
liabilities™ BA79365 856 B B B P2OTO365856
Bank Inans B3 333233 1870833334 13125000000  BIFT0O2IIE 12, 14% 668 905
Dreposats Troue [eaants 34,247 874 08284 464 470,074,443 40830856 1003437637
Acued employes benefits==* i - e - 12875707 12,875 707
BIOGAGMT 003 B22TO007.798 B TRY ST4 445 PRASS V08 3 B16 144348105

* Exclnding advanced rental, customers’ deposits, reservation papable, owipet VAT, deferved ouipwt VAT and witliiolding taces,

M Dlder inpard tax and otfer cirrent assets.

* ¥ Eaoindling aocried reirement fenefits of BT5,624 324
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. Capital Management

The primary objective of the Group’s capital management is Lo ensure that it maintains a strong
credit rating, comply with externally imposed capital requirements, and maintain healthy capital
ratios in order to support its business and maximize stockholder value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it. in light of changes in cconomic
conditions. To maintam or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payment
to stockholders, return capital lo stockholders or issue new shares. Mo changes were made in the
ohjectives, policics or processes in 2015, 2014 and 2013,

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by capital. The Group
includes within net debt bank loans less cash and cash cquivalents. Capital pertains to total equity
less NCIL

2015 2014

Net Debt
Bank loans P12,464329.487 P12, 148,668,903
Less cash and cash equivalents 4,041,169 742 2911,004,820
"8423,159.745 9237 664085

Capilal

Total equity 32.301,582,765 2778433322
Less NCI 6,370,409, 759 3,965,795.878
25931172976 23,818,537 346
Gearing Ratio 32.48% 38.78%

The Group was able to meet its capital management objectives.

37

Note to Consolidaied Statements of Cash Flows

In 2014, the principal noncash transaction under investing aclivitics perfains to the acquired fotal
assets amounting Lo P9.647.345,695 and total liabilities amounting to P9.433 381,223 as a result of
the business combination (see Note 12).
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38. Acronyms and Abbreviations

The following arc the acronyms and abbreviations used in the consolidated financial statements with

the meanings as specified below:

Acronyms/

Abbreviations Meaning

ALS available-for-sale

ALM Asset-Liability Matching Study

APIC additional paid-in capital

BOA Board of Accountancy-

BSDC Brown Swallow Development Corporation
BSP Bangkao Sentral ng Pilipinas

BVl British Virgin Islands

G cash generating unit

ClLAC Construction Industry Arbilration Commission
CWT Creditable withholding tax

DFFS Dieposit for future stock subscription

EIR effective interest rate

ELHI EPHI Logistics Holdings, Ine.

EPEC Exchange Properties Resources Comporation
EESHRI EDSA Shangri-La [Hotel and Resort, Ine,
EUL estimated useful lives

FBSHI Fort Bonifacio Shangri-la Hotel, Ine.
FRSC Financial Reporting Standards Council
FVO fair value option

FVPL fair value through profit or loss

Gipscy Gispey Lid.

GFA grass floor arca

HKS Hong Kong Dollar

HLURB Housing and Land Use Repulatory Board
ITT™ held to maturity

IAS International Accounting Standard

[ASE Intermational Accounting Standards Board
IFIRIC Intemational Financial Reporting Interpretations Commiltes
IFRS Intemnational Financial Reporting Standard
IPPI Fvory Post Properties, Inc.

ISP Ideal Sites and Properties, Inc.

EMSC KFPPI Management Services Corporation
KRC KPPI Realty Corporation

K5A K5 A Realty Corporation

MBPI Martin B. Propertics, Inc,

MCIT minimum corporate income tax

MOA memaorandum of agreement

NCI non-controlling interests

NCEI MNew Contour Bealty, Inc.

NOI Net operating income

NOLCO net operating loss canryover

NEV net realizable value

OCT other comprehensive income

Q50 optional standard deduction
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Acronyms/
Abbreviations

Mheaning

osp
OSPCC
PAS
PDST-R2
PERS
PHIREF
PocC
PSLE

PsI

RA
RCIT
RTC
SEC
SFEHI
SGCII
SGCPL
SHIL
SLPC
SLFI
sPDI
SPMSI
SPRC
SPsl
S3P
ToT
TEC
TECCC
TRIDCT
TSFSP
TSFSPCC
TSGT
TSGTCC
USS
VAT
WACC

120 spANG PROPERTIES
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One Shangri-La Place Project

Ome Shangri-La Place Condominium Corporation
Philippine Accounting Standard

Philippine Dealing System Treasury Reference Rates
Philippine Financial Reporting Standards
Philippine Interbank Reference Rate

percentage of completion

Philippine Stock Exchange

Perfect Sites, Inc.

Republic Act

regular corporate income tax

Regtonal Trial Court

Securities and Exchange Commission

Shang Fort Bonifacio Holdings, Inc.

Shang Global City Holdings, Inc.

Shang Global City Propertics, Inc.

Silver Hero Investments Limited

Shangri-La Plaza Corporation

Sky Lesure Propertics, Inc.

Shang Property Developers, Inc,

Shang Property Management Services, Inc.
Shang Properties Realty Corporation

SPI Parking Scrvices, Inc.

Shang Salcedo Place Project

transfer certificates of title

The Enterprise Center

The Enterprise Center Condominium Corporation
The Rise Development Company, Ine.

The St. rancis Shangri-La Place Project

The 5t. Francis Shangri-la Place Condominium Corporation
The Shang Grand Tower Project

The Shang Grand Tower Condominium Corporation
Uniled States Dollar

value-added tax

weighted average cost of capital



Corporate Directory

OME SHANGRI-LA PLACE

Tel: {63 2) 370-2600

Fax: (63 2) 370-2626

Show Suite and Sales Office
Level 1, Shangri-La Plaza

EDSA corner Shaw Boulevard
Mandaluyong City 1550
sales@oneshangri-laplace.com
wwwroneshangri-laplacecom

SHANG SALCEDO PLACE

Tel: (83 2} 512-0000 or 519-8080

Faxx {63 257129111

Show Suite and Sales Office

Level 3, Tower 1, The Enterprise Center
6766 Avala Avenus corner Paseo de Roxas
Makati City 1212
sales@shangsalcedaplace.com
www.shangsalcedoplace.com

HORIZON HOMES AT

SHANGRI-LA AT THE FORT

Tel: (63 2) 841-9681

Mezzanine level, Makati Shangri-La

Manila, Ayala Avenue corner Makati Avenue
Makati City
horizonhomes.sifm@shangri-ia.com
www.shangri-la.com

SHANGRI-LAPLAZA

Tel: (63 2) 370-2500

Faw: (63 2) 633-4474 or 633-4492
www.shangrila-plaza.com

EDSA corner Shaw Boulevard
Mandaluyong City 1550

THE ENTERPRISE CENTER

Tel: (63 2) 752-1000

Fax: (63 2) 886-5001
www.theenterprisecenter.com.ph

6766 Ayala Avenue corner Paseo de Roxas
Miakati City 1212

THE SHANG GRAND TOWER

Tel: (63 2) 909-5000 to 04

Fax: (63 2) 909-5006
www.theshanggrandtower.com

98 Perea Street corner dela Rosa Street
LegaspiVillage, Makati City 1229

THE 5T. FRANCIS SHAMNGRI-LA PLACE
Tel: (83 2) 239-2517

Fax: (63 2) 570-6981
wiahw.thestfrancistowers.com

Internal Road corner St Francis Street
Mandaluyong City 1550

THE RISE MAKATI

Tel: (83 2) 843-7473

Showsuite and Sales Office

4th Avenue corner Rizal Drive,
Bonifacio Global City, Taguig 1634
sales@therisernakati.com
www.therisemakati.com

Investor Relations Information

- PRINCIPAL OFFICE

Tel: (63 20 370-2700

Fax: (B3 2) 370-2777

Level 5, Shangri-La Plaza
EDSA corner Shaw Boulevard
Mandaluyong City 1550
info@shangproperties.com
wwwshangproperties.com

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Bank of the Philippine Islands
Metrapolitan Bank and Trust Company
Banco De Oro

AUDITORS
Sycip Gorres Velayo & Co.

LEGAL COUNSELS

Abello Concepcion Regala & Cruz
Romulo, Mabants, Buenaveniura,
Sayoc & Delos Angeles

PROPERTY VALUER
Roval Asia Appraisal Corporation

STOCK TRANSFER AGENT
Rizal Commercial Banking Carp.
Ground Floor, GPL Building

221 Sen. Gil Puyat Avenue,
Miakati City, Matro Manila

KEY DATES
+  Regular Board Meeting: Quarterly
- Annual Stockholder's Meeting:
Any day in June of each vear
+  Fiscal Year: 1 January to 31 December
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